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Financial Highlights

TRARNEEBRESEMREE 2524 - BE - B  The following tables are summaries of the Group’s results, assets,
BEREZHE liabilities and equity for the past five financial years:
BZ12R31HLEE
Year ended 31 December
2014 F 20134 201246 20114 2010
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
AR®TRT  ARBTT AREFT ARETT ARETR
£ | Results RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
HEWA Revenue 466,584 551,762 538,335 481,402 396,298
Hep: Where:
MLCC ¥7% MLCC business 466,584 513,150 414,143 357,274 396,298
BBFRES Trading of mobile phones
(FzE1) (Note 1) - - 112,993 124,128 -
B (HE2) Battery business (Note 2) - 38,612 11,199 - -
HEERAK Cost of sales (431,230) (466,139) (473,998) (417,333) (308,350)
e Gross profit 35,354 85,623 64,337 64,069 87,948
EE(E8),/FE (Loss)/profit for the year (46,889) (5,373) (8,159) 14,556 33,955
DT ATER attributable to:
— ADFRESEA — Equity holders
of the Company (46,889) (5,373) (8,159) 14,556 33,955
BREA(ER) /&R Basic (loss)/earnings per share (11.6)flicents  (13flicents  (20flicents  3.6flicents  8.4flicents
R12A31H
As at 31 December
2014 20135 20126 201 F 20104
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
AR¥BTRT AR%®TT AR%®TT ARE®ETT  AR®TR
BEREE Assets and liabilities RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BEE Total assets 631,066 808,942 792,177 833,461 662,375
BEE Total liabilities 237,432 366,971 346,487 389,066 225,105
Bin Total equity 393,634 441,971 445,690 444,395 437,270
PAR AT RS attributable to:
— ARFRERAA — Equity holders
of the Company 393,634 441,971 445,690 444,395 437,270
5T - Notes:

(1) R201MF8A ARRIBVFBHFHEFEK
FEREEE=-AHEBEERHF R LRGN
EEHEBRSHFHE - ARFERN2013F 6 AL
CEZEDER -

2 2012918 ARERBEMBER - AQFE
R 2013F 12 AERBIR IEBMZET ©

2 Annual Report 2014
EYANG Holdings (Group) Co., Limited

(1) In August 2011, the Company set up the new mobile phones trading
business which engages in purchase of mobile phones from third party
suppliers and sales to overseas customers. The Company discontinued
the trading business in June 2013.

(2)  In November 2012, the Company acquired the battery business. The
Company discontinued the battery business by the end of December
2013.
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Cayman Islands
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Executive Directors

Mr. Chen Weirong (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
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Mr. Wang Ye
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Mr. Chen Hao

Mr. Cheng Wusheng
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Mr. Liang Rong

Mr. Mak Ka Wing

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
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EYANG Holdings (Group) Co., Limited

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

unit A, 20/F., Po Wah Commercial Centre

226 Hennessy Road

Wanchai

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN THE PRC
EYANG Building

No. 3 Qimin Street

No. 2 Langshan Road, North Area

Hi-tech Industrial Park

Nanshan District

Shenzhen, the PRC

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES
Mr. Chen Weirong
Mr. Leung Wai Chung

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Leung Wai Chung CPA

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Appleby Trust (Cayman) Limited

Clifton House

75 Fort Street

PO Box 1350

Grand Cayman KY1-1108

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Boardroom Share Registrars (HK) Limited

31/F., 148 Electric Road

North Point

Hong Kong
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http://www.szeyang.com

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

China Construction Bank

China Merchants Bank

Shenzhen Ping An Bank

Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation
Hang Seng Bank Limited

PRC LAWYER
Win & Sun Law Firm

AS TO CAYMAN ISLANDS LAW
Conyers Dill & Pearman

AUDITOR
CCIF CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

STOCK CODE
00117

COMPANY WEBSITE
http://www.szeyang.com
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BRIEEEEE 565 ARRATEERESSE
& TR - BEDES  REIREEEE -
BROCAETMERNEERAIPEA - R 1982 F B ENE
ISR (REEREIAS)  EIRE8t
By - RER  RIIRFREERBR—REE
ETHEBEEMBEERDHEARFEEEERMD AR
NEEERME - 19944 REL BT AEE
EENBEFHLIBEE20014F - R19964F » 2
BIRINEETFLER] R1997 FEREZH
[A— | BEEE - W98 FREAENEEH
ARREREEBZESREK - MAEHE2001F
MA—EEAAREEERE -

WX FERE 335 N2013FE5A7HEZTA
RABHMITES - EERTEAREBEMLCCE
X EHEIBEE  aEAEBEMCCERER -
BIEHE  BE - EEFIRE o BT ER 2005F
EENREFRIRARE  BEEENALREER R
2008 F 2 BEAAMLCCREFR L EERBIME
2009F 4 HBER ALK E - PR2012F 1 AEFMA
RNEE - AER2013FSABZEARQAEH
TEZ -

Annual Report 2014
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chen Weirong, aged 56, is an executive director and
Chairman of the Board, as well as chief executive officer of the
Company. He is in charge of the corporate strategy, planning and
overall development. He is also the founder of the Group. Mr. Chen
graduated from #E T £ 8% (South China Institute of Technology*,
now knownas # F # T K £, South China University of
Technology*) in 1982 with a bachelor’s degree in engineering. Upon
graduation, Mr. Chen started his career as a technician in FEEEE
f% 17 A& R A &) (Konka Group Company Limited*) in 1982, a major
consumer electronics manufacturing and distribution enterprise in
the PRC, and became its managing director in 1994 until 2001. In
1996, Mr. Chen was elected as "Outstanding Young Entrepreneur of
Shenzhen”, in 1997, he was awarded the “National May 1st" Labour
Medal” (2B [ i — 1 £ 8 #Z) and in 1998, he was elected as a
representative in the Standing Committee of the 9th National
People’s Congress. Mr. Chen has been the Chairman of the Group
since November 2001.

Mr. Jing Wenping, aged 33, is an executive director of the
Company appointed on 7 May 2013. Mr. Jing is the deputy general
manager of MLCC division of the Group. He is in charge of
the Group’s MLCC product management, including development,
quality and production. Following his graduation from &R A2
(University of Electronic Science and Technology China*) in 2005,
Mr. Jing started his career in the Group and was promoted to the
deputy factory director of the MLCC Production Centre in February
2008. He left the Group in April 2009, but rejoined later on in January
2012. He was appointed as an executive director of the Company in
May 2013.

* For identification purpose only
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FHESRLE - 485% 0 PN 1989 F R E R S B Rl
Fas2pr R TR e AS) L2 X ERL
BEE - J008FMEFHEMCBEABEEEMR
IT A2 FE M MBATE T 247 © 1989 & 1999 F ik
WIAEAKESR  BAEMBHEER AR IIZA
& © 2000 £ 2004 FRHBB A REEB RO ERA
A EHERENRR R R EITEIE - 2004 F
E5RBRRIFEEEERBRAR - BEE
ERHEE - ZEhoB8ge BELEeTFHE
FRIEER AR BAIE - THREN2013F9 A
ZEARARRPITES -

FPAT A

BRSE R4 @ 4957 AR EI3EMITESE - RAE4AR
1989 F BN ERIBE T AE(BEBEPRE K
) BSFrE RSBt 8 - iEs BRHRE
EHBBE16F R - BREER 1992 F INAHE
@ hERBEERREZ(LE) ARMEIHA KR
HRICIE o T E B R EE R ERWIT -
PR 9t 4 72 2001 FF Bl — R B 1% & A BB 18 4%
BEERAR  BUETKRERE  BAEZATN
B BEZARERHNEEIES LR -
PRAEERSTIREEEERBEARNAESE 8 -
BIERABAAR 27 (NASDAQSPRD) & i &l
B AR AR (4966.TWO) ° M IR Z % E R A&
FEE B - BR2007F4 S EZERRRATE
WITES o

Mr. Wang Ye, aged 48, and graduated from the Department of
Chemistry of & & B 2= 5 1i7 A &5 £ B7 (Nanchang Technology and
Education College*) (now known as T 78 & 5 b & K £ (Jiangxi
Science & Technology Normal University*) with a degree in Applied
Chemistry in 1989. He obtained a postgraduate degree and a
master’s degree in MBA from A Eg 81 4% Et )% K £ (the College of
Management of Zhongnan University of Economics and Law¥*) in
2008. From 1989 t0 1999, he served on ST FA& 4 & Z (the Provincial
Economic and Trade Commission in Jiangxi*), where he was
appointed as engineer and director in a printed circuit company
under the Commission. From 2000 to 2004, he was the MD Manager
of BEFENRIRAERR A A (Boluo Konka Printed Board Co., Ltd.*),
a member of & ££ & E & 5 B IR 2 7] ("Konka Group Co., Ltd*").
Since 2004, he has been serving & Il F 5 Bt K % R B R A 7
(Shenzhen Eyang Technology Development Co., Ltd.*) as production
factory manager and chief manager of the manufacturing centre.
Currently, he is the general manager of Z# & 555 FRHIXAR D
Al (Anhui Jineyang Electronic Technology Co., Ltd*). Mr. Wang was
appointed as an executive director of the Company in September
2013.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chen Hao, aged 49, is a non-executive director of the Company. Mr.
Chen graduated from ZEFRIE T A£ (Huazhong University of Science and
Technology*, now known as FEREHZAES) with a bachelor’s degree in
computer science in 1989. He has over 16 years of experience in the
information technology industry. Mr. Chen joined Legend Group in 1992. He
was the founder and the general manager of Legend Advanced
System Ltd. During his tenure, he was responsible for strategic
management and business implementation. Mr. Chen founded
Legend Capital, a venture capital firm, in 2001, and has served as
head of investment ever since. He is currently a director of the
company, responsible for overall control and coordination of
investment activities. Mr. Chan is also a director of a number of
information technology companies, including Spreadtrust
Ccommunications, Inc. (NASDAQ: SPRD) and Parade Technologies Ltd.
(4966.TWO). He also serves as a director in a number of investment
companies. He was appointed as a non-executive director of the
Company in April 2007.

* For identification purpose only
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BREKE 475 AREERITES - B4
R1990F 10 AE 1996 F 6 AT HEEEERNAE
RAFIMESLIERRAREEFERARME
B BEHEREEER  RAEBSARE
NTHECREEEERAFNNES - BAEFB
H 2% 2 FWU SHENG Management Limited # 5
NATHIRRAE o (RN 2007 E4 AEEFEAERAT
FERITES -

RAEMEE - 6455 AABFATEE - REE
R19815F2 AE1985F 11 AE HIBHEHRAE
SEMGH R EEERERE - 7R 19859 12 A E 1994
F1ACLERREEVRELEER A5 E
MEERANBRER - RAELBRA LEERB
RERAA - LEXGREEEAEERAR - £F
ESEXERAR - LERERRBBREGRA
AN EEHREEBRBEMNBMNES L LEAFA
B ABEENT - [HR2007 F4 AEZEAAR
AIZEMITESE -

B JE AT

BRELE 585 ARFRIBUIERITES - &L
A 1982 FF 2 Ep b R 8 BT GRTEAL RELL
KE)  BUSYIR(LEBEL BT - DRI 1987 F
N190FREZHERERE LSBT RIFELE
il BRIABEREMBRIERIRERZHE - &
EEBRMAREZ . TRWERHKEER © 21F
EREHRME - BRBEME  MAMEEEER
HmBEREAEME - BR2007F4 AEZEAK
NEVBYIERITES ©
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Mr. Cheng Wusheng, aged 47, is a non-executive director of the
Company. He was regional manager of Konka Group Company
Limited and deputy general manager of PR F £ & F A R A &
(Shaanxi Konka Electronic Co., Ltd.*) from October 1990 to June
1996, responsible for product sales and promotion. Mr. Cheng is
currently the director of ¥ g EE p £ B % B R 2 7 (Shenzhen
Nanhua Yaxing Industrial Co., Ltd.*) which is a trading company. He
has shareholding interests in the Company through his wholly-
owned company WU SHENG Management Limited. He was appointed
as a non-executive director of the Company in April 2007.

Mr. Zhang Zzhilin, aged 64, is a non-executive director of the
Company. He was the factory director of &R ¥R A BEE A5
M B% & $ B (Shanghai Pudong Heging Town Xiangyang Village
Xiangyang Electroplating Factory*) from February 1981 to November
1985 and was also the factory director of /& /R 35 %8 B 5L G R
(Shanghai Pudong Meiling Plastics Factory*) from December 1985 to
January 1994. As a factory director, he was responsible for
production operation and human resource management. Mr. Zhang
is currently the director of _E/8 %= E) 8% F R A & (Shanghai Huali
Packing Co., Ltd.*), E/8EGEEIEEBR QA (Shanghai Meiyang
Precision Moulding Co., Ltd.*), £ /& [E S & % & R A A (Shanghai

(Shanghai Taihui LCD Co., Ltd.*), and E /8 /AR EE B B & B
(Shanghai Pudong Meiling Plastics Factory*), all of which are
manufacturing companies. He was appointed as a non-executive
director of the Company in April 2007.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Pan Wei, aged 58, is an independent non-executive director of the
Company. Mr. Pan graduated from 4t = 8] ] £2 Bz (Beijing Institute of
Steel*, now known as 3t = & £ KX £, University of Science and
Technology Beijing*) with a bachelor’s degree in physical chemistry in
1982. He obtained a master’s degree in engineering and doctoral
degree in engineering from Nagoya University in 1987 and 1990
respectively. He is currently a professor in the Department of
Materials Science and Engineering, Tsinghua University. Mr. Pan
specialises in material science, engineering research and educational
projects, including thermal barrier materials, transparent ceramic
materials, nano materials and devices and other conductive ceramic
materials. He was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Company in April 2007.

* For identification purpose only
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KBEEKE 505 B2007F4 B ELBERRT
BYERTES - KAENAEECEREZES
ERE o REERDEM - B SEIEBBES
HHEEB20F LR - KREEAPRIERBRRA]
(DR 8B ERRRITEE TR ER
THHREERAF (RO - 01269) - 25
REEBR AT (DAL - 01823) ~ TR
f& AR AR5 R 01998) ~ EDS Wellness
Holdings Limited (A i8R Bl & L &= EE R BR A
7)) (MR : 8176) REMERHERBR A A
(R&AD SR« 8145) B ZIEMITE S o 1R 20054F
9AZE2007F3 AHM - KREEAEBEREBRA
AP ARSE : 905) (REMEHMEAELIRERR
NEEFHITES - FA2008F 1 AE 20108 A HA
- RICERKEMETERARA A (FIEE R
FEAER AT (BRMDNRSE : 723) MB L IEHITE
% o 2008 F = 2010 FHAR - KA AKGHEHAL
EEERAF (FIEERERABRAT) (RMHR
5% 0 1383) AR ME o Ll AR EBRTER
EH o REERERBEAE  EETIREER
TE - RELERBBESHARASE NFHARE
A EREE  TREBRSHFNEREEA
BERERBEBERTIWELALTEE -

BIRWRE 735 ARBIBYIERTESE - &
FERI9SFEREENEF T E2 CRBERET
RE) BEIRBEL 26  MEFEFRETIR
BLBETEXRK  BREARZRERE - 8
19954 5 3 = 200399 A = 72001 F » 2L 4
ERAMBENTIERINERT - thE R AERE
T RENHF - 2007 E4 AEEZFAETAT
B IEITES -

Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus, aged 50, is the Company's
independent non-executive director since April 2007. He is also the
chairman of the audit committee of the Board. Mr. Chu has over 20
years of experience in corporate finance, audit, accounting and
taxation. Mr. Chu is a deputy chairman and executive director of
Chinese People Holdings Company Limited (ff R 12 % B B A &)
(stock code: 681) and an independent non-executive director of
China Vehicle Components Technology Holdings Limited (= [ =
ZEB M RHE AR A A]) (stock code: 01269), Huayu Expressway Group
Limited (228 8 & & & B & B 2 7)) (stock code: 01823), Flyke
International Holdings Limited (¢52 BER 2= R BBR A &) (stock code:
01998) and EDS Wellness Holdings Limited (formerly known as China
AU Group Holdings Limited (4 B & & &£ B £ & B R 2 7)) (stock
code: 8176) and Telecom Service One Holdings Limited (& &1 & BHE
[i% A& BR 72 7]) (stock code: 8145). During the period from September
2005 to March 2007 Mr. Chu was the executive director of
Mastermind Capital Limited (E1Z1% & B R 2 ) (stock code: 905)
which was known as Haywood Investments Limited during the
relevant period. Mr. Chu was an independent non-executive director
of Sustainable Forest Holdings Limited (5K £& # % #22 i% & R 2 &)
(formerly known as Bright Prosperous Holdings Limited (& &= A
R 2 &) (stock code: 723) from January 2008 to August 2010. Mr.
Chu served at Sun Century Group Limited (XS tt42 £ B AR A 7))
(formerly known as Hong Long Holdings Limited) (38 1ZA% AR A 7))
(stock code: 1383) as a company secretary during the period from
2008 to 2010, All of the aforementioned companies are companies
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Chu graduated
from The University of Hong Kong with a Master Degree in Business
Administration. Mr. Chu is a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Chu is also an associate
member of both the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators and the Hong Kong Institute of Company Secretaries.

Mr. Liu Huanbin, aged 73, is an independent non-executive director
of the Company. Mr. Liu graduated from %= F§ T £ B3 (South China
Institute of Technology*, now known as % =38 T K&, South China
University of Technology*) in 1965 with a bachelor’s degree in
engineering. He holds professorship in chemical engineering in
ZEF IR T K2 (South China University of Technology*), and was later
promoted to the principal of the university for the tenure from May
1995 to September 2003. In 2001, Mr. Liu was awarded as a foreign
academician by Academy of Engineering of Russia. He is currently a
professor in the South China University of Technology. He was
appointed as an independent non-executive director of the Company
in April 2007.

* For identification purpose only
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PEGE 508 ARRIEUIERITES - BT
PN 1989 F R E R R BB S BERATHITAT -
BMEEEETEN  BEREEERGERAQA]
FEHTEIAE EFFHAEH  2003FHAHBES
ERYImERLaERER AR AR (51 & BRI T4
RaERE AR AR RImEHERER A
BAT)EAEEMARKIE - 2010FEHBESET
ITHREFEEZERARIETES - RELER
2013F 5 AEZ T AN RNREYIEHITES -

BREKE S0 ARBBYIERTES - |
AEBREERAMEMEEBSERERMITZ
BERAGRAN BEEBEBBB-THIERANER
B2 ERAEER - B AR 190F 21991 FHEER
BEEPAAM ST BB B B B Messrs. Donald T.McAuliffe
& CO.7RNTT » HEN1991FEE1992F 1 EFH B
22 EBF Messrs. Sparrow & Trieu £2RH7T °

SR & Asia Green Agriculture Corporation (7%
NRABBEEBRNEENEFFMK L) 2ES - |
NRELREmBREERER QRS RE:
1175) - FHEER(EE) BR 2 A (RH K5 :
117) R BB BR 2 AR B R 2 A (A9 5% - 627)
ZEBIIEMITES °

oA BN2010F4 A22BE£2013F8 A31BHA
MEAHBEGZEREEEBR AR (RO :
1159) 2 B FEMITESE + MEDRIR 201342 A
6HZE2013F 4 A16 B X 201344 A17 B 22013
FOABHBMETHRSOBEETERER AT
(R AR - 1380) 2 B FEMITE S MIEHRITE
$ o
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EYANG Holdings (Group) Co., Limited

Mr. Liang Rong, aged 50, is an independent non-executive director
of the Company. Mr. Liang attained his master’s degree in science
from = B B} 2 Bt ¢ ¥ £ 1l #f 5T P (the Institute of Optics and
Electronics of Chinese Academy of Sciences*) when he graduated in
1989. As the executive vice president and director cum president of
FE =% B % 5 B R A 7] (Konka Group Co., Ltd.*) previously, Mr.
Liang has served as the director and general manager of 3| iR}
BRI AR A (Shenzhen Vcall Communications & Technology
Ltd.*) (formerly & 31l T 4 %} 38 15 Bl #£2 B BR & 7] (Shenzhen Weike
Communications Technology Co., Ltd.*) and J&IIIT @ isEmE Rl
BBR A 7] (Shenzhen Furuide Communication Technology Co., Ltd.*))
since 2003. He has been the director of Zhong Shan City Richsound
Electronic Industrial Ltd.* since 2010. Mr. Liang was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company in May 2013.

Mr. Mak Ka Wing Patrick, aged 50, is as an independent non-
executive director of the Company. He is a registered solicitor of the
High Court of Hong Kong and Managing Partner of Patrick Mak & Tse,
Solicitors. Mr. Mak has over 20 years legal experience as a practising
solicitor. Mr. Mak worked in Dublin, Ireland with Messrs. Donald T.
McAuliffe & Co., Solicitors of Ireland from 1990 to 1991 and worked
in London, England with Messrs. Sparrow & Trieu, Solicitors from
1991 to 1992.

Mr. Mak is currently a director of Asia Green Agriculture Corporation
which was incorporated under the laws of the State of Nevada, USA.
He is also an independent non-executive director of FU JI Food and
Catering Services Holdings Limited (stock code: 1175), EYANG
Holdings (Group) Co., Limited (stock code: 117) and U-Right
International Holdings Limited (stock code: 627).

Mr. Mak was an independent non-executive director of Sinogreen
Energy International Group Limited (stock code: 1159) from 22 April
2010 to 31 August 2013, independent non-executive director and
non-executive director of China Kingston Mining Holdings Limited
(stock code: 1380) for the period from 6 February 2013 to 16 April
2013 and from 17 April 2013 to 13 June 2013 respectively.

* For identification purpose only
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In 2014, the growing competition in the consumer electronics
industry, especially the fierce competition in the market of middle
and low-end MLCC products, put even more downward pressure on
the price of MLCC products. In addition to the significant increase in
labour costs, the costs for raw materials and energy also saw a
modest increase during the year, which led to the rise in the Group's
manufacturing and production costs. Meanwhile, unit cost of our
products increased as the upgrading and reconstructing of
production lines of our second base plant in Anhui resulted in a
decrease in production capacity and instability in production during
the period. The Group's profitability was adversely affected by the
increased costs and decreased prices, with the MLCC business
reporting a loss for the first time.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

In 2014, the Group’s revenue amounted to RMB466.6 million,
representing a 9.07% decrease from that of 2013. Profit after tax
attributable to shareholders of the Company recorded a loss of
RMB46.89 million for the year, representing an increase in loss by
RMBA41.52 million from that of 2013. The loss per share for the year
was RMB11.6 cents.

The Board did not recommend the cash payment of final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2014.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Adhering to its approach of miniaturisation in 2014, the Group
reached a milestone in the research and development of super-
miniature capacitor 0201 and started its mass production. With the
expansion in both production and sales of super-miniature capacitor
0201, the Group led with a comfortable margin when compared to
domestic competitors offering similar products. However, as the
demand for mobile internet products declined coupled with an
enhanced concentration of brands within the market, the market
share of minor brands started shrinking. As a result, the Group
reported a decrease in its overall sales as it failed to make timely
adjustments in respect of its customer structure.

The upgrade of our second base plant in Anhui was affected by a
number of external factors that were beyond the Group’s control,
including geographical location, humidity, temperature and the
running-in of equipment, which in turn led to a deferred production
from certain product lines and a decrease in effective output during
2014. The Group was able to complete the upgrade for full
production processes at the end of the year amid these adverse
factors.

In addition to the supporting funds granted by the Ministry of Industry
and Information Technology in 2013 for being recognised as one of
the three 2013 model projects for strengthening industrial bases
(components category), the Group was granted supporting funds
amounted to RMB4 million from the Shenzhen Science and
Technology Funding Program in 2014, which provided a strong
support for its research and development of super-miniature
capacitors.

2014 4F4EIR
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PROSPECTS

The pace with which new consumer electronics are introduced is
bound to speed up in tandem with the improvement in quality of life
and advancement in technology. We expect the demand for MLCC
products to keep increasing in the future. Meanwhile, we also
anticipate a shift in the development of MLCC products towards high
precision, high capacitance and super-miniaturisation. As the
demand for capacitors from various industries in which our
customers operate made a drastic shift from 0402-sized to
0201-sized capacitors, the Group successfully developed a series of
0201-speced products and established mass production in 2014. The
successful research and development of these products will bring
new opportunities for the Group's gross profit growth. Therefore,
with an aim to fully dominate the main market of smart electronics in
PRC, the Group's expansion in production capacity will be largely
focused on miniature capacitor 0201. Existing production scales will
be maintained for remaining products, as the Group aims to enhance
product hierarchy on the base of achieving stability in product
quality.

In order to lower costs of raw materials, we are committed to
increasing investment in the development and adoption of new
materials, new techniques as well as new technologies. We will also
continue to increase the proportion of raw materials sourced from
domestic suppliers and strengthen supply management to reduce
unit cost of our products. In addition, we endeavour to achieve profit
growth by offering greater value for money through our products.

Currently, the market competition for MLCC products has almost
reached its peak, and the trend of faster industrial integration in
which enhanced self-competitiveness plays a key part is bound to
emerge in the future. The Group will adhere to its development
principle of miniaturisation, high precision and high capacitance with
a focus on miniaturisation and high capacitance, and build greater
capabilities in technological research and development to create
products of great value for money. At the same time, in order to
create greater return on investment for its shareholders, the Group
aims to restore a stable and sound financial position by making
further adjustments in respect of its customer structure and
expansion in relevant markets.

APPRECIATION

I would also like to take this opportunity to express my deepest
appreciation to all customers and shareholders for their constant
support, to my fellow directors for their guidance and insight, and to
every single one of our staff members for their dedication and hard
work.

Chen Weirong
Chairman

24 March 2015
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BUSINESS REVIEW

During 2014, the output of mobile phones in the PRC dropped by
22% compared with last year, the first decrease after years of
continuous and rapid growth. As a result, the sale of MLCC, which is
mainly targeted at mobile internet, also showed a certain degree of
decrease. The concentration of brands in the domestic mobile
industry increased further, but we were somewhat lagging behind as
we did not change our customer structure in response to the
changes in the industry.

The construction of our second base plant in Anhui province is close
to completion, but the product costs remain high as a result of
instability in production. Going forward, we will focus on restoring
our production capacity and enhancing our product quality. We have
increased our input for research and development significantly. We
have made a partial success in the research and development of
super-miniature capacitor 0201 and advanced from pilot-scale
experiment to large-scale mass production.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue from Principal Business

In 2014, the revenue from the Group’s MLCC business amounted to
RMB466.6 million, representing a 9.07% decrease from that of 2013.
This was mainly attributable to a decline in the market demands for
mobile internet products and the shrinkage of market share for small
brands amid increasing concentration of brands. The Group did not
make adjustments to its customer structure in response to market
changes, resulting in a decrease in sales volume. In addition, the
average selling price of MLCC also fell moderately.

Gross Profit Margin

The gross profit margin of the Group’s MLCC business for 2014 was
7.6%, representing a decrease of 8.8% from 16.4% for 2013. This was
mainly due to the relocation of part of the Group’s production lines
from Dongguan to Anhui in 2014. The relocation and restoration to
normal production required a relatively long time, resulting in a
decrease in production capacity and higher unit product cost.
Meanwhile, the average selling price of MLCC also fell moderately
due to market changes.

Other Revenue and Other Net Income
Other revenue and other net income of the Group for 2014 were
RMB15.8 million, flat compared with that of 2013.

Selling and Distribution Costs

The selling and distribution costs of the Group for 2014 were
RMB22.1 million, representing an increase of RMB2.9 million from
that of 2013. This was mainly resulted from the increased input made
by the Group to address the changes in the mobile internet terminal
industry market and maintain its market share.
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Management Costs

The management costs of the Group for 2014 were RMB41.6 million,
representing an increase of RMB2.4 million from that of 2013. This
was mainly a result of an increase in the impairment amount of fixed
assets in 2014.

Research and Development Costs

The research and development costs of the Group for 2014 were
RMB32.4 million, representing a 50.1% increase from that of 2013.
The growth was mainly attributable to the initiative to enhance the
core competitiveness of MLCC by increasing input for research and
development of MLCC0201 products and new super-miniature
products for mobile internet. After two years of research and
development, the Group was able to commence large-scale mass
production of MLCC0201.

Other Expenses

Other expenses of the Group for 2014 were RMB5.0 million,
representing a 21.2% decrease from that of 2013. This was mainly
due to a decrease in the amount of new provision for inventories in
2014 compared with 2013.

Finance Costs

The finance costs of the Group for 2014 were RMB4 million,
representing a decrease of RMBO0.5 million from that of 2013. This
was mainly attributable to lower finance costs as the Group
implemented effective control of finance costs while maintaining a
normal level of liquidity.

Income Tax

Income tax of the Group for 2014 amounted to approximately RMB-7
million, representing a decrease of RMB15.1 million over that of
2013. This was mainly because Shenzhen Eyang Technology
Development Co., Ltd. (&I FEEEHE B R AR A 7)), the subsidiary
which carries out the main business of the Group, recorded a loss
and was not subject to any income tax in 2014. Meanwhile, as a
corporate income tax rate of 25% (2013: 15%) was applicable to the
subsidiary during the year, the above changes resulted in an increase
in deferred tax, reducing income tax expenses.

Gearing Ratio

The Group monitors its capital through gearing ratio, which is net
debt divided by capital plus net debt. Net debt is calculated at the
sum of bank loans, trade and bills payables and other payables and
accruals (excluding deferred income) less cash and cash equivalent.
Capital represents equity attributable to the owner of the Company
(excluding share capital). As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, the
gearing ratio of the Group was approximately 26% and 28%
respectively.
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Property, Plant and Equipment

The net carrying amount as at 31 December 2014 was RMB226.5
million, representing a decrease of RMB34.7 million from that of
2013. This was mainly due to: (i) depreciation of approximately
RMB47 million with respect to the Group’s property, plant and
equipment in the current period; (i) impairment of RMB6.6 million
with respect to the Group’s equipment;(iii) the Group’s new MLCC
production equipment and construction in process valued at
approximately RMB25.6 million; (iv) the transfer of RMB6.6 million to
investment properties during the year.

Investment Properties

The Group’s investment properties for 2014 amounted to RMB24.3
million, representing an increase of RMB6 million from 2013. This
was mainly due to the slight increase in property for lease.

Other Intangible Assets

The other intangible assets of the Group for 2014 amounted to
RMB2.2 million, representing an increase of RMB1 million from that
of 2013. This was mainly due to the increase by RMB1.3 million of
SAP software in 2014 and amortisation of RMBO0.4 million in light of
intangible assets associated with the Group’s SAP management
software.

Trade and Bills Receivables

As at 31 December 2014, the net book values of trade and bills
receivables were RMB188.2 million, representing a decrease of
RMB38.9 million from 2013. That was mainly due to: (i) enhanced
control over receivables which ensured timely recovery; and (ii)
decrease in revenue from MLCC business.

Prepayments, Deposits and Other Receivables

As at 31 December 2014, prepayments, deposits and other
receivables of the Group amounted to RMB15.5 million, representing
an increase of RMB2.6 million from 2013, primarily due to: (1) the
increase in prepayments to suppliers and prepaid expenses; (2)
increase in input VAT subject to deduction for the current period.

Cash and Bank Balances and Pledged Bank Deposits

As at 31 December 2014, cash and bank balances and pledged bank
deposits of the Group were RMB52.4 million, representing a decrease
of RMB129.9 million from that of 2013. This was mainly attributable
to the repayment of secured financing obtained in the previous year
which became mature and the decrease in pledged bank deposits
arising from the decreased issuance of letter of credits and bills
receivables as a result of a change in financing method in 2014.
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Trade and Bills Payables

As at 31 December 2014, the balance of trade and bills payables of
the Group decreased by approximately RMB15.3 million compared
with that at the end of 2013. That was mainly due to enhanced
control over payables.

Deferred Income, Accruals and Other Payables

As at 31 December 2014, deferred income, accruals and other
payables of the Group amounted to RMB32.1 million, representing a
decrease of RMB4.1 million from that of 2013. This was mainly due to
a decrease in equipment related payables and other tax.

Bank Loans

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had outstanding bank loans of
RMB67.4 million, representing a decrease of RMB102.9 million from
that of 2013, which was mainly due to the repayment of secured
financing obtained in the previous year which became mature. In
addition, the Company recovered receivables in 2014 in a timely
manner, improved liquidity and reduced financing moderately.

Contingent Liabilities
As at December 31 2014, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities.

Commitments

As at 31 December 2014, the capital commitments of the Group
were RMBO0.9 million, representing a decrease of RMB2.1 million from
that of 2013, which was mainly due to a decrease in the purchase of
equipment which had not yet been delivered.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

Net Current Assets

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had net current assets of
approximately RMB139.8 million, including current assets of
RMB349.6 million and current liabilities of RMB209.8 million.

Banking Facilities

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had aggregate banking facilities
of approximately RMB200 million, of which approximately RMB120
million had not been utilized.
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FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

In 2014, the Group's sales were mainly denominated in RMB, US
dollars and Hong Kong dollars, while its purchases were mainly
denominated in RMB, US dollars, Hong Kong dollars and Japanese
Yen. The trade receivables denominated in US dollars were less than
the trade payables denominated in US dollars, and the trade
receivables denominated in Hong Kong dollars were greater than the
trade payables denominated in Hong Kong dollars. Meanwhile, the
Group is exposed to risks in respect of trade payables denominated
in Japanese Yen, but is basically not exposed to risks in respect of
trade receivables denominated in Japanese Yen. In the event of
vigorous fluctuation of the exchange rate, foreign currencies risk will
exist to a certain extent.

As the Group has a certain amount of short-term financing
denominated in US dollars which is not hedged, it is also exposed to
foreign currencies risk to a certain extent.

STAFF

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group had a total of 1,359
staff, whose remunerations and benefits are determined based on
the market, state policies and individual performance.
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The Board has always strived to maintain a high standard of
corporate governance and to make every effort to comply with all
relevant code provisions as stipulated in the Corporate Governance
Code (the "CG Code") as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited. The Board believes that good corporate governance
not only safeguards the values of the Company but also creates
value for the Company. The Board reviews the Company’s corporate
governance practice and opines that the Company has complied
with the CG Code during the year ended 31 December 2014, save for
the exception as stated and explained below:

1. Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code states that the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. The Company
does not have a separate chairman and chief executive officer
and Mr. Chen Weirong currently holds both positions. The
Board believes that vesting the roles of both chairman and
chief executive officer in the same person provides the Group
with strong and consistent leadership, and allows for more
effective planning and execution of long term business
strategies and enhances the efficiency of decision making
process in response to the ever changing business
environments.

2. The Company did not complied with code provision A.1.8 of
the CG Code that requires an issuer to arrange appropriate
insurance cover in respect of legal action against its directors.
However, the Board actively negotiated with its insurance
agent and reached an agreement by the end of the year. The
insurance cover subsequently took effect in January 2015.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition of the Board

The Board is responsible for setting the Group's business objectives,
devising strategic plans and operation policies and overseeing the
Group’s performance. As at 31 December 2014, there are 11
members in the Board comprising 3 executive directors, 3 non-
executive directors and 5 independent non-executive directors.
Members of the Board have different expertise, skills and experience,
providing the Company with valuable ideas and advices. The
presence of the five independent non-executive directors ensures
that enough independent views can be heard in the Board.

The executive directors of the Board participate in the Group’s daily
operation and management, convey the clear picture of the
direction, business objectives and goals of the Company to the staff.
They keep track of the performance of the senior management with
reference to the goals and objectives set by the Board.
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The biographical details of the directors are set out on pages 6 to 10
of this annual report. The composition of the Board and the
Ccommittees of the Board as at the date of this report is given below:

Executive Directors
Mr. Chen Weirong (Chairman) (Chief Executive Officer and
member of Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee)
Mr. Jin Wenping
Mr. Wang Ye

Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Cheng Wusheng

Mr. Zhang Zhilin

Mr. Chen Hao

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus (Chairman of Audit Committee and
member of Remuneration Committee)

Mr. Liu Huanbin (Chairman of both Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee and member of Audit Committee)

Mr. Pan Wei (member of Audit Committee and
Remuneration Committee)

Mr. Liang Rong

Mr. Mak Ka Wing, Patrick

There is no financial, business, family or other material or relevant
relationship among the directors. The Company has received from
each of the independent non-executive directors an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Nomination Committee has assessed the independence
of all the independent non-executive directors and the Board is
satisfied with their independence.

Board Diversity Policy

The Company realizes that high diversity of the Board allows it to
consider matters from different perspectives and conduct discussion
with a more balanced view. Hence, the Nomination Committee has
adopted a policy of increasing diversity of the Board (“Board Diversity
Policy”) through giving careful consideration to the expertise,
educational background, professional qualification and experience in
both business and non-business areas. The Nomination Committee
reviews the composition of the Board from time to time to ensure
that such policy is properly adopted and maintained. The Nomination
Committee also revisits the Board Diversity Policy from time to time
to ensure that the policy stays relevant and appropriate in the
changing business environments.
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Responsibilities

The directors of the Board, appointed by shareholders of the
Company in the general meeting, are entrusted with the duties
including setting the business objectives of the Group, devising
strategic plans for the development of the Group’s business,
monitoring the execution of the plans and assessing the
effectiveness and efficiency of the Company’s operation in attaining
the goals. The Board believes that clear and coherent corporate
values and standards can facilitate the management’s fiduciary
duties of safeguarding the interests of the Company'’s stakeholders
and creating values for the Company. Therefore the Board has put
considerable efforts on ensuring that the management as well as the
staff share the same values and standards. The Board is also
responsible for business activities like acquisition and disposal
transactions, connected transactions, investments and capital
expenditures and discuss the related issues thoroughly.

The Board delegates the duties of daily operation and execution of
business plans to the chief executive officer and senior management
under the Board's close supervision and constant monitoring. The
Board also carries out periodic appraisal of the performance of the
management and achievements of the preset business goals.
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Continuous Professional Development

To keep all directors abreast of the latest developments of the
Company and the regulatory requirements so that they can carry out
their duties diligently, the Company arranges suitable training and
materials for the directors to enhance their skills and knowledge. A
summary of continuous professional development each directors did
participate during the financial year according to the records
provided is set below:

REER  flmERA -

HEREEEREMEEN BAERCEEREH
e  gBRIEY EHER
Attending seminar, Reading materials like
conference and newspaper, journals
EEHA workshop related to  and updates relevant to
Name of Director director’s duties corporate governance
HITES
Executive Directors
FRIZ &S A
Mr. Chen Weirong v v
WO A&
Mr. Jing Wenping v v
FrEES A
Mr. Wang Ye v v
FHITES
Non-executive Directors
RS &
Mr. Chen Hao v v
BRALE
Mr. Cheng Wusheng v v
SREMEE
Mr. Zhang Zhilin v v
BYEHITES
Independent Non-executive Directors
KEEREAE
Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus v v
EEEE
Mr. Pan Wei v v
UMM 5 A
Mr. Liu Huanbin v v
Mr. Liang Rong v v
Mr. Mak Ka Wing, Patrick v v
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Appointments, Re-election and Removal of Directors

The articles of association of the Company, of which a copy has
been posted on websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited respectively, clearly lay out the proper
procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal of
Board directors. It also requires that at least one-third of the
directors for the time being shall retire from office by rotation at
each annual general meeting provided that every director shall be
subject to retirement at an annual general meeting at least once
every three years, which coheres with the requirements set out in
the CG Code of the Listing Rules. A retiring director shall be eligible
for re-election at the annual general meeting. Besides, any new
director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall submit
himself/herself for re-election by Shareholders at the first general
meeting.

All non-executive directors (including independent non-executive
directors) of the Company have been appointed for a term of three
years from the date of their appointments. The Nomination
Committee is responsible for reviewing the composition of the Board
from time to time and making recommendations to the Board so as
to enhance expertise, knowledge and experience of the Board.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board establishes three Board committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee for overseeing specific aspects of the Company’s
operation. All Board committees are established with defined written
terms of reference which are available to Shareholders upon
request.

Audit Committee

As at 31 December 2014, the Audit Committee comprised five
independent non-executive directors, namely, Mr. Chu Kin Wang,
Peleus (Chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr. Pan Wei, Mr. Liu
Huanbin, Mr. Liang Rong and Mr. Mak Ka Wing, Patrick.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee are to (i) review the
financial statements and reports and consider any significant or
unusual items raised by the staff responsible for the accounting and
financial reporting function or external auditor before submission to
the Board,; (ii) review the relationship with the external auditor by
reference to the work performed by the auditor, their fees and terms
of engagement, and make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditor; and
(iii) review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
financial reporting system, internal control system and risk
management system and associated procedures.
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During the year ended 31 December 2014 the Audit Committee met
three times and reviewed the financial results and reports, financial
reporting and compliance procedures, report of the Company’s
internal control and risk management review and the re-appointment
of the external auditor. The Audit Committee has reviewed and
approved the Group's annual results for the year ended 31
December 2014.

Remuneration Committee

As at 31 December 2014, the Remuneration Committee comprised 4
members, namely, Mr. Liu Huanbin (chairman of the committee), Mr.
Pan Wei and Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus, being independent non-
executive directors, and Mr. Chen Weirong, being executive director.

The principal objectives of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations on and approving the remuneration
policies and structure and remuneration packages of the directors
and senior management. The Remuneration Committee is also
responsible for establishing transparent procedures for developing
such remuneration policy and structure that no director or any of
his/her associates will participate in deciding his/her own
remuneration packages.

The Remuneration Committee adopts the approach of making
recommendation to the Board on the compensation packages of the
directors and senior management with reference to the skill,
knowledge, experience and the tasks assigned and individuals’
performance and overall results of the Company. In determining the
remuneration package, the Remuneration Committee also obtain
reports, surveys and relevant information from external sources for
the competitive level of remuneration and market trend for the
directors and senior management. The Remuneration Committee
forms an opinion that the current directors’ fees for the directors and
remuneration for the senior management for their duties and
responsibilities undertaken are commensurate with the market level.

Nomination Committee

As at 31 December 2014, the Nomination Committee comprised 3
members, namely, Mr. Liu Huanbin and Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus,
being independent non-executive directors and Mr. Chen Weirong,
being executive director. Mr. Liu Huanbin was the chairman of the
Nomination Committee. The Nomination Committee’s major principal
are to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
reappointment of directors according to the Articles of Association.
The Nomination Committee reviews the composition of the Board
whenever necessary to meet the business demands, opportunities
and challenges and to comply with the laws and regulations.

The Nomination Committee has adopted Board Diversity Policy when
carrying out the process of selecting and recommending candidates
for directorships. The committee believes that a board comprising
members with wide spectrum of skills, experience, education and
cultural backgrounds could help the Company achieve the goals.
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Name of Directors

Board and Committee Meetings

Regular board and committee meetings are held for directors to
discuss and determine the strategies of the Group, monitor the
execution of plans, review the Group’s business performance and
financial reporting as well as all other material matters. The company
secretary is responsible for preparing and keeping minutes of all
board and committee meetings. All directors have full access to the
advice and services of the company secretary to ensure that the
Board procedures and all applicable rules and regulations are
followed. Details of directors’ at the meetings of board and
committees during the year ended 31 December 2014 are set out
below:

HE/ EERE
HZ2014512A31BLLEE
Attendance/Number of meetings
for the year ended 31 December 2014
ERZEY yMEES REZE®
Exg Audit Remuneration Nomination
Board Committee Committee Committee

PRIZSREE

Mr. Chen Weirong
BOCEEE

Mr. Jing Wenping
FrEEE

Mr. Wang Ye
BRESE

Mr. Cheng Wusheng
REMEE

Mr. Zhang Zhilin

BRE &

Mr. Chen Hao

EEEE

Mr. Pan Wei

Elley S

Mr. Liu Huanbin
RERFEE

Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus
Mr. Liang Rong

Mr. Mak Ka Wing, Patrick

5/5 i ”n 171
N/A

5/5 TEH TEM TEM

N/A N/A N/A

5/5 TEH TEM TEM

N/A N/A N/A

4/5 TEH TEM TEM

N/A N/A N/A

4/5 TEH TEM TEM

N/A N/A N/A

475 i T -
N/A N/A

475 3/3 ”n A

N/A

475 2/3 17 171

475 3/3 il 171

475 3/3 T A

N/A N/A

475 3/3 T A

N/A N/A
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Model Code for Dealing in Securities by Directors

The CG Code stipulates that directors must comply with their
obligations under the Model Code set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules. The Company has established written guidelines on no
less exacting terms than the Model Code (the “Employees Written
Guidelines”) for governing the securities transactions by employees
who are likely to be in possession of unpublished price-sensitive
information of the Company or its securities.

Specific enquiry has been made of each director of the Board, all
directors confirm that they have fully complied with the Model Code
and no incident of noncompliance of the Employees Written
Guidelines by the relevant employees was noted by the Company
throughout the year ended 31 December 2014.

Company Secretary

Mr. Leung Wai Chung, a full time employee of the Company, is the
company secretary of the Company, responsible for arranging all
Board procedures and activities. All members of the Board have
direct access to the services and advice of the company secretary.
During the financial year, Mr. Leung has complied with relevant
professional training requirement pursuant to Rule 3.29 of the Listing
Rules.

FINANCIAL REPORTING AND AUDIT

Financial reporting

The Board, with the assistance by the Group’s Chief Financial Officer,
is responsible for overseeing the preparation of accounts for each
financial period with a view to ensuring such accounts give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the results
and cash flow for that period. The Company’s accounts are prepared
in accordance with all relevant statutory requirements and applicable
accounting standards and the Board reviews those accounting
policies as selected and applied to ensure that appropriate judgment
and estimates be made in a prudent and reasonable manner. The
Board has received from the senior management of the Company
the management accounts and such accompanying explanation and
information as are necessary to enable the Board to make an
informed assessment for approving the financial statements.

The Directors have acknowledged their responsibilities for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2014. The statement about the reporting responsibilities
for the financial statements is also set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on pages 39 to 41 of this annual report.
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Auditor’s Remuneration

CCIF CPA Limited are primarily responsible for providing audit
services in connection with the annual consolidated financial
statements of the Company. During the year, the total remuneration
payable to the Company’s external auditor amounted to RMBO0.67
million, with breakdown as follows:

Fri AR 75 BN ENER
Services rendered Fee paid/payable
=B AR TS AREEQ67TEETT
Audit services RMBO0.67 million
A% BAR TS e
Non-audit services nil
st AREEQ6TEETT
Total RMBO0.67 million
A S B 2 Internal Control
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The problems associated with the mobile phone trading business
gave rise to the auditor’s qualified opinion on the Company'’s annual
results for the year ended 31 December 2011. A special committee
was set up in May 2012 to look into the internal control issues and
propose remedial measures. The special committee resolved to
appoint Shinewing Risk Services Limited (“Shinewing”) to conduct a
review of the mobile phone trading business. Shinewing submitted a
draft of the related interim report to the Board for comments and
discussion in September 2012. In April 2013, trading in the shares of
the Company was suspended as a result of the Company's failure to
publish the required results announcements and the related reports
in accordance with the Listing Rules. In response to the latest
development, the special committee decided to appoint Pan China
(HK) CPA Limited (“Pan China”) as the additional consultant to
conduct a more thorough review of the internal control system. Pan
China subsequently replaced Shinewing following Shinewing's
resignation in August 2013.

Pan China submitted the first report to the Board in November 2013
which listed out deficiencies of the Group's internal control system
with corresponding remedial measures. Under the guidance of the
special committee, the Board started to implement the proposed
remedial measures to lift up the standard of the Group’s internal
control. Pan China carried out a follow-up review in early 2014 and
issued a final report in March 2014 concluding that an effective
internal control system was in place.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company'’s website remains the major communication platform
to provide its shareholders and potential investors with its up-to-date
information on the Company’s business activities and development.
The Company endeavours to abide by the practice of timely
disclosure of useful information with high degree of integrity so that
stakeholders of the Company can assess the performance of the
Company when making their business decisions. The practice of
timely disclosures of information with high degree of integrity allows
shareholders and any other parties concerned to make judgment.

The annual general meeting of the Company provides an important
channel for shareholders to exchange ideas with the Board. Notices
and circulars regarding the annual general meeting and other
general meetings are given in well advance to ensure that
shareholders have sufficient time and information to prepare for the
meetings. During the general meetings, the directors of the Company
will answer questions and queries raised by the attending
shareholders and the Board believes that such face to face
interaction with shareholders can promotion mutual understanding
between the Company and shareholders. The Company embarks on
arranging as many members of the Board to attend the annual
general meeting as possible. For the annual general meeting held on
12 September 2014, 3 directors of the Company, namely Mr. Chen
Weirong, Mr. Jing Wenping and Mr. Pan Wei, attended the meeting.
The rest of the Board were not able to attend the meeting as they
were engaged in either their business or personal schedules.
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The Directors are pleased to present the annual report and the
audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and the
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 20 to the financial
Statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 42 to 43.

No interim dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2014
was declared. The Board recommends no final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2014.

RESERVES
Details of movements in reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial
Statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company's reserves available for distribution as at 31 December
2014 amounted to approximately RMB396,253,000 (2013:
RMB416,985,000).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment and fixed
assets of the Company are set out in note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of movements in share capital of the Company are set out in
note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company during the year and as of the date of
this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chen Weirong (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Jing Wenping

Mr. Wang Ye

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chen Hao

Mr. Cheng Wusheng

Mr. Zhang Zhilin

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus

Mr. Pan Wei

Mr. Liu Huanbin

Mr. Liang Rong

Mr. Mak Ka Wing, Patrick

Retirement and reappointment of Directors

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company, one-third of
the directors for the time being should retire from office by rotation
at every annual general meeting of the Company. Mr. Jing Wenping,
Mr. Pan Wei and Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus shall retire from office by
rotation at the coming annual general meeting. Mr. Jing, Mr. Pan and
Mr. Chu, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.

STATUS OF INDEPENDENT OF NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each independent non-executive
director an annual written confirmation with respect to his
independence pursuant to Rules 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all independent non-executive directors to be
independent on the basis of information provided by the diectors.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Executive Directors

One of the Executive Directors has entered into a service agreement
with the Company for a term of 3 years until termination by giving no
less than 3 months” written notice to the other party or pursuant to
the terms of the agreement, and the rest have no service agreement.
However, all Executive Directors are subject to the retirement and
rotation requirements in accordance with the Company’s articles of
association.
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Non-executive Directors and Independent Non-executive
Directors

All Non-executive Directors and Independent Non-executive
Directors have entered into a service agreement with the Company
for a term of 3 years. The appointment shall comply with the
retirement and rotation requirements in accordance with the
Company’s articles of association.

Save as disclosed above, no director has a service contract with the
Company or any of its subsidiaries which is expiring within one year
or determinable by the employer within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation). The Company
has no service contract with the directors with a term of more than 3
years or not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS” EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments paid to the Company’s directors is determined
based on their respective terms of service agreement (if any). The
directors’ fee is reviewed annually by the Remuneration Committee
and the board of directors is authorized by the shareholders at the
annual general meeting to approve the emoluments of the directors.
Details of emoluments paid and to be paid to the Company’s
directors for the financial year ended 31 December 2014 are set out
in note 11 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save for the connected transactions as stated in the report, no
contracts of significance relating to the business of the Group to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in
which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The principles and practices of corporate governance of the
Company are set out under the section of “Corporate Governance
Report” on page 18 to 27.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of Cayman Islands where the
Company was incorporated, which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing Shareholders of the
Company.

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS
The biographies of directors and senior management are set out on
page 6 to page 10 in the report.
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DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVFE’S INTERESTS

At 31 December 2014, the directors’ interests and short positions in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ")) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code") contained in the Listing Rules were as follows:

LB BT
17 4R
BABEDLE
EZBEREE HEE Approximate
Number of ordinary shares RoEE percentage of
BERER AEER Number of total interests
EEHR Beneficial  Corporate underlying #%  inthe share
Name of Director Interests Interests shares Total in issue
PRIZEE A4 - 143,044,000 1,400,000® 144,444,000 35.62%
Mr. Chen Weirong
TRELA - 2,400,000 1,500,000 3,900,000 0.96%
Mr. Wang Ye
BRERE - 16,174,000 - 16,174,000 3.99%
Mr. Cheng Wusheng
SREMEE - 23,106,0009 - 23,106,000 5.70%

Mr. Zhang Zhilin
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Notes:

Mr. Chen Weirong legally owned 100% of the issued share capital of
Eversharp Management Limited (“Eversharp”), which in turn legally
owned 36.71% of the issued share capital of EY SHINE Management
Limited (“EY Shine"). Mr. Chen Weirong also legally owned 53.15% of
the issued share capital of Everbright Management Limited
(“Everbright”) which in turn owned 19.40% of the issued share capital
of EY Shine. EY Shine legally owned 100% of EY Ocean Management
Limited (“EY Ocean”) which was interested in 143,044,000 shares of the
Company. For the purposes of Part XV of the SFO, Mr. Chen Weirong
was deemed to be interested in all the shares held by EY Ocean.

These shares were owned by WUSHENG Management Limited of which
Mr. Cheng Wusheng had 100% equity interest of the issued share
capital.

These shares were owned by ZHILIN Management Limited of which Mr.
Zhang zhilin had 100% equity interest of the issued share capital.

Mr. Wang Ye legally owned 8.65% of the issued capital of Everbright
which in turn owned 19.40% of EY shine. Therefore Mr. Wang was
indirectly interested in approximately 2,400,000 shares of the
company.

These represented interests in the share options granted under the
share option scheme adopted on 30 November 2007, further details of
the share option scheme are set out in the section “Share Option
Scheme” hereof.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, none of the
directors nor the chief executives of the Company (including their
spouse and children under 18 years of age) had or was deemed to
have any interest or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO).
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS

So far as the directors and management of the Company were
aware, as at 31 December 2014, shareholders (other than the
directors and chief executive of the Company) who had an interest
or short position in the Company’s shares or underlying shares as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the
SFO were as follows:

HE BT

IR AL

Aokt

Fris Approximate
ROEE percentage of

RERERE Bt EE Number of issued share
Name of Shareholder Notes shares held capital
PRIZER T 1 143,044,000 35.28%
Mr. Chen Weirong

EY Ocean Management Limited 1 143,044,000 35.28%
EY SHINE Management Limited 1 143,044,000 35.28%
Eversharp Management Limited 1 143,044,000 35.28%
Legend New-Tech Investment Limited 2 26,910,000 6.64%
Right Lane Limited 2 26,910,000 6.64%
B IR B R A A 2 26,910,000 6.64%
Legend Holding Limited*

PERIEREREELEBR AT 2 26,910,000 6.64%
Chinese Academy of Sciences Holdings Co., Ltd.*

BAAERAR AR I HRE 2 26,910,000 6.64%
Employees’ Shareholding Society of Legend Holding Limited

HEQ Management Limited 3 20,795,000 5.13%
ZHILIN Management Limited 4 23,106,000 5.70%
TRALEL ST 5 28,299,000 6.98%

Mr. Xu Chuncheng

* For identification purpose only
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Notes:

1. These 143,044,000 ordinary shares in the Company were beneficially
owned by EY Ocean Management Limited (“"EY Ocean”). EY Ocean was
a wholly owned subsidiary of EY Shine Management Limited (“EY
Shine”). Eversharp Management Limited (“Eversharp”) was beneficially
interested in 36.71% of the issued capital of EY Shine, representing
more than one-third of voting shares in EY Shine. Eversharp was
therefore deemed to be interested in all the shares held by EY Ocean.
Mr. Chen Weirong, the executive director and chairman of the
Company, was beneficially interested in 100% of issued capital of
Eversharp.

2. Legend New-Tech Investment Limited (“Legend New-Tech”) was
beneficially interested in 26,910,000 shares of the Company. Legend
New-Tech was also a wholly-owned subsidiary of Right Lane Limited
("Right Lane"). B 78 ¥ §& A R 2 &) (Legend Holding Limited*) legally
owned 50% of the issued share capital of Right Lane Limited and also
owned the remaining 50% of the issued share capital of Right Lane
Limited as a beneficiary of two trusts. Liu Chuanzhi was holding 25% of
the issued share capital of Right Lane Limited as a trustee for and on
behalf of Legend Holding Limited. Zhang Zuxiang was holding 25% of
the issued share capital of Right Lane Limited as a trustee for and on
behalf of Legend Holding Limited. BRI 2B A & EL L HR A A
(Chinese Academy of Sciences Holdings Co., Ltd.*) beneficially owned
65% of the total issued shares of B #1812 %5 R 22 7] (Legend Holding
Limited*) and #2832 iR B PR A 18 T#7A% & (Employees’ Shareholding
Society of Legend Holding Limited*) legally owned the remaining 35%
of the issued shares.

3. The company, which beneficially owned the 20,795,000 shares of the
Company, was 100% owned by a former director Mr. Li Hegiu who did
not seek re-election as a director of the Company and resigned from
his office upon the conclusion of the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 31 May 2010.

4. The company, which beneficially owned the 23,106,000 shares of the
Company, was 100% owned by Mr. Zhang Zhilin, a non-executive
director of the Company.

5. Mr. Xu Chuncheng legally owned 11.89% of the issued capital of
Everbright which in turn owned 19.40% of EY Shine, therefore Mr. Xu
was indirectly interested in approximately 3,299,000 shares of the
Company. Mr. Xu was also beneficially interested in 25,000,000 shares
of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, the Company had not been notified of any
other person who had an interest or short position in the Company’s
shares or underlying shares which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company and the Stock Exchange and as recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO, or was otherwise a
substantial shareholder (as such term is defined in the Listing Rules)
of the Company.

* For identification purpose only
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Summaries of the share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”)
adopted by all shareholders of the Company on 30 November 2007
are set out in note 30 to the financial statements.

Particulars of the movement of options granted under the Share
Option Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2014 were as
follows:

R2014 % R2014E
1818 128318
HRTE REH iy REE REH R
BRTEE  Outstanding R T bt Wi Outstanding
RERSRENERAER Exercise asat Granted  Exercised  Forfeited  Cancelled asat figid
Name or category of eligible RS price 1 January during during during during 31 December Exercise
participants Date of grant per share 2014 theperiod  theperiod  the period  the period 2014 period
Ez
Directors
BESEE 20085173228 1,052 1,400,000 - - - - 1,400,000 *
Mr. Chen Weirong 22 January 2008 HK$1.052 *
TEEE 2008F1A 228 1,052 1,500,000 - - - - 1,500,000 *
Mr. Wang Ye 22 January 2008 HK$1.052 *
N 2,900,000 - 2,900,000
Sub-total
BREEAR  EER
HhRERSHRE (LE) 2008514228 1052%7L 11,900,000 - - (1,100,000) - 10,800,000 *
Senior management, Employees
and Other qualifying
participants (in aggregate) 22 January 2008 HK$1.052 *
2y
Total 14,800,000 - (1,100,000) - 13700,000
* IS ERF AN ZMEES0 - *  Please refer to note 30 to the financial statements for details.
s By A S > BBk ARRANGEMENT TO PURCHASE SHARES OR

DEBENTURES

Other than the above share option scheme, at no time during the
year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries or the holding
companies of the Company or any subsidiaries of its holdings
companies a party to any arrangements to enable the directors of
the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body

B b2t 1) BS B HE R E1 5 - ME AR A E
(R PNCIE NNz GNCTE E23 @/ NCl A= o )
MEAR  WEEHRRHFEARRERAREER
AR RAL A E AR A (D S B2 ME A A a5

corporate.
HHIR B TR h 2 B DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS
AARZESMEESTMEREFELRERSE  The Company’s directors had no interests in any business that may
FHEBEER © compete with the Group’s business.
Y X SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

RIBEARAMATHAHERERESHAA -
NEEREBONARE 2 ABRET S LELER
RANDRFFRE -

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors, the Company has
confirmed that it has maintained a sufficient public float in the
market as at the date of the report.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold
or redeemed shares of the Company during the year ended 31
December 2014.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

During the year, the Company had no contract entered into in
respect of the management or administration of the overall business
or any material business.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available
to the Shareholders of the Company by reason of their holding of the
Company’s securities.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
During the year, the percentage of purchases from the major
suppliers of the Group to total purchases of the Group is as follow:

Percentage of purchases from the largest supplier

of the Group to total purchases: 23.88%
Percentage of purchases from top five suppliers
of the Group to total purchases: 53.25%

No directors nor their associates have interests in the above
suppliers.

During the year, the percentage of sales from the major customers
of the Group to the total sales of goods and services of the Group is
as follows:

Percentage of sales from the largest customer of

the Group to total sales of goods and services 3.18%
Goods and services sold by the Group to its
top five customers during the year 14.91%

None of the directors, nor their associates or any shareholders
holding more than 5% of the share capital of the Company has an
interest in the customers referred to above.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year the Group had entered into certain material
transactions with parties which were regarded as “Related Parties”
under the applicable accounting principles. Details of those related
parties transactions are set out in note 36 to the financial statements.
Some of these transactions which are considered to be connected
or continuous connected transactions under the Listing Rules are
further disclosed in following section “Connected Transactions”.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Material Purchase Agreement with DG Guangtong

On 23 May 2014, =3I F 5 R 2% R A R 2 7 (“SZ Eyang”), an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a
material purchase agreement (“Material Purchase Agreement”) with
HEMHABEEAR A A ('DG Guangtong”) for a term valid to 31
December 2016. Pursuant to the agreement, SZ Eyang purchased
material from DG Guangtong on a normal commercial term. The
maximum annual cap during the term of the Material Purchase
Agreement is RMB2,000,000 (“Purchase Cap”).

Agreements with SZ Eycom

SZ Eyang and Dongguan Eyang Technology Development Co., Ltd.
(“DG Eyang") entered into new leasing agreements with &3 &8
Bl B BR A 7 (“SZ Eycom”) on 1 January 2012 and 1 August 2012
regarding the premises occupied by SZ Eycom and its subsidiaries
(“New Leasing Agreements”). On 1 January 2012 SZ Eyang and SZ
Eycom also entered a new purchase agreement with respect to the
supply of MLCC products by SZ Eyang to SZ Eycom (“New MLCC
Purchase Agreement”). Both of the New Leasing Agreements and
New MLCC Purchase Agreement expired on 31 December 2014. The
maximum aggregate annual cap during the term of the New Leasing
Agreements and New Purchase Agreement was RMB13,129,000
("Aggregated Cap”).

Premises Leasing Agreement with Anhui Eycom

On 23 May 2014, %zﬂlé?f—% BEFRIFAR AT (“Anhui Jineyang”),
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a
premises leasing agreement (“Premises Leasing Agreement”) with %
Bt a2 BEREIS R AR A A (“Anhui Eycom”) for terms valid to 31
December 2016 with a maximum annual cap of RMB177,800
(“Premises Leasing Cap”).

The Material Purchase Agreement, New Leasing Agreements, New
MLCC Purchase Agreement and Premises Leasing Agreement fall
under the definition of continuous connected transaction pursuant
to the Listing Rules, and the Purchase Cap, Aggregated Cap and
Premises Leasing Cap are less than 5% of the applicable ratios and
therefore subject to reporting and announcement requirements only
in accordance with Rule 14A.76(2) of the Listing Rules.

As at 31 December 2014, (1) the total amount of material purchased
by SZ Eyang under the Material Purchase Agreement was
approximately RMB430,000 (2013: nil); (2) the total rental receipt from
S7 Eycom under the New Leasing Agreements and total purchase by
SZ Eycom under the Purchase Agreement were approximately
RMB1,985,000 and RMB4,109,000 respectively (2013: RMB2,129,000
and RMB5,913,000 respectively), and (3) and the total rental receipt
under the Premises Leasing Agreement was approximately
RMB135,000 (2013: nil).
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The Company'’s auditor has confirmed that:

0]

(in

(iii)

(iv)

nothing has come to their attention that causes them to
believe that the disclosed continuing connected transactions
have not been approved by the Company’s board of directors;

for transactions involving purchase of materials from DG
Guangtong, sale of MLCC to SZ Eycom, leasing premises to SZ
Eycom and leasing premises to Anhui Eycom, nothing has
come to their attention that causes them to believe that the
transactions were not, in all material respects, in accordance
with the pricing policies of the Group;

nothing has come to their attention that causes them to
believe that the transactions were not entered into, in all
material respects, in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing such transactions; and

with respect to the aggregate amount of each of the continuing
connected transactions set out above, nothing has come to
their attention that causes them to believe that the disclosed
continuing connected transactions have exceeded the
maximum annual cap as set by the Company.

The Independent Non-executive Directors have reviewed these
transactions and confirmed that the continuing connected
transactions have been entered into:

0]
(in

(iii)

in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Company;
normal commercial terms or better; and
according to the agreement governing them on terms that are

fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders as
awhole.

AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year are audited by CCIF CPA
Limited. The auditor shall retire at the forthcoming annual general
meeting, but has agreed to offer themselves for re-appointment.
According to the advice of the Audit Committee, a resolution will be
proposed at the coming annual general meeting to re-appoint CCIF
CPA Limited as the auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Chen Weirong
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 March, 2015
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Independent Auditor’'s Report to the Shareholders of
EYANG Holdings (Group) Co., Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of EYANG
Holdings (Group) Co., Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 42 to 144, which comprise
the consolidated and company statements of financial position as at
31 December 2014, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to
you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified audit opinion.

BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION

As detailed in the auditor’s report dated 16 July 2014, we were
unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence about the
sales and purchase transactions in relation to the trading of mobile
phone business during the year ended 31 December 2012. Any
adjustments that might have been found to be necessary in respect
of the above would have a consequential effect on the net assets of
the Group as at 31 December 2012. Since certain balances at 31
December 2012 formed the basis for the calculation of the loss from
discontinued operation for the year ended 31 December 2013 and
the corresponding cash flows, we were unable to determine whether
the loss from discontinued operation for the year ended 31
December 2013, the net cash flows and the related disclosures were
free from material misstatement. Our audit opinion on the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2013 was qualified accordingly. Our opinion on the current year’s
consolidated financial statements is also modified because of the
possible effect of the matter on the comparability of the current
period’s figures and the corresponding figures.



¥y 37 A% SR PR

Independent Auditor’s Report

REER

EERE BREBERZEMBAMIEREEE
MATRERZ N ZER AV BHRER DB IEBERE
BHREENEEMAFRE BEARAE B
BER2014F 12 A3MBMEBHRA - & BEEEH
ZEZALFENEBEIRERE  YERBEE
CREMEBIDR R ER EZ BiRE -

RESETMERFERAT
HEEEFAD
F& 201563 A 24 H

%858
K & AR % P05206

QUALIFIED OPINION

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matter described
in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph, the consolidated
financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Company and of the Group as at 31 December 2014, and of the
Group's loss and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

CCIF CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 24 March 2015

Alvin Yeung Sik Hung
Practising Certificate Number P05206
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Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other revenue and other net income
Selling and distribution costs
Administrative expenses

Other expenses

Research and development costs

(Loss)/profit from operations
Finance costs

(Loss)/profit before taxation
Income tax

(Loss)/profit for the year from
continuing operation

Discontinued operations

Loss for the year from discontinued
operations

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive (loss)/income

for the year, net of nil tax

Item that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on

translation of foreign operations

Total comprehensive loss for
the year

B &
Notes

10

2014 5
2014

AR®TR
RMB'000

466,584
(431,230)

35,354

15,836
(22,052)
(41,635)

(4,964)
(32,424)

(49,885)
(4,005)

(53,890)
7,001

(46,889)

(46,889)

(1,448)

(48,337)

20134
2013
ARET T
RMB'000

513,150
(429,103)

84,047
15,786
(19,178
(39,217

(6,296

)
)
)
(21,601)

13,541
(4,500)
9,041

(8,132)

909

(6,282)

(5,373)

2,304

(3,069)
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20145 2013 F
2014 2013
B 5T AR® TR ARETIT
Notes RMB’'000 RMB'000
REUTEENEAATHEEA (Loss)/profit for the year
EEFE (BR), R : attributable to owners of the
Company arising from:
e Continuing operation (46,889) 909
%8 u:,%w o Discontinued operations - (6,282)
(46,889) (5,373)
BFEUTEENEAQATHEE A Total comprehensive (loss)/income
FEE2E (&) Wkz4% ©  attributable to owners of the
Company arising from:
BEREER Continuing operation (48,337) 3,213
BRI TS Discontinued operations - (6,282)
(48,337) (3,069)
AREAL AREAL
RMB cents RMB cents
SR (E58),BF (Loss)/earnings per share 15
REZFELSERRIEKEEERK  From continuing and discontinued
operations
AR R EE Basic and diluted (11.6) (1.3)
REFELSEEK From continuing operation
HR K #5% Basic and diluted (11.6) 0.2
RERIEREET From discontinued operations
EARAKNEE Basic and diluted - (1.5)

%SOE 144 B EBE AU
cEBERBEFEENBZEMNARRBA A ZR

,w}rl EAKIEE14 o

ERF SRR AY—3F  The notes on pages 50 to 144 form part of these financial statements.
Details of dividends payable to owners of the Company attributable

to profit for the year are set out in note 14.
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Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Investment properties
Prepaid land lease payments
Other intangible assets
Deferred tax assets

Current assets
Inventories
Trade and bills receivables
Prepayments, deposits and

other receivables

Due from related parties
Pledged deposits
Cash and bank balances

Current liabilities
Trade and bills payables
Deferred income, accruals and
other payables
Due to related parties
Tax payable
Bank loans
Dividends payable

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Deferred income
Deferred tax liabilities

NET ASSETS

B E

Notes

16
17
18
19
29(a)

21
22

23
36(C)

24
24

25

26
36(C)

28

27
29(b)

2014 £
2014

AR®BT T
RMB’'000

226,512
24,324
19,365

2,151
9,145
281,497

88,040
188,228

15,454

5,410
24,691
27,746

349,569

93,071

32,086

17,194
67,364
84

209,799

139,770

421,267

23,999
3,634

27,633

393,634

20134
2013
ARET T
RMB'000

261,167
18,296
19,853

1,170
3,771
304,257

76,907
227,129

12,823
5,474
128,411
53,941

504,685

108,336

36,211
2,400
22,732
170,275
254

340,208

164,477

468,734

20,732
6,031
26,763

441,971
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M 201412 A 31 B At 31 December 2014

2014 F 20134
2014 2013
B 5E AR%ETR ARETTT
Notes RMB’'000 RMB'000
EXR R CAPITAL AND RESERVES
A% 7 Share capital 32(a) 3,824 3,824
& Reserves 389,810 438,147
RATEE AELERER TOTAL EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY 393,634 441,971
MR2015F3 24 AEEESHEW R o Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 24
March 2015.
BRIZEEE BXEEE
Mr. Chen Weirong Mr. Jing Wenping
EF EFE
Director Director

FE0BERE MM BB LS FHRKRA —2 The notes on pages 50 to 144 form part of these financial
) e statements.
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2014 %12 A 31 B At 31 December 2014

2014 5% 20134
2014 2013
P ARET R ARETIT
Notes RMB’'000 RMB'000
kRBEE Non-current assets
Y -~ BE MR Property, plant and equipment 16 6 7
REB AR ZEE Investments in subsidiaries 20 319,550 365,001
319,556 365,008
REEE Current assets
A =N O] Due from subsidiaries 20(b) 98,722 75,407
W& MIRTTHE R Cash and bank balances 24 220 696
98,942 76,103
REAE Current liabilities
Efth pE A 2RI R FEET B R Other payables and accruals 26 776 1,949
FERTAR B Dividends payable 84 82
R EPNGIE ] Due to subsidiaries 20(b) 13,638 14,081
14,498 16,112
REBEERE Net current assets 84,444 59,991
EEFE NET ASSETS 404,000 424,999
BEARR#E CAPITAL AND RESERVES
&7 Share capital 32(a) 3,824 3,824
M Reserves 32(b) 400,176 421,175
RAREEAELBES TOTAL EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY 404,000 424,999

R2015FE3 A2 B EZE S EWIERET|ZE o Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 24

March 2015.
BRIZSREE B R RE
Mr. Chen Weirong Mr. Jing Wenping
EF EF
Director Director

FE0BERE MM BB LS FHRKRA —2 The notes on pages 50 to 144 form part of these financial
) e statements.

Annual Report 2014
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HZE2014412 A 31 8- Z For the year ended 31 December 2014

Attributable to owners of the Company

KARERAREER
Ex
ke RGEER BHBRY  BRERRE e EERE BEEA L
Share Share  Exchange
Share  premium Contributed option fluctuation  Statutory  Retained Total
capital account surplus reserve reserve reserve profits equity
ARETT  ARETE  ARETT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETr  ARETR  ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
R2013E1A18 At 1 January 2013 3824 104,657 208,407 4,560 2948 37,935 83,359 445,690
EEFE Loss for the year - - - - - - (5,373) (5,373)
BERIEBNERZE  Exchange differences on
translation of foreign
operations - - - - 2,304 - - 2,304
FEEABRLE Total comprehensive loss
for the year - - - - 2,304 - (5373 (3.069)
ERTEE Transfer to reserve - - - - - 2,833 (2833) -
FRREE DR (F15£33) Deemed distribution to the
shareholders (note 33) - - (650) - - - - (650)
BRELREERZEE  Transfer o retained profits
&7l upon forfeiture of
share options - - - (370) - - 370 -
RABELANER At 31 December 2013 and
014E1518 1 January 2014 3,824 104,657 207,757 4190 5252 40,768 75,523 441,91
FEER Loss for the year - - - - - - (46,889) (46,889)
BEEERMELZE  Exchange differences on
translation of foreign
operations - - - - (1,448 - - (1,448
FREABRLE Total comprehensive oss
for the year - - - - (1,448 - (46,889) 48,337)
BIVEATREAZRE  Transfer to retained profits
2 upon forfeiture of
share opinions - - - (267) - - 267 -
R2014E12 4318 At 31 December 2014 3,824 104,657 207,757 3,923 3,804 40,768 28,901 393,634

50 B £ 144 B & M T #E B It S B S Sk 1) — 6
2 o

The notes on pages 50 to 144 form part of these financial

statements.
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HZE2014412 A 31 B 1L Z For the year ended 31 December 2014

Operating activities
(Loss)/profit before taxation:

Continuing operation
Discontinued operations

Adjustments for:

Finance costs
Interest income
Depreciation
Amortisation of prepaid land lease
payments
Amortisation of other intangible assets
Reversal of impairment loss of trade
receivables
Reversal of forfeiture of deposit paid
Impairment loss of property,
plant and equipment
Write-down of inventories
Release of government grant as income
Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Changes in working capital

(Increase)/decrease in inventories

Decrease/(increase) in trade and
bills receivables

(Increase)/decrease in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables

Decrease in amounts due from
related parties

Decrease in trade and bills payables

(Decrease)/increase in deferred income,
accruals and other payables

(Decrease)/increase in amounts due to
related parties

Cash generated from operations

Interest received
PRC tax paid

Net cash generated from

operating activities

2014 5
2014

B 5 AR¥ET
Notes RMB’000

(53,890)

4,005
(2,549)
47,681

488
362

(27)
(1,100)

6,571
4,964
(1,005)

1,436

6,936

(16,097)
38,928
(1,531)
64
(15,265)
(3.630)

(2,400)

7,005
2,549
(6,308)

3,246

20134
2013

ARBTTT
RMB'000

9,041
(6,281)

4,500
(1,267)
32,785

488
189

(2,731)
2,326
6,296

(1,055)

1,054

45,345

26,076
(4,694)
2,475
SEOS
(9,013)
22,518

2,360

90,462
1,267
(3,540)

88,189



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HZE2014412 A 31 8- Z For the year ended 31 December 2014

REEE
BEYE BEMREZ
(N
BEEBLEEZNX

LEWE - WE R&HE
FTiS K18
e = — FAMHE 2 R e
EEZRe R F5E
LEWNBRAREEZRS
T EE

REFHACREFE

BMEEE
MERITE R Z FAEHRIR
BERITER
ERHE
7B AR5 B B

A Az B EMRITER
wA, ()

BMEEBAZREFE

IEQ&EEQ%FWZ
WD), F

R1A1BZBRERES
EEY

SNEERSE

MN12A3MBZEERES
£EY

RERBRESBUERDT

Be MRITHER
ERARRAZHE R
A A 2 B EMRITER

RESRERERIIKRZ
RERBEEEY

FS0B R 1M ERNWEEK IS

5 .

P aE
Notes

Investing activities
Payment for the purchase of property,
plant and equipment
Payment for the purchase of
intangible assets
Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Net cash outflow arising on loss of
control of a subsidiary 34
Net cash outflow from disposal of
subsidiaries 33

Net cash used in investing activities

Financing activities
Proceeds from new bank loans
Repayment of bank loans
Interest paid
Decrease/(increase) in pledged bank
deposits with original maturity of
over three months when acquired

Net cash used in financing activities

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at
1 January

Effect of foreign exchange
rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents at
31 December

Analysis of balances of cash and
cash equivalents
Cash and bank balances 24
Pledged bank deposits with original
maturity of less than three
months when acquired 24

Cash and cash equivalents as
stated in the consolidated
statement of cash flows

SR H R B — 8D
statements.

2014 5
2014

AR®T R
RMB'000

(25,172)
(1,343)

52

(26,463)

261,950
(364,861)
(2,169)

40,300

(64,780)

(87,997)

142,052

(1,618)

52,437

27,746

24,691

52,437

20134
2013

ARBTTT
RMB'000

(10,325)
(334)
637
(159)

(6,817)

(16,998)

264,274
(238,598)
(3,069)

(28,709)

(6,102)

65,089

77,104

(147)

142,052

53,941

88,111

142,052

The notes on pages 50 to 144 form part of these financial
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GENERAL INFORMATION

EYANG Holdings (Group) Co., Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 6 March 2007 as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised).
The Company'’s registered office address is the office of Codon
Trust Company (Cayman) Limited, Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands, and the head office and the principal place of business
of the Company are located at EYANG Building, No.3 Qimin
Street, No. 2 Langshan Road, North Area, Hi-Tech Industrial
Park, Nanshan District, Shenzhen, the PRC.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out
in note 20 to the financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(@) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs"), which comprise standards and
interpretations approved by the International Accounting
Standards Board (the “IASB”), and the International
Accounting Standards and Standing Interpretations
Committee Interpretations approved by the International
Accounting Standards Committee that remain in effect.
These financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, which for this financial year and
the comparative period continue to be those of the
predecessor Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32),
in accordance with transitional and saving arrangements
for Part 9 of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622), “Accounts and Audit”, which are set out in
sections 76 to 87 of Schedule 11 to that Ordinance. These
financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. A summary of the significant accounting policies
adopted by the Group is set out below.

The IASB has issued certain new and revised IFRSs which
are first effective or available for early adoption for the
current accounting period of the Group and the
Company. Note 3 provides information on any changes in
accounting policies resulting from the initial application
of these developments to the extent that they are
relevant to the Group for the current and prior
accounting periods reflected in these financial
statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2014 comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries (together referred to as “the Group”).

Items included in the financial statements of each entity
in the Group are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB")
and the functional currency of the Company is RMB.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with IFRSS requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgements about carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
IFRSs that have a significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty
are discussed in note 4.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(C)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. When assessing whether the
Group has power, only substantive rights (held by the
Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows and
any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent
that there is no evidence of impairment.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss.

In the Company's statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment loss (see note 2(h)).

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction
in progress, are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses
(see note 2(h)). The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss in
the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a
major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of
the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of
property, plant and equipment are required to be
replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as
individual assets with specific useful lives and
depreciation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful
life. The principal estimated useful lives and residual
values used for this purpose are as follows:

st A R E
Estimated Residual
useful lives values
EF Buildings 40 years or 10%
over the
remaining term
of the lease,
if shorter
A FHHEE
FIERF HA
(AR & R2%E)
MR R 2= Plant and machinery 5-10 years & 10%
WNE N B Office and other equipment 3-10 years & 10%
YRE Motor vehicles 4-10 years 10%

E-AYE BEERBEBEZHET
MOBBBTRZAIBENS  ZRAE 2
RAGABERANDELASE— 2D
DETE - RE ARFEHRTES
ARIBRERERR BRI RIEFTE
fELAE -

WE - BEEREERR (BREAN%H
ERZEEMMD) NHERFAMER L
HEBREBER TEEERKEERN =S
5 BRFERE - M AIRRERE E MR A
Bl hERBEEE 2 Wk
EBR HEBEELEMBHRIEFE
HRRE(EMEM 2 Z5

ERIREEETZBERRE - X
BB R A E DR EE RS AR &
TEIE - RABREZHRMEL
EEREERA - BIH B TR Al E#
EREER ZHEASHEEZTREER
EVE BEMREBRATEEZNE -

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is
allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and
each part is depreciated separately. Residual values,
useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed
and adjusted if appropriate, at least at the end of each
reporting period.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or l0ss on
disposal or retirement recognised in the profit or l0ss in
the period the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sale proceeds and the carrying amount
of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents plant and equipment
under construction, which is stated at cost less any
impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost
comprises the direct costs of construction during the
period of construction. Construction in progress is
reclassified to the appropriate category of property, plant
and equipment when completed and ready for its
intended use.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e)

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which
are owned or held under a leasehold interest (see note
2(g)) to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation. Such properties are initially measured at
cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Depreciation is
calculated on the straight-line basis over the estimated
useful lives of 40 years.

Any gains or losses from the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the profit or 0ss.
Rental income from investment properties is accounted
for as described in note 2(r)(ii).

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-
occupied properties, the deemed cost of a property for
subseqguent accounting is its carrying amount at the date
of change in use. If a property occupied by the Group as
an owner-occupied property becomes an investment
property, the Group accounts for such property in
accordance with the policy stated under “Property, plant
and equipment” up to the date of change in use.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value as at
the date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible
assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible
asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the
end of each reporting period.

The following intangible assets with finite useful lives are
amortised from the date they are available for use and
their estimated useful lives are as follows:

— computer software 10 years straight-line
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An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to use
a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of time in
return for a payment or a series of payments. Such a
determination is made based on an evaluation of the
substance of the arrangement and is regardless of
whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

(i

(ii)

(iii)

Classification of assets leased to the Group
Assets held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the Group are classified as operating leases.

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under
finance leases, the amounts representing the fair
value of the leased asset or, if lower, the present
value of the minimum lease payments of such
assets are included in property, plant and
equipment and the corresponding liabilities, net of
finance charges, are recorded as obligations under
finance leases. Depreciation is provided at rates
which write off the cost of the assets over the term
of the relevant lease or, where it is likely the Group
will obtain ownership of the asset, the life of the
asset, as set out in note 2(d). Impairment losses are
accounted for in accordance with the accounting
policy as set out in note 2(h). Finance charges
implicit in the lease payments are charged to profit
or loss over the period of the leases so as to
produce an approximately constant periodic rate of
charge on the remaining balance of the obligations
for each accounting period.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets under
operating leases, payments made under the leases
are charged to profit or loss in equal instalments
over the accounting periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the leased asset. Lease incentives
received are recognised in profit or loss as an
integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged as expenses
in the accounting period in which they are incurred.
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(iv)

(0

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building
elements, the Group assesses the classification of
each element as a finance or an operating lease
separately based on the assessment as to whether
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of each element have been transferred
to the Group, unless it is clear that both elements
are operating leases in which case the entire lease
is classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the
minimum lease payments (including any lumpsum
upfront payments) are allocated between the land
and the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the
land element and building element of the lease at
the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments
can be made reliably, interest in leasehold land that
is accounted for as an operating lease is presented
as "prepaid land lease payments” in the
consolidated statement of financial position and is
amortised over the lease term on a straight-line
basis.

Impairment of trade and other receivables
Current and non-current receivables that are stated
at cost or amortised cost are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period to determine whether
there is objective evidence of impairment. Objective
evidence of impairment includes observable data
that comes to the attention of the Group about one
or more of the following loss events:

— significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinguency in interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will
enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; and

— significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h)  Impairment of assets (continued)
(i) Impairment of trade and other receivables
(continued)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment 1oss is
determined and recognized as follows:

—  For trade and other current receivables and
other financial assets carried at amortised
cost, impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (that is,
the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition of these assets), where the effect
of discounting is material. This assessment is
made collectively where these financial
assets share similar risk characteristics, such
as similar past due status, and have not been
individually assessed as impaired. Future
cash flows for financial assets which are
assessed for impairment collectively are
based on historical loss experience for assets
with credit risk characteristics similar to the
collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be linked objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised, the impairment
loss is reversed through profit or loss. A reversal of
an impairment loss shall not result in the asset’s
carrying amount exceeding that which would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(h)

(i

(ii)

Impairment of trade and other receivables
(continued)

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for
impairment losses recognised in respect of trade
and bill receivables whose recovery is considered
doubtful but not remote. In this case, the
impairment losses for doubtful debts are recorded
using an allowance account. When the Group is
satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount
considered irrecoverable is written off against trade
debtors directly and any amounts held in the
allowance account relating to that debt are
reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously charged to the allowance account are
reversed against the allowance account. Other
changes in the allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off
directly are recognised in profit or l0ss.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may be
impaired or an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

—  property, plant and equipment;
— investment properties,

—  prepaid land lease payments,
— other intangible assets; and

— investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s
statement of financial position.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(h)

(ii)

Impairment of other assets (continued)
If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
higher of its fair value less costs of disposal
and its value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset
does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the
smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows independently (that is, a cash-
generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss if the carrying amount of an asset, or the
cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated to reduce the
carrying amount of the assets in the unit (or
group of units) on a pro rata basis, except
that the carrying amount of an asset will not
be reduced below its individual fair value less
costs of disposal (if measurable) or value in
use (if determinable).

Reversal of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or
loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(i)

Research and development costs
All research costs are charged to profit or loss as
incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new
products is capitalised and deferred only when the Group
can demonstrate the technical feasibility of completing
the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or
sale, its intention to complete and its ability to use or sell
the asset, how the asset will generate future economic
benefits, the availability of resources to complete the
project and the ability to measure reliably the
expenditure during the development. Product
development expenditure which does not meet these
criteria is expensed when incurred.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the weighted
average basis and, in the case of work in progress and
finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct labour
and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less
any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair
value and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less allowance for impairment
of doubtful debts (see note 2(h)), except where the
receivables are interest-free loans made to related
parties without any fixed repayment terms or the effect
of discounting would be immaterial. In such cases, the
receivables are stated at cost less allowance for
impairment of doubtful debts.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated
at amortised cost with any difference between the
amount initially recognised and redemption value being
recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings, together with any interest and fees payable,
using the effective interest method.
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Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value and are subsequently stated at amortised cost
unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition.

(0

(ii)

Short term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits are
accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are stated at
their present values.

Share-based payment transactions

The Company operates a share option scheme for
the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to
eligible participants who contribute to the success
of the Group’s operations. Employees (including
directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payment transactions,
whereby employees render services as
consideration for equity instruments (“equity-
settled transactions”) of the Company.

The cost of equity-settled transactions with
employees is measured by reference to the fair
value at the date at which they are granted. The fair
value is determined by an external valuer using a
binomial model.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

(0)

(ii)

Share-based payment transactions (continued)
The cost of equity-settled transactions is
recognised, together with a corresponding increase
in equity, over the period in which the performance
and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The
cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at the end of each reporting period
until the vesting date reflects the extent to which
the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to profit or
loss for a period represents the movement in the
cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning
and end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not
ultimately vest, except for equity-settled
transactions where vesting is conditional upon a
market or non-vesting condition, which are treated
as vesting irrespective of whether or not the market
or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that
all other performance and/or service conditions are
satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are
modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised
as if the terms had not been modified, if the original
terms of the award are met. In addition, an expense
is recognised for any modification that increases
the total fair value of the share-based payments, or
is otherwise beneficial to the employee as
measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is
treated as if it had vested on the date of
cancellation, and any expense not yet recognised
for the award is recognised immediately. This
includes any award where non-vesting conditions
within the control of either the Group or the
employee are not met. However, if a new award is
substituted for the cancelled award, and is
designated as a replacement award on the date
that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards
are treated as if they were a modification of the
original award, as described in the previous
paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is
reflected as additional share dilution in the
computation of earnings per share.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(PF

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period,
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their
tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided that
those differences relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse
either in the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary differences or in periods into which
a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be
carried back or forward. The same criteria are adopted
when determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they relate to the
same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and
are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which
the tax loss or credit can be utilised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(p)

Income tax (continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from the initial recognition of assets or liabilities
that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided
they are not part of a business combination), and
temporary differences relating to investments in
subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable
differences, the Group controls the timing of the reversal
and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in
the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow the related tax benefit to
be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent
that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution
of dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the
related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the
Group has the legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously; or
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(p)

(q)

Income tax (continued)

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if
they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

— the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each
future period in which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected
to be settled or recovered, intend to realise
the current tax assets and settle the current
tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a
past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of
money is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(r)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when the
revenue can be measured reliably, on the following
bases:

(i) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred to
the buyer, provided that the Group maintains
neither managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership, nor effective
control over the goods sold;

(i) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the
lease terms,

(i) interest income, on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that
discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate,
to the net carrying amount of the financial asset;

(iv) commission income, when services are rendered;
and

(v)  Revenue from sale of services is recognised when
the services are rendered.

Foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions recorded by the entities in
the Group are initially recorded using foreign exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the end of the reporting period. All differences arising on
settlement or translation of monetary items are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(s)

(t)

(u)

Foreign currencies (continued)

As at the end of the reporting period, the assets and
liabilities of foreign operations outside Mainland China
are translated into the presentation currency of the
Company at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of
the reporting period and their statements of profit or loss
are translated into RMB at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year. The resulting exchange
differences are recognized in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation
reserve.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of subsidiaries operating outside
Mainland China are translated into RMB at the exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of subsidiaries operating outside
Mainland China which arise throughout the year are
translated into RMB at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the
cost of that asset. The capitalisation of such borrowing
costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that
an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position initially when there is
reasonable assurance that they will be received and that
the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to
them.

Grants that compensate the Group for expenses incurred
are recognised as income in profit or loss on a systematic
basis in the same periods in which the expenses are
incurred. Specifically, government grants whose primary
condition is that the Group should purchase, construct or
otherwise acquire non-current assets are recognised as
deferred income in the consolidated statement of
financial position and transferred to profit or loss on a
systematic and rational basis over the useful lives of the
related assets.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(v)

(w)

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified
as a separate allocation of retained profits within the
equity section of the consolidated statement of financial
position, until they have been approved by the
shareholders in a general meeting. When these dividends
have been approved by the shareholders and declared,
they are recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’s memorandum and
articles of association grant the directors the authority to
declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim
dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when
they are proposed and declared.

Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group's
business, the operations and cash flows of which can be
clearly distinguished from the rest of the Group and
which represents a separate major line of business or
geographical area of operations, or is part of a single co-
ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of
business or geographical area of operations, or is a
subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon
disposal or when the operation meets the criteria to be
classified as held for sale, if earlier. It also occurs if the
operation is abandoned.

Where an operation is classified as discontinued, a single
amount is presented on the face of the statement of
profit or loss, which comprises:

— the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued
operation; and

— the post-tax gain or loss recognised on the
measurement to fair value less costs to sell, or on
the disposal, of the assets or disposal group(s)
constituting the discontinued operation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(x)

Related parties
(@ A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s parent.

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

(i)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity.
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2. FEEWERE) 2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(y) b (y) Segment reporting
KEDIR R ERRAFARENS Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
SDEIBE B IR EHRAERES item reported in the financial statements, are identified
@ (XTERERRE)IRHEURAER from the financial information provided regularly to the
ZTEEB N LA RIBETERD Group'’s board of directors (the chief operating decision
T2 & RIF M E B R E R R Rl o maker) for the purposes of allocating resources to, and
assessing the performance of, the Group's various lines
of business and geographical locations.
HEEREMS - [ER T AL S ) Individually material operating segments are not
WARFURNEE  BRIFZEDEEFE aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
PUBERFE - AR m RARTEIEE - segments have similar economic characteristics and are
EEREUHE  REERI%EE B similar in respect of the nature of products and services,
Ao SEEMBIRERE AR REE the nature of production processes, the type or class of
BIEMHE FEAL B BERIH - customers, the methods used to distribute the products
MEFAEZANBOLBBIEME  WIEE or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
BlEARNKESSZR] T INEE environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.
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INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“1FRSs”)

The Group has applied the following new and revised IFRSs
issued by the IASB.

Amendments to IFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27,
Investment entities

Amendments to IAS 32, Offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities

Amendments to IAS 36, Recoverable amount disclosures
of non-financial assets

Amendments to IAS 39, Novation of derivatives and
continuation of hedge accounting

IFRIC 21, Levies

The Group has not applied any new IFRS that is not yet
effective for the current accounting period. Except as described
below, the application of new and revised IFRSs in the current
year has had no material impact on the Group’s financial
performance and positions for the current and prior years and/
or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
Statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“1FRSs”) (continued)

Amendments to IAS 36, Recoverable amount disclosures
for non-financial assets

The amendments to IAS 36 modify the disclosure requirements
for impaired non-financial assets. Among them, the
amendments expand the disclosures required for an impaired
asset or CGU whose recoverable amount is based on fair value
less costs of disposal. The disclosures about the Group’s
impaired non-financial assets in notes 16 have conformed to
the amended disclosure requirements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities at the end of the reporting
period. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or
liabilities affected in the future.

(@) Judgements
In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following
judgements, apart from those involving estimations,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements:

(i) Operating lease commitments — Group as

lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property
leases on its investment property portfolio. The
Group has determined, based on an evaluation of
the terms and conditions of the arrangements, that
it retains all the significant risks and rewards of
ownership of these properties which are leased out
on operating leases.

(ii) Classification between investment properties
and owner-occupied properties
The Group determines whether a property qualifies
as an investment property, and has developed
criteria in making that judgement. Investment
property is a property held to earn rentals or for
capital appreciation or both. Therefore, the Group
considers whether a property generates cash flows
largely independently of the other assets held by
the Group.

2014 FA4F 4
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(ii)

Classification between investment properties
and owner-occupied properties (continued)
Some properties comprise a portion that is held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation and another
portion that is held for use in the supply of goods
or services or for administrative purposes. If these
portions could be sold separately or leased out
separately under a finance lease, the Group
accounts for the portions separately. If the portions
could not be sold separately, the property is an
investment property only if an insignificant portion
is held for use in the supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes. Judgement is made on
an individual property basis to determine whether
ancillary services are so significant that a property
does not qualify as an investment property.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed
below.

(0

Useful lives and residual values of property,
plant and equipment (Carrying amount:
RMB226,512,000 (2013: RMB261,167,000))

In determining the useful lives and residual values
of items of property, plant and equipment, the
Group has to consider various factors, such as
technical or commercial obsolescence arising from
changes or improvements in production, or from a
change in the market demand for the product or
service output of the asset, expected usage of the
asset, expected physical wear and tear, the care
and maintenance of the asset, and legal or similar
limits on the use of the asset. The estimation of the
useful life of the asset is based on the experience
of the Group with similar assets that are used in a
similar way. Additional depreciation is made if the
estimated useful lives and/or the residual values of
items of property, plant and equipment are
different from the previous estimation. Useful lives
and residual values are reviewed at the end of the
reporting period based on changes in
circumstances.
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(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Deferred tax assets (Carrying amount:
RMB9,145,000 (2013:RMB3,771,000))

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all
deductible temporary differences and unused tax
losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary difference and losses can be utilised.
Significant management judgement is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that
can be recognised, based upon the likely timing
and level of future taxable profits together with
future tax planning strategies.

Impairment assessment of long-term assets
(Carrying amount: RMB272,352,000 (2013:
RMB300,486,000))

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether
there is an indication that long-term assets may be
impaired. If any such indication exists, the Group
makes an estimate of the recoverable amount of
long-term assets. This requires an estimation of the
value in use of long-term assets. Estimating the
value in use requires the Group to make an
estimate of the expected future cash flows from
long-term assets and also to choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value
of those cash flows.

Write-down of inventories to net realisable
value (Carrying amount: RMB88,040,000
(2013: RMB76,907,000))

Write-down of inventories to net realisable value is
made based on the estimated net realisable value
of inventories. The assessment of the required
write-down amount involves management'’s
judgement and estimates. Where the actual
outcome or expectation in future is different from
the original estimate, such difference will have an
impact on the carrying amounts of inventories and
the write-down charge/write-back amount in the
period in which such estimate has been changed.
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(v) Impairment of trade and bills receivables,
other receivables and amounts due from
related parties (Carrying amount:
RMB193,638,000 (2013: RMB233,803,000))

The Group estimates the provisions for impairment
of trade and bills receivables, other receivables and
amounts due from related parties by assessing
their recoverability based on credit history and
prevailing market conditions. This requires the use
of estimates and judgements. Provisions are
applied to trade receivables, other receivables and
amounts due from related parties where events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the
balances may not be collectible. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate,
such difference will affect the carrying amounts of
trade receivables, other receivables and amounts
due from related parties and thus the impairment
loss in the period in which such estimate is
changed. The Group reassesses the provisions at
the end of the reporting period.

Operating segments are identified on the basis of internal
reports which provide information about components of the
Group. These information are reported to and reviewed by the
chief operating decision marker (“CODM") for the purposes of
resources allocation and performance assessment. The CODM
is the board of directors. The CODM considers the business
from a business activity perspective. Each of the Group's
segments represents a strategic business unit that offers
products which are subject to risks and returns that are
different from those of the other segments.

The Group has presented the following reportable segments.
No operating segments have been aggregated to form the
reportable segments.

continuing operation:
— the multi-layer ceramic chips (“MLCC") segment engages

in the manufacture and sale of MLCC and the trading of
MLCC.
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Discontinued operations:

— the trading of mobile phone segment engages in the
trading of mobile phones; and

— the battery segment engages in the manufacture and
sale of batteries.

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group’s CODM
monitors the results, assets and liabilities attributable to each
reportable segment on the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible assets, intangible assets,
non-current assets and current assets that are directly
managed by the segments. Segment liabilities include all
current liabilities and non-current liabilities attributable to the
activities of the individual segments and including bank
borrowings managed directly by the segments.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by those segments
and the expenses incurred by those segments. To arrive at
segment results, the Group allocated income and expense to
those segments but excluded interest income and finance
COSts.

In addition to receiving segment information concerning
segment result, the Group’s CODM is provided with segment
information concerning revenue (including inter-segment
sales), interest income and expense from cash balances and
borrowings managed directly by the segments, depreciation,
amortisation and impairment losses and additions to non-
current segment assets used by the segments in their
operations. Inter-segment sales and transfers are transacted
with reference to the selling prices used for sales made to third
parties at the prevailing market prices.

Subsequent to the discontinued operations in trading of mobile
phone segment and the batteries segment, the multi-layer
ceramic chips (“MLCC") segment became the only major
continuing reportable operating segment of the Group, which
engages in the manufacture and sale of MLCC and the trading
of MLCC. Accordingly, no further operating segment
information is provided for the year ended 31 December 2014.

2014 FA4F 4
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5. i E) 5. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
b BEAKEEE) Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued)
HE201I3F12ANBILFEEBAEETA Information regarding the Group's reportable segments and
SO I 2 ER K EHRERANBESS & the reconciliation to the corresponding consolidated totals in
2B WERGI RO o the financial statement for the year ended 31 December 2013
are shown below.

BE 2013412 A 31 HIEFE Year ended 31 December 2013

57
Bexy REREEK AREHH
Inter-
Continuing segment
operation Discontinued operations elimination
LEES 1)
BEERE  THES Bt At @3t
Trading of
mobile
mLce phone Battery  Sub-total Total

ARBTRL ARBTR ARETR ARBTR ARMTR ARET:R
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

AW Segment revenue
HETHARP Sales to external customers 513,150 - 38,612 38,612 - 551,762
P EmkE Inter-segment revenue - - - - - -
513,150 - 38,612 38,612 - 551,762
PHEE Segment results 12,309 - (6,316) (6,316) - 5,993
e Reconciliation:
FEHA Interest income 1,232 - 35 35 - 1,267
BEMN Finance costs (4,500) - - - - (4,500)
FREATAE Profit before taxation 9,041 - (6281 (6,281) - 2,760
IHEEREELRE Segment assets and total assets 808,942 - - - - 808,942
PTHEERARLE Segment liabilities and total liabilities 366,971 - - - - 366,971
HtAHER Other segment information:
EERR Write-town of inventories 6,296 - - - - 6,296
BUE SERESERE Reversal of impairment loss for
trade receivables (2,731) - - - - (2,731)
VERY IV ET Impairment loss of property,
HEBR plant and equipment 2,326 2,326
HENE  BERREEE Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment 1,054 1,054
TEREHE Depreciation and amortisation 33,440 33,462
ERFERENPEELRE Additions to non-Current segment assets
during the year 12,915 12,921
HERFERA Research and development costs 21,601 21,601
FBWA Interest income (1,232) (1,267)
BEMA Finance costs 4,500 4,500
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5.

SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

Geographical segments

(a)

(i

Revenue from external customers

The geographical analysis of the Group'’s revenue
from external customers by geographical location
based on where the goods are sold and delivered
and services are rendered, is as follows:

FEREEK Continuing operation:

2014 F 20134
2014 2013
ARBT T ARBTT
RMB’'000 RMB’000
Hh [ K e Mainland China 352,512 412,449
HR [ K e LA SNEL i b [ Regions other than Mainland China 114,072 100,701
466,584 513,150

R R R Discontinued operations:
2014 % 2013 4F
2014 2013
AR®TR ARETT
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR B A B Mainland China - 30,451
R (30 K B A N EL i b [5R Regions other than Mainland China - 8,161
- 38,612

(i) FRBEE
el A A S5 T 0 90% fr 74 1
AR - R 30 5k A S 3
(25 IERBEER AR
&R o

(b) HARAEERFER
BES —2 P AAREE 2014 F & 2013
F WA 10% A EBER -

(c) 2K H EZRE G MRS Z A
AEBEREETEZEERERE ZWASD
M ERP 5k 6 BTk B ARR o

(ii)

Non-current assets

No non-current assets and capital expenditure
information is presented for the Group’s
geographical location, as over 90% of the Group’s
assets are located in Mainland China.

Information about major customers
No single customer contributed 10% or more to the
Group's revenue for 2014 and 2013.

Revenue from major products and services

The analysis of the Group’s revenue from its major
products and services is the same as that set out in
note 6.

2014 4E4E
FHEER(EE)BRAF
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6. WA 6. REVENUE
WA (MAEREBEEB) EEEEREE Revenue, which is also the Group's turnover, represents the
FEHABRRBRERE ST ZEE) - net invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances for returns

and trade discounts.

WADITEAT An analysis of revenue is as follows:
20145 20134
2014 2013
AR®T T AREFT
RMB’'000 RMB’000
BELSEEK Continuing operation
MLCC sH%& Sale of MLCC 466,584 513,150
IR Discontinued operations
BIHE Sale of battery - 38,612

78 Annual Report 2014
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JE A O B 30 il 35 W 2t

7. OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET INCOME

2014 F 20134
2014 2013
B & ARBT R AREFIT
Notes RMB’'000 RMB'000
BEKSEEK Continuing operation:
Hiug A Other revenue
RIGNFEAEZ S/ Interestincome on financial assets
BEMEWA not at fair value through profit or
— RITFEHA loss — bank interest income 2,549 1,232
AL WA Rental income 8(c) 6,672 6,820
BT Eh Government grants 1,331 257
BB AL E AU Release of government grant
as income 27 1,005 1,055
SHE Rk Sale of materials 207 1,054
HaWA Commission income - 337
BEEEBEIWA Management fee income 615 =
IR Sundry income 1,134 110
13,513 10,865
Higua Other net income
b 5 e Exchange gain 356 2,190
RUE e B E Reversal of forfeiture of deposit paid 1,100 -
FEUWZ SRR E RSB E  Reversal of impairment loss for
trade receivables 27 2,731
BEFEE S BEEREYE  Over-provided accrued expenses in
prior year 840 =
2,323 4,921
15,836 15,786
2014 % 20134
2014 2013
AREF T ARETIT
RMB’'000 RMB'000
4R e Discontinued operations:
Hibg A Other revenue
RENFEGFAERZ Interest income on financial assets not at
SREENSWA fair value through profit or loss
— RITHEHA — bank interest income - 35
ESIET PN Sundry income - 75
- 110
2014 4R

FRER (E8) BRAF
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8. BRBLuT (), FIiM 8. (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION
REFELERR I EEE 7 BBA (& (Loss)/profit before taxation from continuing and discontinued
B)/FEENE(GTA) TF)EAE : operations is arrived at after charging/(crediting) the following:
@ &R (@) Finance costs

2014 % 20134
2014 2013
ARBTR ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
BESEEK Continuing operation:
RENFEFAERZZ Total interest expense on financial
TRBENSFEE liabilities not at fair value through

profit or loss:

ARAFAEZHENZ Interest on bank loans wholly repayable
RITEFRZ AR within five years 4,005 4,500
(b) B THA (BEEFHME) (b)  Staff costs (including directors’” emoluments)
20145 20134
2014 2013
ARETT AREFIT
RMB’'000 RMB'000
BELSEEK Continuing operation:
RERTGRIRGTE 2 HR Contributions to defined contribution
retirement plan 4,484 3,427
e TEREMER Salaries, wages and other benefits
(P Ei R i) (note i and ii) 68,807 56,084
73,291 59,511
BRI REEEK Discontinued operations:
ATEHEFERRET B 2 5K Contributions to defined contribution
retirement plan - 87
4o TERHEMER (KisEi) Salaries, wages and other benefits (note i) - 2,312
- 2,399
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BRBLwT Ok it), Y (&)

8. (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (continued)

(c) HAt¥EH (c) Other items
2014 F 20134
2014 2013
B aE AR¥TT AREFIT
Notes RMB’'000 RMB’000
FEREEKL Continuing operation:
FERA(ED Cost of inventories (note i) 21(a) 436,194 435,399
e (ki & ii) Depreciation (note i and i) 47,681 32,763
TR E BT R IE Amortisation of prepaid land
lease prepayments 488 488
HAth & i E Amortisation of other
intangible assets 362 189
ot KRB - Research and development costs:
NEFERS (M) Current year expenditure (note i) 32,424 21,601
BFLEHOE Minimum lease payments under
HEFIE operating leases in respect of
buildings 648 687
1% SN B < Auditor's remuneration 673 1,436
FEH =2 (F5E) Foreign exchange differences, net (356) (2,190)
FEUE 5 R SR E Reversal of impairment loss for
EtE R [ trade receivables (27) (2,731)
HEME - BE R Loss on disposal of property,
R EE plant and equipment 1,436 1,054
ME - WENMRE Impairment loss of property,
B R plant and equipment 6,571 2,326
REMERSW AR EE  Rental income on investment
KERT AR properties less direct
458,000 7T, (2013 £F : outgoings of RMB458,000
AR#&473,0007T) (2013: RMB473,000) 7 (6,214) (6,347)
IR Discontinued operations:
GERA (D Cost of inventories (note i) 21(a) - 37,035
s (Mski & ii) Depreciation (note i and i) - 97
BFLEHOE Minimum lease payments
MEFIE under operating leases
in respect of buildings - 160
PEH =5 (%) Foreign exchange differences, net - 71
BEE - Notes:
() BFEKEEBME  GFERARE ()  For continuing operation, cost of inventories includes

(if)

HETHRARNMERABZ ARE
84,086,0007C (20134 : A R #
70,342,0007T) ' MEFEESER £
X EIBHEE  ATEN o

MR EEERME - TEXRANBE
HMETHRARNTERBZ ARBET
(20134 : AR¥819,0007T) * INE
RBESEREXEBREZGENA -

MREEAZRABENEARE
1,773,0007T (20135 : A R ¥
137000t ) R E TR &K AR
5,559,0007t (20134 : A R %
3,938,0007L) ' MEBEESEAR EX
FIBWEZAEN -

RMB84,086,000 (2013: RMB70,342,000) relating to staff

costs and depreciation, which are also included in the

respective total amounts disclosed separately above.

For discontinued operations, cost of inventories includes
RMB nil (2013: RMB819,000) relating to staff costs and
depreciation, which are also included in the respective

total amounts disclosed separately above.

Included in research and development costs are
depreciation of RMB1,773,000 (2013: RMB137,000) and
staff costs of RMB5,559,000 (2013: RMB3,938,000), which
are also included in the respective total amounts

disclosed separately above.

2014 FA4F 4
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9. HHHEBEHMBEHMWEERERNPAE 9. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
Bt STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

@ HFeEBEmkEMEERERAMEN (@ Income tax in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
¥ - and other comprehensive income represents:
2014 % 20134
2014 2013
AR®T T ARBTFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
BESEEK Continuing operation:
BN AR 18 Current tax
— RNEEFREPCEREH — PRC Enterprise Income Tax for
the year 2,215 10,430
— BT EEBRRERE — Qverprovision in prior years (1,445) (1,439)
EEFIIR Deferred taxation
— EREEREEL KBE — Origination and reversal of
temporary differences (7,771) (859)
REFZFTERT Income tax for the year (7,001) 8,132
B REEEK Discontinued operations:
BNEAT I8 Current tax
— RFERRHPERER — PRC Enterprise Income Tax for
the year - 1
REFZ SN Income tax for the year - 1
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(i) BEHSREREBELESY
HAIRIAE + KB EAD RIR
HeHERRBELHBMME
RS H: -

(iv) F2010F10A31H R AR
AR B KBE 2 M9 B A LRI
FEEEERER A A (DREYIF
b)) BAERSHEIEAER
& - H R 2011 = 20134 Hf
MEBMNEEMBHBMES
15% ©

B _EXFrat F#YIF 5 R E B 15%
BEB RN RNAB AP EARE
2 B AR REZE2013F 12 B
31 B IEFE/BIR 25% 1Z R R
MIZERTEH -

Vv) REZE2014F128318 IEFE
FiEh BB AR A %
FriS i & 5 25% °

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (continued)

(continued)

@)

(i)

(i)

(iii)

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity
basis on profits arising in or derived from the
jurisdictions in which members of the Group are
domiciled and operate.

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been
made as the Group had no assessable profits
derived from or earned in Hong Kong during the
year.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the
Cayman Islands and the BVI, the Group is not
subject to any income tax in the Cayman Islands
and the BVI respectively.

On 31 October 2010, Shenzhen Eyang Technology
Development Co., Ltd. (“SZ Eyang”) (&I FE5E!
R ER B R A7), a subsidiary of the Company in
Mainland China, was recognised as a high
technology enterprise again and was subject to
enterprise income tax (“EIT") at the rate of 15%
from 2011 to 2013.

Except for SZ Eyang mentioned above that was
entitled to a preferential tax rate of 15%, the
subsidiaries of the Company in Mainland China
were required to pay EIT at the standard rate of
25% during the year ended 31 December 2013.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, all PRC
subsidiaries were subject to EIT rate of 25%.

2014 F4FEH 83
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9. HHHEBEHMBEHMWEERERNPAE 9. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED

(#&) STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (continued)
b)) HERITHEZEAMRETENSEF (b)  Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting
TEE AR profit at applicable tax rate:
KEH The Group
2014 % 20134
2014 2013
AR®T T ARBTFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
BESEEK Continuing operation:
KRR (E938), (Loss)/profit before taxation (53,890) 9,041
AT ERAE 218 Tax at the statutory tax rate (13,473) 2,260
I TEIEZHIEZE Tax effect of;
EEMRSER ZEERZ  Lower tax rates for specific districts
or countries (8,448) 673
4 TH S Bh i e Tax incentives - (1,920)
BARTUA Income not subject to tax (7,925) (2,088)
AR A Expenses not deductible for tax 26,277 8,995
RIER 2 FIAE 1B Tax losses not recognised 3,357 215
FEHNHIRL 50% T 98 R FAE4 R Additional deduction of 50% of the
research and development expenses (3,947) (1,524)
BEFEBBERE Overprovision in prior years (1,445) (1,439)
HARE B 2 B KRB Effect of withholding tax on the
ARIAIDIEAEZ distributable profits of the Group’s
TEMR & Mainland China subsidiaries (2,397) 20
HAh Others 1,000 2,940
REZFTER Income tax for the year (7,001) 8,132
IR Discontinued operations:
FRELRIES 1R Loss before taxation - (6,281)
WA EMRTE 2 FiE Tax at the statutory tax rate - (1,570)
NI EIEZ BT E Tax effect of:
DEE 5 Expenses not deductible for tax - 1,167
HAth Others - 404
KREFZFTER Income tax for the year - 1
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BILBEEE

P2013F 128270 » REBHEEREE
WE R RRIITTFEERERE R A7) & B
2aRl([EREE ) 2 2 AR - fERE
EREEHRERBEEER - WKR2012F
MANRBHAEBEKE - BEFEHER
2013F 12 A27B=K - T EZEERE
EEE  WRHEMEE ZBERKRED IR
RETE A KT sE33 MIEE - AR HERE
FEE AEBERIELEEHEIERIEE
E 30

R2013F 6 A28 8 ' AEBBBA—HEMR
HRR(NAEEARERHTFREZIEL Z —
ZEE2ENBARE AR RETASE
B) VEZEBEA REETBEBAR
ARFIEERAEAESEEITBHEEBEE
ZPEHRE - B2013F 6 A28 Bt - BEBEE
ZEE BAERBBERBESRTBAHFAL
BEIERET - BRAFBHNKIE3L - AR
EERRETES SR  ASEBRIEES
BB FWE F R -

Ftk - AR IR BPR B 75 3R 5 A RSB 5 5% [ #51E
HEZHRDEERRUELERT] R
SELEBBRZMBEECSRRRZNNR
RRIEREEXRS -

10. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

On 27 December 2013, the Group disposed of its entire equity
interest in a wholly owned subsidiary, Shenzhen Eyang Energy
Company Limited and its subsidiary (the “Energy Group”),
which were engaged in the manufacture and sale of batteries
and which was acquired on 12 November 2012. The disposal
was completed on 27 December 2013. The details of the assets
and liabilities disposed of, and the calculation of the deemed
distribution to shareholders arising from disposal, are disclosed
in note 33. As a result of the disposal of Energy Group, the
Group'’s business operation in the manufacture and sale of
batteries was discontinued.

On 28 June 2013, the Group passed a written resolution for
voluntary wind-up of an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary, HK
Weichang, which was engaged in the trading of mobile phones
and liguidators were appointed. Upon the appointment of
liguidators, the directors of the Company considered that the
Group ceased to control HK Weichang. The results, assets and
liabilities and cash flows of HK Weichang were deconsolidated
from the consolidated financial statements from 28 June 2013
and the details are set out in note 34. As a result of the
voluntary winding-up of HK Weichang, the Group's business
operation in the trading of mobile phones was discontinued.

Accordingly, the financial results of the Energy Group and HK
Weichang were classified and presented as discontinued
operations in accordance with IFRS 5 “Non-Current Assets Held
for Sale and Discontinued operations”.

2014 FA4F 4
FRER(EE) ERAF
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10. #IEREBEH &) 10. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued)
@@ REZE2013F12831HILEE  ®&I1E (@  The results of the discontinued operations for the year
RERBZ FEFHIIWT ¢ ended 31 December 2013 are set out below:
2013 FF
2013
B BEFHES st
Trading of
mobile
Battery phones Total
Mz AREFT ARETT ARETT
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
A Revenue 6 38,612 - 38,612
SHE KA Cost of sales (37,035) = (37,035)
EF Gross profit 1,577 - 1,577
HAng A Other revenue 7 110 = 110
HE Ry AN Selling and distribution costs (1,667) - (1,667)
THREAME R Administrative and other
expenses (6,301) - (6,301)
MR ARS8 Loss before taxation 8 (6,281) = (6,281)
FraH: Income tax 9 (1) = (1)
NARER AJE(RKL L Loss for the year from
S EIEFEEIR discontinued operations
attributable to owners of
the Company (6,282) = (6,282)
() REZE2013F12A3MBLEFE &I (b)  The net cash flows of the discontinued operations for the
REEB 2 RS MEFHEITIAT - year ended 31 December 2013 are set out below:
2013 4F
2013
B BETFHES 5T
Trading of
mobile
Battery phones Total

ARBETIT ARETIT ARBTT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

FETFERANIR & F5 Net cash inflows from

operating activities 6,247 - 6,247
HEEE T H IR S FE Net cash outflows from
investing activities (45) = (45)
BRI E TSR AR Net cash inflows of
&5 discontinued operations 6,202 - 6,202
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11. HHEME

RIBNEB(RRED) (B 622B)MIRINE
7815 W2 ERBE(RBGD) (E3RF)
F615 EEZHMESRENT ¢

BRZE 2014412 A 31 A IR

11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32), are as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2014

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 78 of
Schedule 11 to the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap.622) with reference to section 161 of the predecessor

BHREF
we HekEy "3 ame
Salaries  Retirement
and benefit Total
Fees allowances contributions emoluments
AR®BTRT AR®Tn ARETR AR%Tx
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
WITES Executive directors:
BREZREE ([REED Mr. Chen Weirong (“Mr. Chen”)
(EBERTHABER) (Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer) - 460 18 478
BOCT S 4 (TR ) Mr. Jing Wenping (“Mr. Jing") - 311 12 323
FEEEE(EEED Mr. Wang Ye (“Mr. Wang ") - 239 13 252
FHTES : Non-executive directors:
BRERE Mr. Cheng Wusheng - - - -
REMEE Mr. Zhang Zhilin - - - -
BRESTE Mr. Chen Hao - - - -
BAUNITES : Independent non-executive directors:
Sl st Mr. Liu Huanbin 67 - - 67
EELE Mr. Pan Wei 67 - - 67
RERFTHE Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus 95 - - 95
RESFHE Mr. Liang Rong 67 - - 67
BRERE Mr. Mak Ka Wing, Patrick 95 - - 95
391 1,010 43 1,444
20144431

FRER (E8) BRAF
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11. EHME (&) 11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)
CE 2013412 H 31 H 14 Year ended 31 December 2013
EREF
wE FekE i ape
Salaries Retirement
and benefit Total
Fees allowances  contributions  emoluments
ARETT AREFTT ARBTRT ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
WITES: Executive directors:
RIELTAE Mr. Chen Weirong (Chairman and
(FEFRITHEE) Chief Executive Officer) = 423 18 441
OGR4 (R 20135 Mr. Jing Wenping
S5B7TBEZT) (appointed on 7 May 2013) - 178 13 191
FERA (R20135F Mr. Wang Ye (appointed on
9518 REZRT) 18 September 2013) - 155 13 168
B A (R 20134 Mr. Liao Jie (resigned on
9 B 18 HEHT) 18 September 2013) = 188 11 199
RIS (R20135F Mr. Xu Chuncheng (retired on
9 A18HEM) 18 September 2013) - 106 9 115
FEHTES : Non-executive directors:
BRERE Mr. Cheng Wusheng = = - -
REMEE Mr. Zhang Zhilin - - _ _
BRESTE Mr. Chen Hao - - _ _
it (R2013% Ms. Shuang Mei (resigned on
1A 25 B EE) 25 January 2013) = - - -
BN ERITESE Independent non-executive directors:
Sl st aE Mr. Liu Huanbin 68 = = 68
EEAE Mr. Pan Wei 68 = = 68
RERFTHE Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus 98 - - 98
RERFE(R20135F Mr. Liang Rong (appointed on
5A7BEZRT) 7 May 2013) 44 - = 44
BRESTHE (R2013F Mr. Mak Ka Wing, Patrick
9 A 18 HEZRT) (appointed on
18 September 2013) 26 - - 26
304 1,050 64 1,418

RAEETRRARRZITHRAE - EXFARE
R E 2 S BRI EITEAR S MR

RIS 2 M -

Annual Report 2014
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4 (E)

FRN - AEBWESTHINT AR REME
EERNMAREE RS  ERBERE
8- REE2014F R 2013F 12 A31 H IEF
[ WERESHNENREREEAE] -

BAFEFR  ETESRFREAAEBERS
MiRRAR A 2 ARG SR T RS AR -
BERE— P BEHRMERERMEI0 - %
EHEREZATEEERNBAGTFEESRB
HEMEBESAER) ERNETH BBEE - &
E2014FER2013F12 A3 BIEEE » WiE
R LT B EAS -

rHeANL

FR SEEEHEEERE2ZESE (2013
FNRESR) EHEMFBEEHR X
11 R - B35 (20134F : 4R)IEES -
FTHBEHNESHESEE ZHHFB L
—F:

11.

12.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

During the year, no emolument were paid by the Group to any
of the directors of the Company as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.
None of the directors has waived or agreed to waive any
emolument for the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013.

Certain directors were granted share options in prior years in
respect of their services to the Group under the share option
scheme of the Company, further details of which are set out in
note 30 to the financial statements. The fair value of such
options which was recognised in the profit or loss over the
vesting period in prior years was determined as at the date of
grant. During the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, no
equity-settled share option expenses were recognised.

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS
The five highest paid employees during the year included two
directors (2013: one director), details of whose emoluments
are set out in note 11 above. Details of the emoluments of the
remaining three (2013: four) non-director and non-chief
executive and highest paid employees for the year are as
follows:

2014 & 20134
2014 2013
ARETR ARETFIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
e KoER Salaries and allowances 1,277 2,111
IRIRTEF 3R Retirement benefit contributions 39 31
1,316 2,142
2014 F4FEH

FRER (E8) BRAF
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12. BRHEANL &)

12.

FHNBATHREZIHFES - FTHABENR

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

(continued)
The number of non-director and non-chief executive and

SRS EEHBWNT highest paid employees whose emoluments fell within the
following band is as follows:
2014 F 20134
2014 2013
AE ANEL
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
Z 2 1,000,000 77T, (2014 £F Nil to HK$1,000,000 (2014: Nil to
T AR¥798,0007T : 2013 4F RMB798,000, 2013: Nil to RMB798,000)
=% AR 798,0007T) 3 3
1,000,001 57T 2 1,500,000 7 7T HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000
(20145 : AR¥ 798,001 7T (2014: RMB798,001 to RMB1,197,000,
Z= AR¥1,197,0007T : 20134 : 2013: Nil to RMB1,197,000)
=& AR#1,197,0007T) - 1
3 4

HE2014F12A3NHLEFE  AEB W E
SN TFEERE AN ZRaTSEEE
AMAREEZ 8% SEABEREE - ©
HZE2014FR2013F12A3MBLIEFE W
EEEREMSE RS HEENERRAE

PRI -

13. A2 vl A A HEAG B 1H

13.

HE2014F12ANBIFEZRARHAE
A4 A BB EE AR 50,976,000
7T (20134 : AR #7,688,0007T) » % E5ia

ERARRI M EHRRFEIE -

P e BEEARRFABEZ LK

During the year ended 31 December 2014, no emolument was
paid by the Group to the directors or any of the five highest
paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office. None of the
directors or any of the five highest paid individuals has waived
or agreed to waive any emolument for the years ended 31
December 2014 and 2013.

LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE
COMPANY

The consolidated loss attributable to owners of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2014 includes a loss of
RMB50,976,000 (2013: RMB7,688,000) which has been dealt
with in the financial statements of the Company.

Reconciliation of the above amount to the company’s loss for
the year:

2014 % 20134
2014 2013
AR¥T T AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB'000

2N B B FS R R P R I Amount of consolidated loss attributable to

R RS equity shareholders dealt with in the

EiEeEm company’s financial statements (50,976) (7,688)
NG ES) Dividends from subsidiaries 29,977 -
RARIFEANEE (FEE32())  Company’s loss for the year (note 32(b)) (20,999) (7,688)

Annual Report 2014
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. B

HE2014FK2013F12A31HIEFE » I
EINREZRTARE - REBEHRENE
EBEMES -

I Ol ), &4

(@) FBEA (EH),EA
ARAHEEAREESRER(ER), &
MTRIA T BIRETE -

ARAEE ANEBEREEZ (BE),F

14.

15.

DIVIDEND

No dividend was paid or proposed during the years ended 31
December 2014 and 2013, nor has any dividend been proposed
since the end of the reporting period.

(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

(@) Basic (loss)/earnings per share
The calculation of basic (loss)/earnings per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on
the following data:

The Group's (loss)/profit attributable to owners of the

e Company:
2014 F 20134
2014 2013
AR® T AREFIT
RMB’'000 RMB’000
REZBELEEER From continuing operation (46,889) 909
RERIEEER From discontinued operations - (6,282)
MGt Total (46,889) (5,373)

e g : Number of shares:

RN E R Weighted average number of shares 405,500,000 405,500,000

T IR (B598) &R

#H 220144 &2013F 12 A31H 1IFF
B BRAREIRITHEERE TTE
EeRARARIRONEBFE 2 FH
ME WEREE(SE) B EET
BRER(EEB),BFESE -

(b) Diluted (loss)/earnings per share

Diluted (loss)/earnings per share for the years ended 31
December 2014 and 2013 were the same as the basic
(loss)/earnings per share because the exercise prices of
the Company’s outstanding share options were higher
than the average market prices of the Company's shares

during the years.

2014 F4FEH
FRER(EE)GRAF
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16. W3E ~ B Bkt 16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
AN AE [H] The Group
BER HEER
BF He Hivskfe AE hRIE @it
Office and
Plant and other Motor Construction
Buildings  machinery  equipment vehicles in progress Total

ARBTR ARBTR AR®TR ARETR ARETR ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

R2013F12A318 At 31 December 2013 and
R2014F1A18 at 1 January 2014;
KA Cost 87,685 363,895 11,669 2,271 1,313 466,833
LAMERAE Accumulated depreciation
and impairment (12152)  (184,120) (7,768) (1,626) - (205,666)
EmE Carrying amount 75,533 179,775 3,901 645 1,313 261,167
R0UE1A1R At 1 January 2014,
MR RFAERFE net of accumulated
(epreciation and impairment 75,533 179,775 3,901 645 1,313 261,167
NE Additions - 21,787 2,367 162 2,797 27,113
HE Disposals - (1,403) - (85) - (1,488)
ERERENE Transfer to investment
(Mtz217) properties (note 17) (8,132) - - - - (8,132)
BRANEEH Transfer from investment
(KE17) properties (note 17) 1,513 - - - - 1513
EEERENEERZET  Transfer from CIP to building 50 - - - (50) -
FRFTERE Depreciation provided during
the year (2,298) (43,443) (1,211) (138) - (47,090)
ERRME Impairment during the year - (6,571) - - - (6,571)
R2014F 127318 - At 31 December 2014,
MR 2EMERAE net of accumulated depreciation
and impairment 66,666 150,145 5,057 584 4,060 226,512
201446128318 : At 31 December 2014:
AR Cost 80,220 383,335 14,036 1,583 4,060 483,234
ZAMERAE Accumulated depreciation
and impairment (13,554) (233,190) (8,979) (999) - (256,722)
REE Carrying amount 66,666 150,145 5,057 584 4,060 226,512

92 Annual Report 2014
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16. W3E ~ Wb Kkt (&)

AL (8)

The Group (continued)

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

BER  #ERR
EF e EthikiE HE ERIR Bt
Office and
Plant and other Motor  Construction
Buildings ~ machinery  equipment vehicles i progress Total
ARETT ARETT ARETn ARBTR ARETT ARETn
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
R20124612A318 At 31 December 2012 and
R2013F1A18 : at 1 January 2013;
KA Cost 80,855 357,189 16,224 2573 1272 458113
LAMERAE Accumulated depreciation
and impairment (10,357) (160,086) (8,539) (1,716) - (180,698)
RAE Carrying amount 70,498 197,103 7,685 857 1272 277,415
M2013E1818 At 1 January 2013,
MR RFAERFE net of accumulated depreciation
and impairment 70,498 197,103 7,685 857 1272 271415
RE Additions 97 12,021 247 156 66 12,587
HE Disposals (955) - (562) (149) (25) (1,691)
HERBAT Disposal of subsidiaries - (251) (110) () - (362
ERERENE Transfer to investment
(FzE17) properties (note 17) (44) - - - = (44)
BRANEEH Transfer from investment
(FzE17) properties (note 17) 7738 - - - - 7738
ERTERE Depreciation provided during
the year (1,801) (28,308) (1,323) (218) - (32,150)
ERFE Impairment during the year - (290) (2,036) - - (2,326)
R2013E12A318 - At 31 December 2013,
MR ZFRERAE net of accumulated
depreciation and impairment 75,533 179,775 3,901 645 1,313 261,167
R2013F 128318 : At 31 December 2013:
P Cost 87,685 363,895 11,669 2271 1313 466,833
ZFHNERAE Accumulated depreciation
and impairment (12152) (184,120) (7,768) (1,626) - (205,666)
REE Carrying amount 75,533 179,775 3,901 () 1,313 261,167
2014 4
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16. W3E ~ Wb Kt fhi (&)

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

AN T The Company
WEER
HibE
Office and
other
equipment
ARBTT
RMB’000
72013412 A31H X% 20144 1 A1H : At 31 December 2013 and 1 January 2014:
AR Cost 46
ZEHINE Accumulated depreciation (39)
REE Carrying amount 7
R2014F1H18 @ K254 At 1 January 2014, net of accumulated depreciation 7
FRITERE Depreciation provided during the year (1)
MN2014512 A31 8 - 1K 25t E At 31 December 2014, net of accumulated depreciation 6
R2014512 3318 : At 31 December 2014:
D& Cost 46
REE Accumulated depreciation (40)
IREE Carrying amount 6
R20124 12 A31H X% 201341 A 1H : At 31 December 2012 and 1 January 2013:
[B# Cost 40
BEHE Accumulated depreciation (37)
BRHEE Carrying amount 3
N20135E1 818 - B E:tirE At 1 January 2013, net of accumulated depreciation 3
NE Additions 6
FRITERE Depreciation provided during the year )
MR2013FE12 A31H - K EHFE At 31 December 2013, net of accumulated depreciation 7
120136128318 : At 31 December 2013:
[DEN Cost 46
2EtineE Accumulated depreciation (39)
REE Carrying amount 7
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AEBZEBFTRPBEALEAGHELD
KA -

AEEBEFET - BB LR AER
AEE 2 RITERZFHBEHNHE28 -

BRI B R R B B AR B AR
5t R2014F 12 A 31 HERENFRRA A
AR ® 4,165,000 7T (A 20134 12 A 31
HAAR®A3390007T) 25 TET
2B HERE o

REZE2014F12831BIEFE - AT
BN IE & 5 AR [ R 7K &R B B A iR
MR AEE ISR BIERE MR ENIT
ERHEHEAFR -2 AEERE
AARANEL TN FI R AT B R 2 &
fiTarid - (B - BE L& ER A
FR 2 GFHEET ©

TRHR201451 81 B 2RI R 2 %D
¥ HE KRSz e A BERES

M - BERREER

Category of property, plant and equipment

B 55 B 1 2%
Plant and machinery

* ME - WE LR K ER 2
ST IR ADBE 7 M 5 2(d) P EE 2
B BRRZHBER -

The Group’s buildings are held under medium term
leases in Mainland China.

Details of the Group's building and plant and machinery
pledged to secure the Group’s bank loans are set out in
note 28.

Certificates of ownership in respect of certain buildings
of the Group located in Dongguan with a net carrying
amount of approximately RMB4,165,000 as at 31
December 2014 (RMB4,339,000 as at 31 December 2013)
have not yet been issued by the relevant PRC authorities.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, in order to
present a fairer and more appropriate view of the
financial position and operating results of the Group
where the depreciation period of each plant and
equipment is aligned with its actual useful lives, the
Group revised its accounting estimates on the useful
lives of property, plant and equipment based on the
technical assessment prepared by the Company’s
internal engineers and technicians.

The table below shows the details of estimated useful
lives of property, plant and equipment before and after 1
January 2014:

B A KB

Before reassessment As reassessed
5T A AER (F) {5t o PR ()
Estimated Estimated

useful lives useful lives

(years) (years)

5-10 5-10*

w The reassessed estimated useful lives of plant and
machinery is still within the range of the accounting
policy as disclosed in note 2(d).

2014 4F4E )}
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. W3k - W5 Bl ()

AT ()
@ &
At B HE R RARRFEZRAE

BAXABREEZFZERBIMT

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
The Company (continued)

(@)

(continued)

The approximate effect of the change in estimates on
loss before income tax expense in the current and future
years is as follows:

2014% 2015 % 2016 % 2017 % 2018% N
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Later
ARETT ARETT ARBTR ARETT ARETT AR®Tx
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
FEBRZ L)/ Hd (Increase)/decrease in depreciation
expenses (16,645) (8,440) (1,291) 3231 3,930 19,215

©

REZE2013F12A3MBLEFE  E=F
YRR E K#as 2 o] Uk Bl & ZE{E TS o
EEREBEMERESE 2 BEEMRRE
%ﬂﬁﬁmm%&$$ﬁ RERE
PEEBIEEAERENARKE
2,326,0007C ° FEEIEHEINALE
BREkEMEERERTITHRERE
T o

REZ2014F12A3MBLEFE AR
AESKRERAEEZ2YE BE K
REERT  ARAEEE TH#EE
ERTeEEman - B8 TEERE
BEA - AS B 2 AL E K E
ME RS SEFIBANERERE R
B ARABIEERE ZEHERE
BRI REEEEENPEBET) -
ZEREREBZRERBEEARE
6,571,000 T EL R F R FERR o
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)

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the directors
assessed the recoverable amounts of plant and
machinery and concluded that the carrying amounts of
plant and machinery were impaired by approximately
RMB2,326,000 based on their physical conditions and
their estimated net selling prices less costs of disposal.
The impairment losses were recorded in administrative
expense in consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the directors
of the Company conducted a review of the Group’s
property, plant and equipment and determined that
certain of the Group's production facilities and plant and
machinery are specifically identified to be impaired
because those machineries were technically outdated as
a result of technological change and certain production
facilities were no longer used. In the opinion of the
directors of the Company, these plants and machineries
have no or little commercial value. An impairment loss of
RMB6,571,000 in respect of these plants and machineries
have been recognised during the year.
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AT ()

®

FHN 20145128318 £ 4
MLCC 5 2B Z 1 25 & ;R A H#E 1T T R B R
B -HNREMS  HEEEZ I
CleHEEEBERBEENEETE - %
EEERESSCUBENERA
HREFZHESRESTEN - BHAFH
MIRERETIRE3% 2 BT RRE
EEIRE o

AEEREBEEMRKAZ EE2RER
S @

R
HEE
TR % (BiAT)

BEENXDHEFREBERRK
BEHMSERNBHEE - FHHA
K RBEBAT I R EE 2 TS5
A R AR D BB 2 B RE AR - HEER
EREBRAZEERRFTEESFL
Hgh - BEERRJ{ZEDHAHRDNR
ERAELEATE - RIFZFHE -
HEEEZRAERAIKESREE -
TERAMER MBI AR TIRIE

P FEREEFEAHN B L EEMY
EEZ S BT H AR A A (Roma
Appraisal Limited) Z {HERE A © %{H
EMEER TP EEEEETIHERE
HIFTIASBS o

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

The Company (continued)

®

Gross margin
Growth rate
Discount rate (pre-tax)

Furthermore, at 31 December 2014, impairment reviews
on the machinery and equipment under the MLCC
segment is performed by directors. For the purpose of
the review, the recoverable amounts of the related
assets are determined based on value in use
calculations. These calculations use cash flow projections
based on the financial estimated by board of directors
covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond the five-
year period are extrapolated according to a constant 3%
growth assumption for terminal value.

The key assumptions used for value in use calculations
are as follows:

14% t0 19%
3% t0 18%
20%

The budgeted gross margin was determined by the
directors based on past performance and their
expectation of the market development. The annual
discount rates are before tax and reflect market
assessments of the time value and the specific risks
relating to the relevant segment. Judgment is required to
determine the key assumptions adopted in the cash flow
projections and the changes to key assumptions can
significantly affect these cash flow projections. According
to the assessments, the carrying amounts of the related
assets were lower than the recoverable amounts. No
impairment was made for these machinery and
equipment.

The above value in use calculations were contained in a
report based on a valuation carried out by an
independent professional valuer, Roma Appraisal Limited
with recent experience for this type of valuations in the
manufacturing industry in PRC.

2014 FA4F 4
FRER(EE) ERAF
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17.

HE5YE 17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
AREFT

AEHE The Group RMB'000
R2013F 12 A31 A K At 31 December 2013 and at 1 January 2014:

MR201461 418 :

B R Cost 19,455

2FHE Accumulated depreciation (1,159)

BRI (B Carrying amount 18,296
R2014FE1 A1 8 254 - Cost at 1 January 2014, net of accumulated depreciation 18,296

MR REHTE
B Y% - BB ML R Transfer from property, plant and equipment 8,132
R QR Transfer to owner-occupied property (1,513)
FRITERE Depreciation provided during the year (591)
R2014F 12 A31H At 31 December 2014 24,324
120146128318 : At 31 December 2014:

B%N Cost 26,399

Z2EHTE Accumulated depreciation (2,075)

AREA Carrying amount 24,324
R2012F12A31 A & At 31 December 2012 and at 1 January 2013:

M2013F1 418 :

B AR Cost 28,324

25t E Accumulated depreciation (1,699)

BREE Carrying amount 26,625
R2013F 1 A1HZKA - Cost at 1 January 2013, net of accumulated depreciation 26,625

HBRREHTE
B - HE MR EER Transfer from property, plant and equipment Al
RS QR Transfer to owner-occupied property (7,738)
FRITERE Depreciation provided during the year (635)
720134 12 A 31 H At 31 December 2013 18,296
20136128318 : At 31 December 2013:

PR AR Cost 19,455

i E Accumulated depreciation (1,159)

ARMEA Carrying amount 18,296

Annual Report 2014
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AR HRENEREFHROFTE @
A7 7 A B R
GNP RE28 P - B TIREMEE HUIE (b)

HARRAEE ZRITEK

R2014512 A31H K 2013412 A 31 ()
H AEEREMEZANTFEDRIA
A AR 77,707,000 7T (£ #6050 & 78 15+
IRIE : ARM43,0750007T  RIETF :
A R #34,6320007 ) & A R ¥
74,017,000 7C (L EFEFHIE - A
R #42,019,0007t X F: AR
31,998,0007T) * IIRIBEBLEXEE
G ERMZE S EERFE AR A F (2013
F ERTEARAR) ELAMHE -

R20144F K 2013FE12831H © A b
BEEMETZREMELATFENF
BT

HE Description

"EYE Investment properties

The Group's investment properties are held under
medium term leases and are situated in Mainland China.

Certain investment properties were pledged to secure
the Group's bank loans as set out in note 28.

At 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013, the fair
value of the Group’s investment properties was
approximately RMB77,707,000 (prepaid land lease
payment: RMB43,075,000; and buildings: RMB34,632,000)
and RMB74,017,000 (prepaid land lease payment:
RMB42,019,000 and buildings: RMB31,998,000)
respectively, based on the valuations performed by Roma
Appraisals Limited (2013:Peak Vision Appraisals Limited),
independent professionally qualified valuer.

The details of fair value of the investment properties as
at 31 December 2014 and 2013 determined by the
external valuer is as below:

M2014%12831H
HRANAFEEFELSN
Fair value measurements
at 31 December 2014 using

HEEEHE HtEEN FAIBENY

SRR IZNHRE ATHREIE BEEHE
(B14) (%24) (£34%)
Quoted prices

in active Significant

markets for other Significant

identical observable unobservable

assets inputs inputs

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

AR¥ET T ARETR ARETR

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

- - 77,707

2014 4F4E )}
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& 17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
(%) (©)  (continued)
R 201312 H31H
RANATEFBHR
Fair value measurements
at 31 December 2013 using
EREERE HMEEM RIS EY
VB T 5 A R (B Al B EE FEHE
(B14%) (%B24%) (E34)
Quoted prices Significant
in active other Significant
markets for observable unobservable
identical assets inputs inputs
I8 H Description (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
ARETT ARETTT ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
"EYE Investment properties = - 74,017

HZE2014F 12 A31 B ILEE - ${r R
TRZEEMEZHENDERENE
BERA(MESTEERADE - 37
ESERANDER T HIREEA RN
AITHE MERBLEENENESK
N BREBERBEER—UHEBEER
HIPREE RAB(LATS -

H E 20144 & 2013F12 4318 1L £
B NREERFINZEZEEWENG
BEERmE AL (FHEERE) -
7 A A 1A 20136 K& 2014 F 12 A 31
A PRSI R ER (B3R EITRE o
FEHBEATHEIREK  EHELRHRE
KmigEaEe o

Annual Report 2014
EYANG Holdings (Group) Co., Limited

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the valuation for
the investment properties located in Anhui was based on
their depreciated replacement costs (“DRC"). DRC is
based on an estimate of the market value for the existing
use of the land, plus the current cost of replacement of
the existing structures less deductions for physical
deterioration and all relevant forms of obsolescence and
optimization.

For the year ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, the
valuation for the investment properties located in
Dongguan and Shenzhen was based on income
capitalisation approach (term and reversionary method)
which use unobservable inputs (Level 3) at 31 December
2013 and 2014 respectively. The key inputs are term
yield, reversionary yield and market unit rent.
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18. 3l BB AT sk 18. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS
rEE
The Group

2014 20134

2014 2013

AR¥T ARETIT

RMB’000 RMB'000

R1A1BZERMEE Carrying amount at 1 January 20,341 20,829
FABHREE Amortisation provided during the year (488) (488)
K12 A31HZERAEE Carrying amount at 31 December 19,853 20,341

BREEEMNGIE - Zek Current portion included in prepayments,

H fth pE kI8 2 BNERED deposits and other receivables (488) (488)
JEBNEREL 75 Non-current portion 19,365 19,853
@ AEBZHEESETMREHEHENES (@) The Group’s leasehold lands are held under medium-

A AL R AR B KR o term leases and are situated in Mainland China.
(b) WHIFE28FTEL - BT LA ETE K (b) Certain prepaid land lease payments were pledged to
HBE W EERITERER - bank loans as set out in note 28.

2014 F4FEH
FRER(EE)GRAF 101
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19. HAbP & 5 19. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS
REH
The Group
20145 20134
2014 2013
AREFT ARETIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
5% Cost
®1A18 At 1 January 2,047 1,713
NE Addition 1,343 334
W12 318 At 31 December 3,390 2,047
S £ Accumulated amortisation
R1HA1H At 1 January 877 688
FNHIHRAE Amortisation provided during the year 362 189
R12A31H At 31 December 1,239 877
RREE Carrying amount
®12 8318 At 31 December 2,151 1,170
HihmEEEEANEEFG 2 EIEEME o & Other intangible assets represent computer software held by
FEBESTHIEAGEBESEREMEEUES the Group. The amortisation charged for the year is included in
RZITHEBRAR - administrative expenses in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income.
20. RS A6 2 8% 20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
¥N/NE|
The Company
20145 20134
2014 2013
AREFT AREFT
RMB’'000 RMB’000
JELETMARG - R E Unlisted shares, at cost 365,001 365,001
W REESE Less: Impairment loss
®1A1H At 1 January - =
FRBME (H3EC) Provided during the year (note c) (45,451) —
®12A318 At 31 December (45,451) =
319,550 365,001

102 Annual Report 2014
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20. JABIIE A H 2 BE (2

20.
(a) M2014%12R318 - MEBARZFE

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
(a)  Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2014

Hymn - are as follows:
B3 A ERTRER/ RAEEL
Sk AR A RAFDH
Place of Issued and Percentage of
£ incorporation/ fully paid-up/  equity attributable FE#%
Name operation registered capital ~ to the Company  Principal activities
E# Gk
Direct Indirect
% %
EyangManagement Co., Ltd. ~ HBRELZEHS/EE  10000RER1ETZ 100 N
BVI/HK L38M%,/50,000 B Investment holding
BR1ET AT L BR
10,000 ordinary shares of
US$1 each/50,000
authorised ordinary shares
of US$1 each
EEFHER(SE)ERAR B/ HE 10,000 R & AR 100  HEZRRKREEMLCC
Hong Kong Eyang Holdings HK/PRC 10,000 ordinary shares Investment holding and
(Group) Co., Ltd. trading of MLCC
EAFBREARAR B4/ H 500,000 A% & i % - 100 EEMLCC
Hong Kong Eyang Technology ~ HK/PRC 500,000 ordinary shares Trading of MLCC
Co., Ltd.
YT * HE/HE FRRA = 100 SHEREEMLCC
SZ Eyang * PRC/PRC AR 350,000,000 7T Manufacture and sale of
Paid-up capital of MLCC
RMB350,000,000
REMTHEREERERAR B8/ HE BRI - 100  HEHBREEMLCC
([REFH]) PRC/PRC AR 20,000,0007C Lease of properties and
Dongguan Eyang Technology Paid-up capital of trading of MLCC
Development Co., Ltd. # RMB20,000,000
(DG Eyang")
ZHEFHETNEBBAR E/HE BRRA - 100 &EMLCC
Anhui Jineyang Electronic PRC/PRC AR 5,000,0007T Manufacture of MLCC
Technology Co., Ltd. * Paid-up capital of
RMB5,000,000
2014 FFAFEH;

103
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20. RBARZHE &) 20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
(@) (#&) (@) (continued)
FMRYL BRTRERE/ RAEEL
EEWH AR A e NER
Place of Issued and Percentage of
£ incorporation/ fully paid-up/  equity attributable FE#%
Name operation registered capital ~ to the Company  Principal activities
BEE M
Direct  Indirect
% %
NER Management Ltd. RERIHS/BE 1BRERIETZ 100 - REER
BVI/HK L38%,/50,000 B Investment holding
BR1ET AT L BR
1 ordinary share of US$1
each/50,000 authorised
ordinary shares of US$1
each
Eyang Energy Management RBRLES /B 100BER1ETZ 100 - BBER
Co., Limited BVI/HK 38 AR,50,000 i Investment holding
BR1ETOET L BR
100 ordinary shares of
US$1 each/50,000
authorised ordinary shares
of US$1 each
BEBFHERERATR &,/ 10,000 A& & A% = 100 ®REZER
Hong Kong Eyang Energy HK/PRC 10,000 ordinary shares Investment holding
Co., Limited
FITERFERERAR  HE/h HRAA30000008T - 100 HEER
Shenzhen Weichang New PRC/PRC Paid-up capital of Investment holding
Energy Co., Ltd. * HK$3,000,000
* ZERFRBKY Z AR ABINGBEE & These companies were established in the PRC in the form
o of wholly-foreign-owned enterprises.
@ ZERPRBIK 2 AR ARBEAR TR # These companies were established in the PRC as PRC
NG domestic-invested companies.

104 Annual Report 2014
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20. AWBA R ZHE (&) 20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(b) MEW (REAT) B8 2 7 (b) Due from/(to) subsidiaries
FEU  (FERT) Bt /B /A BB A K - The amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries are unsecured,
BERRNEREES tERE (FkE interest-free and repayable on demand. The carrying
MMB AT FBE EmEAE A EE amounts of these amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries
HBE - ARAEETRBEKMEBE A approximate their fair values. In the opinion of the
FIBE BRI EEE - Company's directors, no impairment losses on amounts

due from subsidiaries are considered necessary.

() B RHRE 2 WEER (c) Impairment loss for investment in subsidiaries
HREFHBATIRE N E  REE Due to the unsatisfactory performance of certain
ZENREFEES  BERER - subsidiaries, after considering their profitability, cash flow
BRI RTEB ¥ REEARKEE position, financial position and forecast business
B BEERALBERMBARZRES development and future prospects, the directors
TR AR ¥ 45451,00070 (20134 : AR concluded that it is appropriate to make an impairment
M) ZRENBEY - of RMB45,451,000 (2013: RMB nil) for investment in

subsidiaries.
WEBBDBERNB AR ZREZ The recoverable amount of the investments in
B REIENB AR 2R ELE subsidiaries based upon which impairment loss is arrived
RZEREEIE  Wik20% 2 F71R at in their value in use for the cash generating unit (CGU)
RERFRBETRERET ° of the subsidiaries and is determined using discounted
cash flow at a discount rate of 20%.
21. ##8 21. INVENTORIES
rEE
The Group
2014 5 20134
2014 2013
AR®T ARETTT
RMB’'000 RMB'000

B Raw materials 18,705 12,028

18 i Work in progress 19,426 16,349

BIFK o Finished goods 71,941 65,598

110,072 93,975

T B BE Provision against slow-moving inventories (22,032) (17,068)

88,040 76,907
2014 4R

FRER (E8) BRAF
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21. ##%K#) 21. INVENTORIES (continued)
@ BRAEAIWIABRZGEESES (@)  The analysis of the amounts of inventories recognised as
MR - an expense and included in profit or loss is as follows:
2014 F 20134
2014 2013
AR¥TF T AREFT
RMB’'000 RMB’000
BEREEK . Continuing operation:
EHREFEZREE Carrying amount of inventories sold 431,230 429,103
GFERT Write-down of inventories? 4,964 6,296
436,194 435,399
B REEEK Discontinued operations:
BEREFEZREE Carrying amount of inventories sold - 37,035
6 FERLEBREGSBEEME # The write-down of inventories are included in “Other
R [EMmpA] BT expenses” on the face of the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
22, JEKCR B ek B HE O B8 22. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES
rEE
The Group
2014 F 20134
2014 2013
ARETT ARETIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
JEWE 5 AR FK Trade receivables 140,237 155,516
JEW = 5 Bills receivables 53,874 77,523
194,111 233,039
o ORE Less: Impairment (5,883) (5,910)
188,228 227,129
@) $%lgﬁgg}ézgj%7‘j—z§u§aﬁ§;§$ B (@  The Group's trading terms with its customers are mainly
;f*? MAE2ZEAER - B on credit. The credit periods are generally two to four
5=ZE %E REBE KEERIN months. Each customer has a maximum credit limit. The
Iﬁﬁﬁﬂq & - WA= B H R LA Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
EHEERRHERE - TEBe outstanding receivables and has a credit control policy to
THMS AR EHIE . EWE ZE minimize its credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed
FEDE o regularly by management. Trade receivables are non-

interest-bearing.

106 Annual Report 2014
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22, MEWCE TRk Ko HEWROR 1% (48) 22. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)
(b) FERKEEHHBREHRETTOE (b)  The bills receivables were all due within 60 to 180 days

180 HAZIH o from the end of the reporting period.

) MRIMEHKR RXEZAHAEEEE ()  Anaged analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of
WE ZERF Z RO : the reporting period based on the invoice date is as
follows:
REH
The Group
20145 20134
2014 2013
AREFT ARETIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
0HW Within 90 days 115,748 134,608
912180 H 91 to 180 days 18,545 13,866
1812 360 H 181 to 360 days 60 1,844
1ZE24F 110 2 years - 1,373
2F3F 2 to 3 years 1,274 423
HBidm3F Over 3 years 4,610 3,402
140,237 155,516
d REEHR REERTH A AEE (d  An aged analysis of the bills receivables as at the end of
ZIEWER 2RO ¢ the reporting period based on bills issued date is as
follows:
The Group
2014 % 20134
2014 2013
AR¥T T AREEFIT
RMB’'000 RMB’000
90H A Within 90 days 40,658 43,557
91 %180 H 91 to 180 days 13,216 33,281
1812360 H 181 t0 360 days - 685
53,874 77,523

2014 F4FEH
FRER(EE)GRAF 107
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22, R B sk B ME R B8 (2

22. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

) EWRESRFREREESNOT () The movements in the provision for impairment of trade

receivables are as follows:

rEEH
The Group
2014 F 20134
2014 2013
AR®T AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
®1A18 At 1 January 5,910 8,641
BHRREBE Impairment losses recognised 277 1,271
R ER Reversal of impairment (304) (4,002)
R12H31H At 31 December 5,883 5,910
FTAMN LW E ZERFURE R E & E Included in the above provision for impairment of trade
FERERERKE S RAEBEARE receivables is a provision for individually impaired trade
5,883,0007T (20134 : AR¥55,910,000 receivables of RMB5,883,000 (2013: RMB5,910,000) with a
J0)  HEEEE A AR 5,883,0007T carrying amount of RMB5,883,000 (2013: RMB5,910,000).
(20134 : AR#¥£5,910,0007T) © &5 The individually impaired trade receivables relate to
BRI E RN E 5 IR 3K 8 T G B 75 R B customers that were in financial difficulties and are
ZRFEEW LETHETH A% doubtful. The Group does not hold any collateral or other
WENLEESRSAEMERGE credit enhancements over these balances.
fthansa = EE i o
H WEERXERBEREZEKE S (H  An aged analysis of the trade and bills receivables that
ERRERERZRERITWAT are neither individually nor collectively considered to be
impaired is as follows:
EWE SRR Trade receivables
rEER
The Group
2014 % 2013 F
2014 2013
ARETT AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
) 2 360 HA 7T 4 3R SR (B Neither past due nor impaired 76,526 123,191
#H D 90 H Less than 90 days past due 57,108 24,963
#HI91 = 180 H 91 to 180 days past due 659 895
#HA 181 2 360 H 181 to 360 days past due 60 365
wWHI =24 110 2 years past due - 1
EIHRER A 2 F Over 2 years past due 1 191
134,354 149,606

Annual Report 2014
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22. MR B ek B ORI () 22. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)
0 (&) (f)  (continued)
EwEE Bills receivables
rEE
The Group
2014 % 20134
2014 2013
AREFT AREFIT
RMB’'000 RMB'000
) 7k 280 HA 7T EE RE Neither past due nor impaired 53,874 77,523
i A 180 B 7 A R DR (B 2 B W SR IE B Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
HETRABEFLEH  BHERTHLE relate to a number of diversified customers for whom
EHNITRTDEE there was no recent history of default.

(9 EaHBEENRBEZEKESER (g The trade receivables that were past due but not
HERBEIRPAR  BRERAEE impaired relate to a number of independent customers
2R R o IBIBAELER - K that have a good track record with the Group. Based on
RAESRAHEEERLEERN past experience, the directors of the Company are of the
. AtSESRDE AT 2EE - opinion that no provision for impairment is necessary in
E it BE LI F AR E LR E R - respect of these balances as there has not been a

significant change in credit quality and the balances are
still considered fully recoverable.

23. PRI ~ 354 B il M WOk oE 23. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES
REHE
The Group
2014 5 20134
2014 2013
ARETR AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
HENB AR ZBKARE Consideration receivable in
respect of disposal of
subsidiaries - 1,200
B WA Loans and receivables - 1,200
PR 2 BN A Prepayments to suppliers 2,404 711
Ze Deposits 1,683 2,913
AR Prepaid expenses 936 1,407
T E TR FRIE Prepaid land lease payment 488 488
HAth fE U HR IR Other tax receivables 10,329 6,490
15,840 12,009
RIE Impairment (386) (386)
15,454 12,823

2014 F4FEH
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24. Bl B YT A ER B IR ST Arak

24. CASH AND BANK BALANCES AND PLEDGED
BANK DEPOSITS

rEE
The Group
2014 5 20134
2014 2013
AR¥T ARETIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
5o RIRTTHERA Cash and bank balances 27,746 53,941
EBTER Time deposit 24,691 128,411
52,437 182,352
B ERENEE MERE Less: Pledged bank deposits for bills
Z BIEIRIRITFIR payable and letters of credit (4,191) (14,265)
ERBITERZ DKM Pledged bank deposits for
R1TER (B E28(a)) bank loans (note 28(a)) (20,500) (114,146)
27,746 53,941
o BB REIHAE DR Add: Bank deposits with original
3ME A ZRITHEK maturity of less than three
months when acquired:
ERENZERERE Pledged for bills payable
and letters of credit 4,191 5,013
BERIBITER Pledged for bank loans 20,500 83,098
24,691 88,111
HEREMNERANZ Cash and cash equivalents in
RekReEEY the consolidated statement of
cash flows 52,437 142,052
¥ /N
The Company
2014 % 2013 F
2014 2013
AR® T ARETFIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
e RIRTTH Cash and bank balances 220 696
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24. BLAx B HAT B 0% B CLAGI AT 4K

(AT
(A= /

(@)

RBERR AEEZES - BT
HBREHERUAREIE  BAR
#39,448,0007C (20134 : A R #&
171,364,0007T) °» ARBEAT] B B 7%
BEMER - Am - BEBERRKREZ
CONE BRSO ) RCAETE - SME R E
EBRBETE) AEBREEREREE
THNEEEZIBITHBARE o

RITRE DHIREE B RITERAEZ
TR XA G - BB EHERB
RAFIEAZVFEANE - WIRERE
HITE 87 SR A R BRER A B - SRITAEER
REBHBRTERFRRNEEREZ
RITA - B RRITERLEEAR
TERZRHERE N FERE

25. A S5 Mok B ME A 55 9%

24. CASH AND BANK BALANCES AND PLEDGED
BANK DEPOSITS (continued)

@)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group's cash and
bank balances and time deposit denominated in RMB
amounted to RMB39,448,000 (2013: RMB171,364,000).
The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,
however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement,
Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the
Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies
through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange
business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Short-term time deposits are
made for varying periods of between three months to
one year, and earn interest at the respective short-term
time deposit rates. The bank balances and pledged bank
deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks. The
carrying amounts of the cash and bank balances and the
pledged bank deposits approximate their fair values.

25. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

REH
The Group
2014 & 2013
2014 2013
AR®T T ARETIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
JENE ZEER Trade payables 80,529 81,165
EANESE Bills payables 12,542 27,171
93,071 108,336
2014 4E4E

FRER (E8) BRAF
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25. HEA B 5 Mok B A 5598 (4)
() MBEHK REEAPRELE
NEBEARZ R IINT -

@)

25. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES (continued)

An aged analysis of the trade payables as at the end of
the reporting period based on the invoice date is as
follows:

rEE

The Group
2014 % 20134
2014 2013
AR® T AREFT
RMB’'000 RMB'000
90 H A Within 90 days 67,246 80,587
912180 H 91 to 180 days 12,222 230
1812360 H 181 to 360 days 872 148
1ZE24F 110 2 years 40 46
B2 over 2 years 149 154
80,529 81,165

ENEZSERAERS - —N30E
120 BT ©

RBERR HEBEHBEHRERE
ZRNZRZREDMAT

©

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are
normally settled within 30 to 120 days.

An aged analysis of the bills payables as at the end of the
reporting period based on bills issued date is as follows:

2014 F 20134

2014 2013

AR® T ARBT T

RMB’'000 RMB'000

90HA Within 90 days 12,542 18,306
91% 180 H 91 to 180 days - 8,865
12,542 27,171

Annual Report 2014
EYANG Holdings (Group) Co., Limited
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26. MEREWCA - HEG 0 K AL HES 3% 26. DEFERRED INCOME, ACCRUALS AND OTHER

JH PAYABLES
rEE PN
The Group The Company
20145 20134 20145 20134
2014 2013 2014 2013
AR¥TRT ARETT AR%TxR ARETTT
RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB'000
EETEH Accruals 3,533 9,604 776 1,949
[ ANE: R Salary payable 15,416 9,385 - =
W% - BRE &% Other payables for acquisition of
Z B AR 5RIE property, plant and equipment 8,151 8,070 - =
IABESER AT E 2 Financial liabilities measured at
SRAaR amortised cost 27,100 27,059 776 1,949
EIEWA (FT5E27) Deferred income (note 27) 733 1,005 - =
Hib e HiIE Other tax payable 4,253 8,147 - =
32,086 36,211 776 1,949
27. E?@}Iﬁ(}\ 27. DEFERRED INCOME
A Al A Government grants
The Group
2014 F 20134
2014 2013
AR®E TR AREETIT
RMB’'000 RMB'000
W1 A1BHZEREE Carrying amount at 1 January 21,737 3,192
FRFH Granted during the year 4,000 19,600
BEAEW A (FI5E7) Released as income (note 7) (1,005) (1,055)
W12 A31 B Z2ERHEE Carrying amount at 31 December 24,732 21,737

BIEMEELERA - FEEfEA  Current portion included in deferred income,
RE e IR 2 ENEAEE4  accruals and other payables (note 26)
(FF5E26) (733) (1,005)

JERNHAER 5 Non-current portion 23,999 20,732

2014 4
FRER(EE)GRAF 113
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27. WHEWCA ()
B AR (
TR # R ER 2 BT B R ER E
HEEMICCZEBIRMBE LFEMHE - BRI
BE M BEFIRERB E £EEMLCC 26 B8 M
B NEAEE RN - SRR A AR -

27.

DEFERRED INCOME (continued)

Government grants (continued)

The government grants have been received from various
government authorities specifically for the purchases of
qualified plant and equipment in respect of the production of
MLCC. Except for the condition that the government grants
must be specifically used for the purchases of qualified plant
and equipment in respect of the production of MLCC, there are
no other conditions attached to these grants.

28. HUTHX 28. BANK LOANS
REH
The Group
20145 20134
2014 2013
AR®T T ARETIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
BEMEER—FRNEE Secured and repayable within one year 67,364 170,275

@ AEEZETERRBTEEHEUT
iR

() AEELZEHARE20,500,000
TL (20134 © A R % 114,146,000
TL) 2 & TFRITER » FTikiRR
IEREREERBRITERE
FRIR IR

(il =B|RARBZIT(20134F : A
< #16,500,0007T ) 2 & T & UK
FiE - TERBREEBNEE
MERBERTT B SRR AR BRI

Annual Report 2014
EYANG Holdings (Group) Co., Limited

(@ The Group’s bank loans and bank facilities are secured
by:

(i) certain of the Group's bank deposits amounting to
RMB20,500,000 (2013: RMB 114,146,000). The
pledged bank deposits will be released upon the
settlement of the relevant bank loans;

(i) certain bills receivables amounting to RMB nil (2013:
RMB16,500,000). The pledged bills receivables will
be released upon the settlement of the relevant
bank loans;
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28. BUTRK ()

(@)

(&)

@iy ANEBR2014F12A83MB2E
TEF - BERKSS THHE
TERNZFIEREEME  REESD
B4 A A R #E 26,466,000 7T © A
R #8,835000L A R #
11,393,0007T & A R #6 21,187,000
TT(2013F : o Bl A A R #&
38,133,0007T « AR¥51,651,000
7T~ AR#1,240,000 T R AR
14,526,0007T) : &

vy ARAMBARRZBEFTHZE
ERRX AN HE AR o

ERFRTEZTHAREZ (2013
& AR #30,000,0007C) & AR
67,364,0007C (20134F : A R #&
140,275,0007T) A FIA A R ¥ R =TT
A -

RITERRAERE A FERS °

/

BITERZEBRZHHEN F3.04%
Z£3.36% (2013 4F : 1.04% & 6.6%) ©

AEEFNTAIEZRITRIE -

28. BANK LOANS (continued)
(@  (continued)

(i) certain buildings, plant and machinery, prepaid

land lease payments and investment properties of
the Group with carrying amounts of approximately
RMB26,466,000, RMB8,835,000, RMB11,393,000
and RVIB21,187,000 respectively as at 31 December

2014 (2013: RMB38,133,000, RMB51,651,000,
RMB1,240,000 and RMB14,526,000 respectively);

and

(iv) all equity interests in Anhui Jineyang, a subsidiary

of the Company.

(b)  The secured bank loans of approximately RMB nil (2013:
RMB30,000,000) and RMB67,364,000 (2013:
RMB140,275,000) are denominated in RMB and United

States dollars, respectively.

(c)  The carrying amounts of the bank loans approximate

their fair values.

(d)  The effective floating interest rate of bank loans is 3.04%—
3.36% (2013: 1.04%-6.6%).

()  The Group has the following undrawn banking facilities:

rEH
The Group
2014 % 20134
2014 2013
AR®Tx ARETTT
RMB’'000 RMB'000
FEIFE — 1 FRNEm Floating rate — expiring within one year 119,989 370,718
2014 FFAFEH;

FRER (E8) BRAF
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29. A WEIR DL P W P f B 29. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
ALE [H]| The Group
(a) EEHEEE (a) Deferred tax assets
EkRE S
ERRHEM WE- BEK
REFERE EWFERE REEBRE st
Impairment

Provision Impairment of items of

against of trade property,

slow-moving and other plant and
inventories receivables equipment Total
ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

R2013F1 A1H At 1 January 2013 1,590 1,298 3 2,891
FARGEERR Credited/(charged) to the
HEprEkak consolidated statement of
AR/ (B) profit or loss and other
comprehensive income
during the year 970 (446) 356 830

72013412 8318 At 31 December 2013 and

20141818 1 January 2014 2,560 852 359 3,771
RxgH g2 Effect of changes in tax rate 1,179 248 729 2,156

FARGEERR Credited to the consolidated
Hh2mzER AR statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive

income during the year 1,769 371 1,078 3,218

2014412 A31H At 31 December 2014 5,508 1,471 2,166 9,145

116 Annual Report 2014
EYANG Holdings (Group) Co., Limited



S B5 e 2k B

\j\
At

Notes to the Financial Statements

HZE2014412 A 31 8- Z For the year ended 31 December 2014

29. SR WBHIR DL T Ry BT A3 B (40)

298

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

NEEHF (&) The Group (continued)
(b)y EEBIEARS (b) Deferred tax liabilities
A
Withholding
taxes
AREFIT
RMB’000
R20134F1A1H At 1 January 2013 6,010
FARGEERE REAM Charged to the consolidated statement of
2EW R IR profit or loss and other comprehensive
income during the year 21
R20134 12 A31 B X 201441 A 18 At 31 December 2013 and 1 January 2014 6,031
FARGREEEREM Credited to the consolidated statement of
FHEHREEALR profit or loss and other comprehensive
income during the year (2,397)
MR2014% 12431 H At 31 December 2014 3,634

()

BIEPBECEMSHE  IIERESE
MR B KBRS M N 18 B D&
182 IR B 7B R 10% &9 %1 = 1 e Fa 40
Fi o ZITER2008F 1A 1BRAER
WA 2007 F12 A31 B Z &%  fH
AR B K Pk B 7% S5 AN IR & B TR B0
BEFERKEZYE - 7] ERASETEN
R REBEANER% - Bt -
NEBARF B RMENK L2 M B AR5
2008 1 A 1 B 2 BF 5k
BB ASMTEINR

MN2014F12 A31H - R ETAREE
MBARREZATRHRAFTES
RNELEREEBFER T HERQ013EF
) o

AERZEERBEE
R2014F12A318  XEBEXREA
T TE 5 1B 4 A R # 22,629,000 7T (2013
F . ANR#9,202,0007T ) iR EIRIT
MOEESFERNE M o R20145F 12 A 31
B ;AREERE R ER R EEY
AT BE IR AR SR FE AR B I LA &) A AR
HEE  WERERIBELLRE MBI
MERAPHER (20134 : #|) o

(c)

Pursuant to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises
established in Mainland China. The requirement is
effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings
after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate
may be applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland
China and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the
Group, the applicable rate is 5%. The Group is therefore
liable to withholding taxes on dividends distributed by
those subsidiaries established in Mainland China in
respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

At 31 December 2014, there was no significant
unrecognised deferred tax liability (2013: nil) for taxes
that would be payable on the unremitted earnings of
certain of the Group's subsidiaries.

Deferred tax assets not recognised

As at 31 December 2014, the Group has unused tax
losses of approximately RMB22,629,000 (2013:
RMB9,202,000) which will expire within 5 years under the
current tax legislation. No deferred tax was recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2014 (2013: nil) since it is not probable that
future taxable profits against which the losses can be
utilised will be available in the relevant tax jurisdiction
and entity.

2014 FA4F 4
FRER(EE) ERAF
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30. JBCHELS SO By 2y BEBE 2 B Bh

AAREE - RBERESS (%)) @
HAKELERNEHERMZ A ERSEE
RERBLREHR - B 2ABER2RER
@A KB I8 AR H ] 5 55
8 T2 BEGREESR - EREREET
PREFRBOAL  O)AEEERMKE QR
MEFAREFES(BRBIULIFNITE
£2): OFAKBEEAKERANERLME
R (A AKEERK S A BN E @R
HIER - @ AKBEMKBRANES - B
B XA LBHE  FitE  ABE K
BRAK  AREEEMKE R ARER
it R RBSREMSIRSEMEH - B
Al BXRFEMBBOALRER  RE@E
] st A BB A £ o 3% AT S0 2007 &
1M A30B A MERIFWEHKIER] - H
EEZBERIOFRAER

RATBEREZT 2R ERRTTRNET
FEIMNE B MR IR A E b5t BI 2 R B i
RITE R E A BRI T IR R T 31T
MERERHEE  THEARRFTRNE
BITAAR30% - WEFRIZZET &I Al TR H A
ATEBERESHE —KTREAZERA
R ANEAT B R A 2 AT A 10% © RE( 12
AR RIBEZESEERZEERE
BRERTRTNESRNEE LRAEXA
AEMEEEETRON 1% E— TR
Bz ERBREAERRN RS L
R

R2014F12 A31H @ BEIRERTE|IE T aJ
1T 7 BHHEE 513,700,000 % 0 1A R A
R2014F 12 A31 H 2B EZITRALI3% °
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30. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTION

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Eligible participants of the Scheme include (a) any
proposed employee, any full-time or part-time employee, or a
person for the time being seconded to work full-time or part-
time for any member of the Group; (b) a director or proposed
director (including an independent non-executive director) of
any member of the Group; (c) a direct or indirect shareholder
of any member of the Group; (d) a supplier of goods or services
to any member of the Group; (e) a customer, consultant,
business or joint venture partner, franchisee, contractor, agent
or representative of any member of the Group; (f) a person or
entity that provides design, research, development or other
support or any advisory, consultancy, professional or other
services to any member of the Group; and (g) an associate of
any of the foregoing persons. The Scheme became effective on
30 November 2007 and, unless otherwise cancelled or
amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that date.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding share options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Scheme and any other share options
granted and yet to be exercised under any other schemes shall
not exceed 30% of the Company’s issued share capital from
time to time. The maximum number of unexercised share
options currently permitted to be granted under the Scheme is
an amount equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time. The maximum
number of shares issuable under share options to each eligible
participant in the Scheme within any 12-month period is limited
to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time. Any
further grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject
to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

The total number of securities available for issue under the
share option scheme as at 31 December 2014 was 13,700,000
shares which represented approximately 3% of the issued
share capital of the Company at 31 December 2014.
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30. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTION

(continued)

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
associates, are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors. In addition, any share
options granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director of the Company, or to any of their
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time or with an aggregate value (based on the
price of the Company’s shares at the date of grant) in excess
of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are subject to
shareholders’ approval in advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
28 days from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise
period of the share options granted under the Scheme is
determinable by the directors of the Company, and
commences after a certain vesting period and ends on a date
which is not later than 10 years from the date of offer of the
share options or the expiry of the Scheme, if earlier.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the
directors, but may not be less than whichever the highest of (i)
the nominal value of the Company’s shares; (ii) the Stock
Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of
grant of the share options; and (iii) the average Stock Exchange
closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant.

2014 FA4F 4
FRER(EE)GRAF

119



o 5 e 3% B 5
Notes to the Financial Statements

HZE 2014912 A 31 B LLFE For the year ended 31 December 2014

30. JBEHESSSEDNRAY R 2R 2 X B () 30. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTION
(continued)
B AR T B T3 A AR AR B SR AR K Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends
2R ERRER - or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.
(@) R HRAE SR R fEm M R 1T B AR (@)  Terms of unexpired and unexercised share options at the
ol S end of the reporting period:
2014 F 20134
2014 2013
B RIE
Tk BRETRT  BERETRT
TE(E ROEE R4
Number Number
of shares of shares
Exercise issuable issuable
price under under
per share options options
1T HR Exercise period
201 FEXENEHEZE 2011 results announcement
201711 A 29H date to 29 November 2017 HK$1.0527%87T 13,700,000 14,800,000
(b) HERRREZ 2B MINEFITHEERT ¢ (b)  The number and weighted average exercise prices of
share options are as follows:
2014 2013%F
2014 2013
gk RIEBRE Bk R E
MELY AR TS Bk
fi%E Sk €| I(E(E BEE
Weighted Number of Weighted Number of
average shares average shares
exercise issuable exercise issuable
price under price under
per share options per share options
W1A1BRATE QOutstanding at 1 January HK$1.052 & 1T 14,800,000  HK$1.052787C 16,300,000
P Forfeited HK$1.052/ 7 (1,100,0000  HKS$1.052/87C (1,500,000)
R12 A3 BRTE Outstanding at 31 December HK$1.05238 7T 13,700,000  HK$1.05278 7T 14,800,000
12 A3 AAI{THE Exercisable at 31 December HK$1.0528 7 13,700,000  HK$1.052i87T 14,800,000
2014812 A 31 B & & 17 1F B8 Bk 12 The options outstanding at 31 December 2014 had an
ZATEE 5 1.0527% 70 (2013 4F = 1.052 exercise price of HK$1.052 (2013: HK$1.052) and a
BIT)  HMETHESRTENFH /29 weighted average remaining contractual life of 2.9 years
F (20134 : 39F) » (2013: 3.9 years).
EEEEREINBEFENEE ° All share options are vested in prior years.

120 Annual Report 2014
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e BB R A

E RAMEFOR R4 51
AEEBERBER BRI AE T EEN) A
SZEBRBIEFDEERNRE R EHER
BT E|([aEesTEl]) - BT8R —
EHRBYSAAETENTEHEHEIENREF
g - IRIERIESFE  EEREEDFIER
BB A Z5% R EI/EH 4k - WA
B8 A W A BA30,00078 (201456 A Al &
25,0008 70 ) & _ER o matEE T A ED
FrERE o

AEBETF2M—EHPEBNRIOERE
BRKEHEE - AEBEDBEKNE QRN
BEHSNEREZRAKBFGE - HELQ
BRI T & AN 2 5 5 Lo Bl A R R AR A5+
BRI E S - NEB R IERN
A BRI — BT RBMIEE AR -

sF B M 4K AR A R 4,484,000 7T (2013
F: AR¥3,514,00070) AL B H ZE 2014
F12 31 B IEFE R 81852 73K
R2014F12 A31H » WEE KRR ESFEA]
HESH AR B 2 RREF (2013 4F : &) -

31.

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Defined contribution retirement plan

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the
MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF
scheme is a defined contribution retirement plan administered
by independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer
and its employees are each required to make contributions to
the plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a
cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000 (HK$25,000 prior
to June 2014). Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

The Group also participates in a state-managed retirement
benefit scheme operated by the government of the PRC. The
employees of the Group's subsidiaries in the PRC are members
of a state-managed retirement benefit scheme. The
subsidiaries are required to contribute certain portion of payroll
costs to the retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefits.
The only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement
benefit scheme is to make the specified contributions.

The total cost charged to profit or loss of RMB4,484,000 (2013:
RMB3,514,000) represents contributions paid to these schemes
by the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014. As at 31
December 2014, there were no material forfeitures available to
offset the Group's future contributions (2013: nil).

2014 FA4F 4
FRER(EE)GRAF
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32. B A K ki i
(@) M&A
() ZEERCBITERA

32. CAPITAL AND RESERVE

(@) Share capital

(i) Authorised and issued share capital

2014 % 20134
2014 2013
AR® T ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
AT Authorised:
1,000,000,000 A% &% 1,000,000,000 ordinary shares of
HE0.01 8Lz LBk HK$0.01 each 10,000 10,000
ERTRHARE Issued and fully paid:
405,500,000 A% &A% 405,500,000 ordinary shares of
H1E0.01E L2 LA HK$0.01 each 4,055 4,055
HERARBT T Equivalent to RMB'000 3,824 3,824

TakBEEANERERTEE
IREVBLE - A BB EAR
AERLEE—FERRE -FE
EEBRAHARBZHTEER
BRIFHERM -

(i) REBBERETEIRTZREG
R E E 2014 F X 2013F 12 A 31
HIEFE  BERBARAGZE
AEHEET B3 1TAR (D o

BOBRESETRHEARBA
DA BB ZERN - RS
HOR 1) R JE i B R 1T 16 2 RS R
ZAGFR - DA AR R RS R 2 A —
FEHE AN BRKRME
30 -
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(ii)

The owners of ordinary shares are entitled to
receive dividends as declared from time to time
and are entitled to one vote per share at meetings
of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally
with regard to the Company's residual assets.

Shares issued under share option scheme
During the years ended 31 December 2014 and
2013, no shares were issued under the Company's
share option scheme.

Each option entitles the holder to subscribe for one
ordinary share in the Company. Terms of the
unexpired and unexercised share options at the
end of the reporting period and further details of
these options are set out in note 30 to the financial
Statements.
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32.

CAPITAL AND RESERVE (continued)

(b) Capital and Reserves
The Group
The amounts of the Group's reserves and the
movements therein for the current and prior years are
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity of the financial statements.

¥ /N The Company
RATEE AL
Attributable to owners of the Company
BB FRRE
BER #E
JRAS Share BaEH Share REEE BEs
Share premium  Contributed option Accumulated Total
capital account surplus reserve losses equity
AREFTT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
"2013F181H At 1 January 2013 3,824 104,657 364,952 4,560 (45,306) 432,687
FRNEEEBLHE Total comprehensive
loss for the year - - - - (7,688) (7,688)
BRI B R Share options forfeited - - - (370) 370 -
R2013F 12831 8K At 31 December 2013
20141818 and 1 January 2014 3,824 104,657 364,952 4,190 (52,624) 424,999
FREEBRRR Total comprehensive
loss for the year = = = = (20,999) (20,999)
BRI E Share options forfeited - - - (267) 267 -
R2014%12 A31H At 31 December 2014 3,824 104,657 364,952 3923 (73,356) 404,000

fiti i 2 MBS &

(i) BDBHE
RIERASHEREEER)
RRBZBAN R ERA 2K T A
RAER - EEERERIRBE
ER®%&  ARB/ABENBER
BEBTOIHE

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves
(i) Share premium

Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman
Islands, the share premium account of the
Company is distributable to the shareholders of the
Company provided that immediately following the
date on which a dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company will be in a position to
pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.

2014 F4FEH
FRER(EE)GRAF 123
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Notes to the Financial Statements

b

() G2 IE K% (&)
(i) EBRZRLR
rEH

REB 2 BRHRBRIE

b

— BRESEEHCKRENE
AAZEMEERE#A
BRER HI AR A A A 3K A i 3%
TZEMEEZZBAR
#& 203,536,000 7T,

— HARRTGHFERBRE
R 1 7 2 4 2 A
A AR 2,823,000 7T

— MREETHERYITER
MEAR AR RIE
BNDEEZEMAARE
1,774,000 7T :

— HE2012F12A8318HILF
& BRI T F e
BERARREK B A A
(TeeR&ERE )R - RIERR
HEEEEZERARE
9,468,0007T : &

— HE2013F12A8318ILE
B AR ERREER -
RIEMBREDIREEZH
4t A R ¥ 650,000 7T ©

ENT

RRB 2 EBBRERBEEREE
AN B AR ZREKRAEAR
BRI BT EEZHE -
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32. CAPITAL AND RESERVE (continued)

(C)

Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)
(ii) Contributed surplus
The Group

The contributed surplus of the Group represents:

the difference of RMB203,536,000 being the
excess of the nominal value of the shares and
contributed surplus of the subsidiaries
acquired pursuant to the group
reorganisation over the nominal value of the
Company’s shares issued in exchange
therefor;

the deficit of RMB2,823,000 arising from the
acquisition of DG Eyang from the non-
controlling shareholders of DG Eyang;

the deficit of RMB1,774,000 arising from the
disposal of Shenzhen Eycom Technology Co.,
Ltd. (“SZ Eycom”) to the related party;

the credit of RMB9,468,000 arising from the
deemed contribution from the shareholders
when acquiring Shenzhen Eyang Energy
Company Limited and its subsidiary (the
"Energy Group”) during the year ended 31
December 2012; and

the deficit of RMB650,000 arising from
deemed distribution to the shareholders
when disposing the Energy Group during the
year ended 31 December 2013.

The Company

The contributed surplus of the Company represents
the difference between the cost of investments in
subsidiaries pursuant to the group reorganisation
and the nominal value of the Company’s shares
issued.
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(i) BERERE
BRERFREERERETEZER
HBRE s A FERSY - ZHD
RSB THAR B BT 5E 2(0)(1) A B8 BA
B fn RER 2 (k2 & 5T R HE

27
7 °

(iv) ERRBRRHE
SMNE B BIEPT AR E B INETS
MBMRAEEZINEEZE - %
fil AR B P R 2(0) FT 8L 2 R RTIR
RERIE -

(v) SEERE

BEEATREE  AEEET
A BT B A B ZE S H 10% BRFL &
wm A (RSB EFEER) D&
EATERHE  BEERFEEEEMEK
N2 50% o fih 1 88 B B RN (A AR 3R
IR BREIEL - LHHEE Bt
KR AR AR R AT
R K B A E Ak
A HERBIE R - R
REFEMEARZ 25% o

AEBEENEE 2 T EZ A NRREERAR
SERERBELERGRFRENERL
R AXKEBLERRREEZLR
A e

RNEEEE IR EE AW AR IR AR
NEEEHEIEH AR - EHEFAFARE
BRER AEERFTAZERE 2
BT MREFEEARNNEITH
f% 5 o & = 20144 K 2013412 A 31
BIEFE  EBEARZBE - BKRK
BrimeEs -

(iii) Share option reserve
The share option reserve comprises the portion of
the fair value of unexercised share options granted
that has been recognised in accordance with the
accounting policy adopted for share-based
payments in note 2(o)(ii).

(iv) Exchange fluctuation reserve
The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of
the financial statements of foreign operations. The
reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policy set out in note 2(s).

(v) Statutory reserve

Pursuant to applicable PRC regulations, certain PRC
subsidiaries in the Group are required to
appropriate 10% of their profit after tax (after
offsetting prior year losses) to the statutory reserve
until such reserve reaches 50% of their registered
capital. Transfers to the reserve must be made
before distribution of dividends to shareholders.
Upon approval by relevant authorities, the statutory
reserve can be utilised to offset the accumulated
losses or to increase the registered capital of the
subsidiary, provided that the balance after such
issue is not less than 25% of its registered capital.

The primary objectives of the Group's capital
management are to safeguard the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximize shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new
shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies
or processes for managing capital during the years ended
31 December 2014 and 2013.

2014 4F4E )}
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32. BB A (2

32. CAPITAL AND RESERVE (continued)

(d) EAEH(E) (d) Capital management (continued)
REBNEEABH XRERERN & The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is
ERGELRAEBR FHEBRAERINE net debt divided by equity plus net debt. Net debt is
B FEE B FHERBITER B calculated as the sum of bank loans, trade and bills
BRI NEMNZE - M EARK payables, and other payables and accruals (excluding
HREFTER(TEERELERA)HR deferred income) less cash and cash equivalents. Equity
SRR EBYE - - BEmiEAQ T represents equity attributable to owners of the Company
HAEAZEBIEER(TEIERA) - &K (excluding share capital). The Group’s policy is to keep
EBVBRREEERBLXRERE the gearing ratio at a reasonable level. The gearing ratios
BEBIZKELE REBREHRZEE as at the end of the reporting periods are as follows:
BELLEMT
rEER
The Group
2014 % 20134
2014 2013
AR® T AREFT
RMB’'000 RMB'000
RITER Bank loans 67,364 170,275
ENE SERRENZE Trade and bills payables 93,071 108,336
H b e A R ESE A Other payables and accruals 31,353 35,206
B IRERESEEY Less: Cash and cash equivalents (note 24)
(MI5E24) (52,437) (142,052)
B #5 Net debt 139,351 171,765
RS Total equity 389,810 438,147
e M EBFE Equity and net debt 529,161 609,912
BERMBLE Gearing ratios 26% 28%

Annual Report 2014
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P2013F 1M B158  AEBEEFTH([EH
7 1) RIS Rt & ([ R% (0 & e ) -
BT RS FBELRRITFEERERA
AINEM B AR ([REREE ) Z 100% /%4
Em([HEEHE] - EREB D AEERIE
BEIA20124 9 A 25 B Z 0 iE B e (R
MEEWZ])  REZE2012412A8318 1t
FERRESWEMS HFEFRESZ
RE(HARGREFE] 2L REE
REZE 2012512 A 31 B IEFE 2 KEBZLR
AFEFE(BHRRERTNBKRIEEEHIER)
RET  BHRNBREESARG T RAUFGRZ
BEREBEZ2012F 12 A3MBIEFEZK
BEZUBREABRODEERERZE BRAR
EE AKBERRBEFEBEBITRMNEBE
W2 3k B ERBERER 2 [ LBz
GRE | 2 RIEFT REERER 2 [ REHE
BEHRAERERE - AEBERREHE—D
RAEBERBERNDEERRERNRE S X
NZIARNREFEEARAEARK
9,200,000 7T ([ E AR EARE]) - BIRZSE
REEZGAETEEBCSERERRN
2012F 123N HZEEFE -

A &7 201346 12 A 24 B B1TH R
HERIAS FEIE BRARER > MEE
EEE R 2013F12 A 27 B © SRR
REFAZEMEARES THREHEER
KB AR #9,200,000 7T 2 [HH) =58 & R 18
EMRE DK « WA RENEREGPER

RERHHERRE  RESBRASE (Y
ZRENRERTEASARK10,400,0007T © H
AR # 9,200,000 7T ([ HE#HR(E D AR
EHEKSHERNRE  MBRTREARE
1,200,0007¢T * ZHH R E 77 R 2013512 A 31
B2 RIARE AT o

On 15 November 2013, the Group entered into the share
disposal agreement (“Share Disposal Agreement”) with the
vendors (“Original Vendors”) under which it was agreed that
the Original Vendors should repurchase 100% of the equity
interest of the Shenzhen Eyang Energy Company Limited and
its subsidiary (“the Energy Group”) (“Disposal”). Energy Group
was acquired by the Group from the Original Venders during
the year ended 31 December 2012 pursuant to a share
purchase agreement dated 25 September 2012 (“Share
Purchase Agreement”) in which the consideration payable to
the Original Venders (“Net Contingent Consideration Payable”)
would be determined by reference to the audited consolidated
net profit after tax and before extraordinary items of the Energy
Group for the year ended 31 December 2012. Since the audited
financial statements of the Energy Group for the year ended 31
December 2012 prepared in accordance with the generally
accepted accounting principles in Hong Kong have not yet
been finalized as at signing date of the Share Disposal
Agreement, the Group and the Original Vendors agreed to
amend the terms of the Share Purchase Agreement such that
references to “audited consolidated accounts” of the Energy
Group were amended to “unaudited consolidated management
accounts” of the Energy Group. The Group and the Original
Vendors further confirmed that the amount of Net Contingent
Consideration Payable by the Group to the Original Vendors
under the Share Purchase Agreement should be adjusted to
RMB9,200,000 (“Adjusted Consideration Payable”) being the
amount of the net assets of the Energy Group at 31 December
2012 as recorded in such unaudited consolidated management
accounts.

The Share Disposal Agreement was approved, confirmed and
ratified by an extraordinary general meeting held on 24
December 2013 and the Disposal was completed on 27
December 2013. The difference between the carrying amount
of the Net Contingent Consideration Payable of RMB nil and
the Adjusted Consideration Payable of RMB9,200,000
represented the deemed distribution to shareholders and was
recognised in contribution surplus in reserve.

Pursuant to the Share Disposal Agreement, the total
consideration payable by the Original Vendors to the Group
was RMB10,400,000 in which RMB9,200,000 (“Set-off
Consideration”) was set off against the Adjusted Consideration
Payable and the remaining consideration of RMB1,200,000
shall be paid by the Original Vendors in cash on 31 December
2013 or later.

2014 FA4F 4
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33. BWBAE (&) 33. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
REEBH  EREEEEFENT The net assets of Energy Group at the date of disposal were as
follows:
ARBTFT
RMB’000
Wz z R E Consideration received
FEURAB Consideration receivable 1,200
HIHRAE Set-off Consideration 9,200
HBRE Total consideration 10,400
EHERREREERAGES - Analysis of assets and liabilities of
Energy Group disposed:
BT Plant and equipment 362
ReRREEED Cash and cash equivalent 6,817
FEUE 2 BR 5K Trade receivables 1,562
FEWE & Bills receivables 607
FEFRIBERIES Prepayment and deposits 9,759
wE Inventories 1,084
FE R TE Tax payable (9,575)
FERTE 5 BRFK Trade payables (2,091)
FEETE A & H A FE T 5018 Accruals and other payables (14,967)
HEREBEHE Net liabilities disposed of (6,442)
HEMB AR ZRE[RKRREDIK Deemed distribution to shareholders on
disposal of subsidiaries
BRE Total consideration 10,400
BUHER EEHE Net liabilities derecognised 6,442
E B E R UGRIE (FIRED Indemnification assets receivables (note i (8,292)
HESEESE ZRIERFTE Deemed contribution from shareholders arising
from the Disposal 8,550
KRARENREES 2 RIERREREDIK Deemed distribution to shareholders arising
(F=Ei) from Adjusted Consideration Payable (note ii) (9,200)
BRI D S W < RAERIRR 5k Deemed distribution to shareholders upon Share
Disposal Agreement (650)
HEEERSRH Cash outflow arising on disposal
FIREREe MRS EED Cash and cash equivalent disposed of 6,817)

128 Annual Report 2014
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33. MEWEAY @

34.

BT

0]

R2012F 12 A31H - AEBEHE —FHE
B ERUGRIEANR 8,292,000t © HRE
TRARRERAGEREBATE B2 R
BIAMBEE N RBERMEMH - BEERE
BHEER - BN EREUEMTE -
AREBE L Wl ZFRE TR 2 BNAHA
ERERNR - AR R EFRRAEEE
REBAEZRBE TR ZENTIE - MR
BEREEERERIUAERBEEERK
FATDBIRE -

BAEMBRR D IRIE R AR R EFE IR
HEEEHERNREZEZE -

R K — W) 2 v Z Pl e
BEERERAERHIEL A ZAE AT

33. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

34.

Notes:

(0]

At 31 December 2012, the Group had an indemnification assets
receivable of RMB8,292,000 provided by the Original Vendors for
the underprovision of tax payable for the pre-acquisition period
estimated by the directors of the Company. Up to the disposal
date of the Energy Group, there was no action from the tax
authorities and the Group did not make any payment for those
underprovided tax payable. The directors of the Company
considered that the Group should no longer bear such
underprovided tax payable and it was appropriate to
derecognise the indemnification assets receivable when the
Energy Group was disposed.

The deemed distribution to shareholders represented the
difference between the carrying amount of the Net Contingent
Consideration Payable and the Adjusted Consideration Payable.

LOSS OF CONTROL OF A SUBSIDIARY

The n

et assets/liabilities of HK Weichang at the date of loss of

BT control were as follows:
AREFIT
RMB’000
BERE: Net liabilities:
H b fE YRR Other receivables 1,741
R MIRTTH R Cash and bank balances 159
FE R IR Tax payables (1,900)
BE/AEFE Net assets/liabilities -
KE—ERB AR 52 W Gain on loss of control of a subsidiary —
KA A F) 2 15 6% 7 &Y Net cash outflow arising on loss of
IR control of a subsidiary
e RIRTTHER Cash and bank balances (159)
2014 4F4AEHR 129

FRER (E8) BRAF
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35. 7R 35. COMMITMENTS
(a) KETHA RS (@) Operating lease commitments
(i) MHFEHREBAA (i) Aslessor
rEH The Group
AREBERBKERAOTHEREE The Group leases its investment properties (note
EWEE (MiE17) &t 2 L 17) under operating lease arrangements, with
FHIR1EE0FENTE - leases negotiated for terms ranging from one to
twenty years.
MR2014%F 128310 XEEFHIE At 31 December 2014, the Group had total future
EEMBPETA NFIHIR R ER > minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable
TR R4 - BFEWAR K operating leases with its tenants falling due as
KBS BELT follows:
2014 F 2013 4F
2014 2013
AR® TR ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
1A Within one year 4,855 4,920
F2ESF(BIEERE2F) In the second to fifth years,
inclusive 4,477 5,007
5% After five years 540 =
9,872 9,927
(i) MEREEA (i) As lessee
rEH The Group

AEERBEEHOCHERE
THEEREEME - MERD
ZEREETR2E -

The Group leases certain of its factories and office
premises under operating lease arrangements.
Leases for properties are negotiated for terms of
two years.

MN2014E12 8318 - AEB R
b S S Rl N B {Efcd
EHY  ARMARRKIEREE

At 31 December 2014, the Group had total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases falling due as follows:

BT
2014 F 20134
2014 2013
AR%TT AREFTT
RMB’'000 RMB'000
—FA Within one year 115 146
B In the second year - 114
115 260

Annual Report 2014
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. R E) 35. COMMITMENTS (continued)
(b) EAKISE (b) Capital commitments
2014 % 20134
2014 2013
ARBT T ARETT
RMB’'000 RMB’000
BEIAVBARBHE - Contracted, but not provided for:

= N 2R Plant and machinery 873 3,009

36. BT3B B & Bk

AEERFARRBEETZERAR S KNBE

HIREARAE S 2 BEERINT

(a)

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND

BALANCES

The Group had the following material transactions with related
parties during the year and balances with related parties at the
end of the reporting period:

LR 7 A5 o (@)  Recurring transactions
BERERE REME 2014 5 20134
Name of parties Nature of transactions 2014 2013
AR¥TR ARET T
RMB’'000 RMB'000
REMABERERAR BREHBME] 2 HE WA V)vii) 57 57
IRz () Rental income received from
Dongguan Guangtong Enterprise DG Guangtong (v)(vii)
Co., Ltd. (“DG Guangtong") (i)
BEWE (Vi) 430 -
Purchase of materials (vi)
REMEGEEXERAR B R @ E] 2 EUA V)il 36 36
(T=Z=2E]) (i) Rental income received from
Dongguan Deyang Industrial DG Deyang (v)(viii)
Co., Ltd. ("DG Deyang”) (ii)
RN E (i) mAYI|{E 88 E MLCC (vi) 4,109 5913
SZ Eycom (iii) Sale of MLCC to SZ Eycom (vi)
BRINEBKE 2 BEHBA V) 1,985 2,129
Rental income received from
SZ Eycom (v)(ix)
TR L EREERE AR AR B L HIEBUE 2 H e A V) 135 -
([ZRBE]) (v) Rental income received from
Anhui Century Eycom Digital Anhui Eycom (v)
Technology Co., Ltd.
(“Anhui Eycom”) (iv)
20144431

FRER (E8) BRAF
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36. BTG5 5 B iR

BHEMNEZ LG (&)
5T -

(a)

) FRERBZBRRABERBATEFR
FeiE 2 SUERELR -

REEB 2 BRRARB 2 RRER
BRLZNE -

FIER EF —BREBRBAR
AMITERRAEL -

RREBZ AT —RARRBRRABRE
B e

A SRS T 2 A BT
e 2 PERET L <

Vi)  ZEXRPRREERTET -

M2014612 A318 - AR 113,000
7t (20134 © AR #170,0007T) 5t A
AR A (RHIEE35()) °

MN2014E 128318 AR ZE T
(20134 : A R#36,0007T ) 5t A&
TR A EIE (B EE35)03)) °

(viii)

R2014%F12A31H - AR
1,243,000t (20134 : AR
3,371,0007T) sFALLERLFEE (R
FdaE35()(0) °

(ix)

Annual Report 2014
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (continued)

(@)

Recu
Notes:

(viii)

(ix)

rring transactions (continued)

The shareholders of DG Guangtong are the brother and
sisters of Mr. Chen, an executive director of the Company.

The shareholders of DG Deyang are the brothers of Ms.
Luo Zhanli, a shareholder of the Company.

One of the ultimate shareholders of SZ Eycom is Mr.
Chen, an executive director of the Company.

One of the ultimate shareholders of Anhui Eycom is Mr.
Chen.

The tenancy agreements entered into between the Group
and the related parties are based on mutually agreed
terms.

The transactions were conducted in accordance with
normal commercial terms.

At 31 December 2014, RMB113,000 (2013: RMB170,000)
was included in operating lease commitments as set out
in note 35(a)().

At 31 December 2014, RMB nil (2013: RMB36,000) was
included in operating lease commitments as set out in
note 35(a)(i).

At 31 December 2014, RMB1,243,000 (2013:
RMB3,371,000) was included in operating lease
commitments as set out in note 35()().
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36. BHEL)T A 5 Bl (&)

(b)

BEYX BERSZHE

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND

BALANCES (continued)

(b) Non-recurring transactions

. Purchase of property, plant and equipment

BEL AR ReEHUE 2014 % 2013 4F
Name of party Nature of transactions 2014 2013
AR®T R ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
R BR=NABEEYE  BERRE
DG Guangtong Purchase of property, plant and
equipment from DG Guangtong - 43
B 3E Notes:
() ZEXSHREEBEZIES () The transactions were conducted in accordance
AT o with mutually agreed terms terms.
HEBEBRI > ESEERA II. Management fee income received from Anhui
Eycom
BEL B REME 2014 % 20134
Name of party Nature of transactions 2014 2013
ARBTR ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
ZRIER BXRERKIZERERA
Anhui Eycom Management fee income received
from Anhui Eycom 83 -
P E Notes:
() ZEXRZHZREEBEZGR ()  The transactions were conducted in accordance
HETT o with mutually agreed terms.
HERREH lll. Disposal of the Energy Group

B Z2013F12A31H EFE -
AEERARET HEERERZ
2 EPRAE o FIEENMIFESS ©

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the

Group disposed of the entire equity interest in the

Energy Group to Original Venders. The details were

set out in note 33.

2014 F4FEH

FRER (E8) BRAF
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36. BMEJT R B KAtk (&) 36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (continued)
(© BHEITAER (c) Balances with related parties
NEH The Group
REEAGESHE
rEE Maximum amount

The Group outstanding
2014 5 20134 2014 % 20134
2014 2013 2014 2013

ARETR ARBTT AR®TR ARETET
RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000

0] Due from
b3t DG Guangtong 790 814 1,384 4,785
REiEfs DG Deyang 3 3 68 357
FHIEm SZ Eycom 1,853 1,657 3,713 6,753
ZHRIER Anhui Eycom 104 112 231 413
RN TF 5L Shenzhen Eyang Energy
BRATR Company Ltd
(T FE8ER1) () (“Eyang Energy”) (i) 2,660 2,888 3,410 11,911
5,410 5,474
The Group
20145 20134
2014 2013
AR®BTR ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
PEf20E Due to
ZHERITALR Anhui Weichang New
BRAF Energy Co., Ltd
(M= @B &) (i) (“Anhui Weichang") (ii) - 2,400

B EE - Notes:

() TFHRERIEFAARTZIHTES () The director of Eyang Energy is Mr. Chen, an executive
BRI o director of the Company.

(il ZRERZIZZREABRITE - (i)  The beneficial shareholder of Anhui Weichang is Mr.

Chen.

@iy EHZE2014FK2013%F 12 A31HILF @iy~ For the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, the
B BEFESREYAEKR 28K balances with related parties are unsecured, interest-free
RERFERE - and repayable on demand.

(v) %EHHZEEEEEATEES - (iv)  The carrying amounts of these balances approximate

their fair values.
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36. BHEL)T A 5 Bl (&) 36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND

(d) FEEME NS 2 5
FAETEEREBAEHAANAES
MRS 2 FHI M EE 11 & S XX EE

BALANCES (continued)

(d) Key management personnel remuneration
All members of key management personnel are directors
of the Company and the remuneration for them is
disclosed in note 11 and as follows:

2014 % 20134

2014 2013

ARBT ARBTT

RMB’000 RMB'000

REEERT Short-term employee benefits 1,401 1,354
1B BRI 12 B A Post-employment benefits 43 64
1,444 1,418

37. WHBEBE AT P2 H R B BUR

AEBZTIESRMIABRERITER RE
KRIBTHGREERRITER - ELERMT
AZFRANNARAKREZEEREES -
AEERELRERNEESEELCHEMS
MEERAE  fIMEWREZERARENE

AEEEMT AP RZTERR BT XE
2 SNERR - EERR MR E SRR
ExgrUiteEBEERRIBER A
FARRR B LR

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise bank
loans and cash and bank balances and pledged bank deposits.
The main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise
finance for the Group’s operations. The Group has various
other financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables
and trade payables, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments
are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees policies
for managing each of these risks and they are summarised
below.

@ AFHE (@) Fair values
AEERKRDT The Group and the Company

MR20144F K2013F12A318  FT A
SMTAZEREREAFEZET
FEEERER -

All financial instruments are carried at amounts not
materially different from their fair values at 31 December
2014 and 2013.

2014 F4FEH
FRER(EE)GRAF
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i

37. WA BEAE B H iy B BOR ()

(ERSYE

REE

() FERBERXZHTARTE
THANAEEMEHAKE AT
MBERER - AEBDRHK
—HERRREELRGEERIFNR
ZETETRS - KT R
ERNH G EERR -

(b)

(i) BLIE Y 5 B3R B ELA B MUBROR
AR KBS FIEMS B
RiEEE BEEEBDRER
ERE REEREZEREER
o AEBEHH S EERES
AZBBHR R BERETEER
- ZEFEET2HEBEBAR
£ 2 515 SR RS 8% S & Al XA BE
N UEEBEPREBANEEMR
ERBERBEZHEEFR - NEE
TAREESREERRE TE
k- BEEZER—REKRER
HiEEt 2 B4 B A B -

MEWEZRIME @ AKEFAT
AHZEERBREEZBELRF
MERISHREE - RELEME
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk

The Group

(b)

(i)

(iii)

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will
default on its contractual obligations resulting in a
financial loss to the Group. The Group has adopted
a policy of only dealing with creditworthy
counterparties as a means of mitigating the risk of
financial loss from defaults.

In respect of trade and other receivables and
amounts due from related parties, in order to
minimise risk, the management has a credit policy
in place and the exposure to these credit risks are
monitored on an ongoing basis. Credit evaluation
of debtors’ financial position and condition is
performed on each and every major debtor
periodically. These evaluations focus on the
debtors’ past history of making payments when
due and current ability to pay, and take into
account information specific to the customer as
well as pertaining to the economic environment in
which the debtor operates. The Group does not
require collateral in respect of its financial assets.
Trade receivables are usually due within 2 to 4
months from the date of billing.

In respect of trade receivables, the Group’s
exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the
individual characteristics of each customer. The
default risk of the industry in which customers
operate also has an influence on credit risk. At the
end of the reporting period, the Group has a certain
concentration of credit risk as 4% (2013: 3%) and
15% (2013: 11%) of the trade and bills receivables
and amount due from related parties were due
from the Group's largest customer and the five
largest customers respectively. Taking into account
the creditworthiness of the Group’s customers, the
credit risk measures and the historical levels of the
bad debts, the directors consider that such
concentration of credit risk would not result in
significant credit default exposure to the Group.

In respect of the credit risk on liquid funds, the risk
is limited because the counterparties are banks
with high credit ratings assigned by international
credit-rating agencies.
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

The Company

The directors consider that there is no significant credit
risk on receivables from subsidiaries given their strong
financial background and good credibility. The Company
has a concentration of credit risk as 57% (2013: 74%) on
the amounts due from subsidiaries is due from one
subsidiary.

The credit risk for bank deposits and bank balances
exposure is considered minimal as such amounts are
placed in banks in Hong Kong with good reputation and
high credit ratings.

Interest rate risk

The Group

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group's debt
obligations with variable interest rates and time deposits
with fixed interest rates which are short-term.

The Group's exposure to cash flow interest rate risk
relates primarily to variable-rate bank borrowings (see
note 28 for details of these borrowings). The
management continuously monitors interest rate
fluctuation and will consider further hedging interest rate
risk should the need arise.

The effective interest rates and terms of repayment of
the bank loans of the Group are set out in note 28 to the
financial statements.

2014 F4FEH
FRER(EE) ERAF
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i

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

(c) FIRJE (&) (c) Interest rate risk (continued)
NEE(E) The Group (continued)
() FIEER (i) Interest rate profile
TR AE B ERAREHF The following table details the interest rate profile
ZRRIER of the Group’s borrowings at the end of the
reporting period:
TEE
The Group
2014 & 20134
2014 2013
BERFIE BB
Effective AR¥TR Effective ~ AR¥FIT
interest rate RMB'000 interest rate RMB'000
% %
BEMER Variable rate
borrowings:
RITER Bank loans 3.04-3.36 67,364 1.04-6.6 170,275
B ARER Total borrowings 67,364 170,275
(i) BBESH (ii)  Sensitivity analysis
LA T8RS D TR B 7 2R 45 HA The sensitivity analyses below have been
NIETERRMIT A Z XM determined based on the exposure to interest rates
B EEMERME  HE S for non-derivative financial instruments at the end
WSR2 REFER of the reporting period. For variable-rate
REFEHRERM - ZDNiE borrowings, the analysis is prepared assuming the
2013 2 [Al— BT - borrowings outstanding at the end of the reporting
period were outstanding for the whole year. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for 2013.
R2014F12 8318 @ i F K& At 31 December 2014, it is estimated that a general
B EF TR 1001EE 2 - EAT increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest
BEHEMESRFITEZBRT rates, with all other variables held constant, would
B AEE B EBELRBTAR increase/decrease the Group’s loss after tax and
Fagmm, Wb HARE retained profits by approximately RMB527,000
527,0007C(20134F : A R ¥ (2013: RMB1,339,000). Other components of
1,339,0007T) - HH 5 MG consolidated equity would not change in response
NG RAFEREE FF TR to the general increase/decrease in interest rates.
ek o
¥ /N The Company
EERR NERBREHAQAZZE The directors consider that the interest rate risk is
WARERX o insignificant for the Company.

Annual Report 2014
EYANG Holdings (Group) Co., Limited

138



St 5 i 3 T AT

Notes to the Financial Statements

HZE2014412 A 31 8- Z For the year ended 31 December 2014

37. WA BEAE B H iy B BOR ()

(d)

gy

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

= gy 7 (d) Currency risk
AEE The Group
AEEERSHEMERR o %R AL The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
LARREENEEINGEEEUIINNE exposures arise from sales, purchases or bank loans by
METHE  BERITERSIE - operating group entities in currencies other than the
AREBEEVEENEHEASRIEHER entities’ functional currencies. The Group tends to accept
EXRBRRINERKE  URERERXS foreign currency exchange risk avoidance when arriving
B E R o NEBEINEUW A R at purchase and sale contracts to minimise its
EERIER > WA FTEAZEE R transactional currency exposures. The Group takes rolling
SF MMEMEREHEER & forecast on the foreign currency revenue and expenses,
2 o and matches the currency and the amounts incurred, so
as to alleviate the impact on business due to exchange
rate fluctuations.
TREYANEBRREBARFAATH The following table details the Group's exposure at the
BEEE  ZZEEE R REILEE end of the reporting period to currency risk arising from
BEMNEEEUIINNEESTENS recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a currency
MRAEENBGBEMES - HE2EHRA W other than the functional currency of the entity to which
ms ' BREEUAARESR  WIAF they relate. For presentation purposes, the amounts of
MERBNEAE R E - the exposure are shown in RMB, translated using the
spot rate at the year end date.
HNERER (UARBAEN)
Exposure to foreign currencies (expressed in RMB)
20145 0136
2014 2013
ES e
United B = United B H
States  Hong Kong Japanese States Hong Kong Japanese
Dollars Dollars Yen Dollars Dollars Yen
ARETR  AR%TR ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BB B R A YA Trade and other receivables 20,485 10,756 187 29,980 6,076 137
BEAGD  BaRFTEL  Pledged deposits and cash and
bank balances 10,776 2,233 - 3894 6,862 232
EREFREZ R EMENTIE  Trade and other payables (43,649) (1,151) (4,742) (44,143) (3,829) (620)
RATER Bank loans (67,364) - - (140,275) = -
EHRREERBBMELS  Netexposure arising from
FER recognised assets and liabilities (79,752) 11,838 (4,555) (150,544) 9,113 (251)
2014 4F4AEHR

FRER (E8) BRAF
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

(d)

Currency risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the
end of the reporting period to a reasonably possible
change in the United States dollar, Hong Kong dollar and
Japanese yen exchange rates, with all other variables

BRE o held constant, of the Group’s (loss)/profit before tax.
2014 & 20134
2014 2013
BRATEBIAT BRI TR
R, S 38 0,
OGR4 ()
tb=#4n,”  Increase/ HrXighn/ Increase/
(®4) (decrease) (B4)  (decrease)
Increase/ in loss Increase/ in profit
(decrease) before (decrease) before
in rate income tax inrate  income tax
AR¥TR ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
= United States dollars 5 (3,988) 5 (7,527)
(5) 3,988 (5) 7,527
BT Hong Kong dollars 5 592 5 456
(5) (592) (®) (456)
H Japanese Yen 5 (228) 5 (13)
(5) 228 (5) 13
RAF] The Company

AR B3 By 3 4R ) RE SN SRR -
A EFEFRHEINERRIT EBR
FERELHPEAINERR - ARFE
HREEAEAEBRBREHAAT
LEBREEREATE -

(e) VRENE & EBR
AEBERARBERBRADE S
S TEAEREESHORAR - (tTH
EEECRTARSMEE (MEKE
SR 2 BB LB E 2R

=
2= °

AEBRARRZBERGF AR
e RREFEY LBEBRITERE
BRARESNENELEESRE -
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The Company currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the directors monitor its foreign
exchange exposures and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposures should the need arises. The
Company does not expect any significant currency risk
which might materially affect the Company’s result of
operations.

Liquidity risk

The Group and the Company monitors its risk to a
shortage of funds using a recurring liquidity planning tool.
This tool considers the maturity of both its financial
instruments and financial assets (for example, trade
receivables) and projected cash flows from operations.

The Group's and the Company’s policy is to maintain
sufficient cash and cash equivalents and have available
funding through bank loans to meet its working capital
requirements.
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(e) TnEhE&E & m g (&)

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)
(e) Liquidity risk (continued)

RNBEHR KEBRERARBIZE&E The maturity profile of the Group’s and the Company’s
BERBET4 R IR RIE 2 B HE R financial liabilities as at the end of the reporting period,
m based on the contractual undiscounted payments, is as
follows:
REH The Group
20145
2014
HESE Rk e
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
M12A31AR
RERK LPR1E oy ZREE
Carrying
Less than amount at
On demand 1year Total 31 December

AR®TR ARBTR AR®TR AR®BTR
RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

RITER Bank loans - 67,894 67,894 67,364
[ENE ZEEF R EMZE  Trade and bills payables - 93,071 93,071 93,071
HiENZIBEREER  Other payables and accruals - 27,100 27,100 27,100
- 188,065 188,065 187,535
20134
2013
STARBRR SR

Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
®12A31H
RE K D1 E Bt ZERHEE
Carrying
Less than amount at
On demand 1year Total 31 December
AREFTT ARBTFIT AREFT ARBFIT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
RITEX Bank loans - 171,505 171,505 170,275
ERE S5BRERRENZE  Trade and bills payables = 108,336 108,336 108,336
HihpetFER ezt &R  Other payables and accruals - 27,059 27,059 27,059
JERTEBE S 2R Due to related parties 2,400 - 2,400 2,400
2,400 306,900 309,300 308,070

2014 F4FEH
FRER(EE)GRAF 141
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(e) LB E &b ()

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)
(e) Liquidity risk (continued)

AATF The Company
20145
2014
HESE Rk
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
M12H31A8
RERK L1 E @gt ZEREE
Carrying
Less than amount at
Oon demand 1year Total 31 December
AR¥ETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
HiEMZIBEREER  Other payables and accruals - 776 776 776
FERTPN B A Rl Z0E Due to subsidiaries 13,638 - 13,638 13,638
13,638 776 14,414 14,414
20134
2013
FIHNARMER SR
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
R12A31H
REKEF D1 E FCE ZEHEE
Carrying
Less than amount at
On demand 1year Total 31 December
ARETTT ARBTTT AREFT AREFIT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
HidENZIEREER  Other payables and accruals = 1,949 1,949 1,949
FETHT B A RIFIA Due to subsidiaries 14,081 - 14,081 14,081
14,081 1,949 16,030 16,030
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38.

39.

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE HOLDING
COMPANY AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING
PARTY

At 31 December 2014, the directors consider the ultimate
parent company to be EY SHINE Management Limited (“EY
Shine”), which is incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, and
the immediate holding company to be EY Ocean Management
Limited (“EY Ocean”), which is incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands. EY Shine and EY Ocean did not produce financial
statements available for public use. The ultimate controlling
party of the Company is also EY Shine.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2014

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the IASB
has issued the following amendments, new standards and
interpretations which are not yet effective for the year ended
31 December 2014 and which have not been adopted in these

It % B 75 $R R P BRA o

IFRS 9

BRI B 755 e 15 2R 1| 28 9 5%
IFRS 14

BRI o 755 e S5 2R R 55 14 5%
IFRS 15

BUBR B T 5 2RISR 15 5%

Amendments to IFRS 11

B0 B B A R 5 XE BI B 11 55 (18 RTAN)
Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38

@ ST AERISE 1697 & 5 385 (IERTAX)
Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 41

BT ERIE 1657 R FE 4157 (IBRTA)
Amendments to IAS 19

B2t 2ERIZE 1958 (ERTAN)
Amendments to IAS 27

B2 s+ 2ERISE 27 57 (1R A)
Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28

BB A TS M 2RI 105 MR =5
AERIZE 28 57 (18 5T AN)

Amendments to IFRSS

Bl BR B T i 2 Rl 2B R T AR
Amendments to IFRSS

Bl BR B T i 2 Rl 2B R T AR
Amendments to IFRSS

Bl BR B T i 2 Rl 2B R T AR

financial statements.

Financial Instruments’

T TA

Regulatory Deferral Accounts?

EEFALKRA?

Revenue from Contracts with Customers?

B FETHIMA S

Accounting for Acquisition of Interests in Joint Operations®

WhEE & X m s BT EES

Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation®

AR E R A BES

Agriculture: Bearer Plants®

B EEMEYS

Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions*

FEEFIFE] - 1B S HL"

Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements®

BB BRE B %°

Sale of Contribution of Assets between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture®

REANBAB &N R e &R AHETEERES®

Annual Improvements to IFRSS 2010-2012 Cycle®
EBR 1 75 35 2 2E Rl 2 F JZ 2AEE (2010-2012 8 5 ) ©
Annual Improvements to IFRSSs 2011-2013 Cycle*
EBR 1 755 35 2 2E Rl 2 4F JZ 2 (2011-2013 8 5 ) *
Annual Improvements to IFRSS 2012-2014 Cycle®
BB BT 75 R & 2E Al 2 4F [Z 24t (2012-2014 85 ) °

2014 4E4E
FHEER(EE)BRAF
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39. EE 2014412 1 31 ult'*ﬁﬁdi;’? 39.
Hi

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2014 (continued)

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

2 Effective for annual IFRS financial statements beginning on or
after 1 January 2016
g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014,
with limited exceptions

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what
the impact of these new and revised IFRSS is expected to be in
the period of initial application. So far it has concluded that the
adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the
Group's results of operations and financial position.

In addition, the requirements of Part 9, “Accounts and Audit”,
of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) come
into operation from the company’s first financial year
commencing after 3 March 2014 (i.e. the company's financial
year which began on 1 January 2015) in accordance with
section 358 of that Ordinance. The Group is in the process of
making an assessment of the expected impact of the changes
in the Companies Ordinance on the consolidated financial
statements in the period of initial application of Part 9 of the
new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622). So far it has
concluded that the impact is unlikely to be significant and will
primarily only affect the presentation and disclosure of
information in the consolidated financial statements.
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